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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is
a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Merdeka Financial Services Group Limited (the “Company ")
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM
Listing Rules ") for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Letter to the Shareholders
A% &R oK

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Merdeka Financial Services Group Limited, | am pleased
to present the 2016 annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016. During the year,
the Group is principally engaged in financial services business, trading
business and information technology business. Financial services business
includes the finance lease business, the securities business, and the money
lending business. Trading business continued to grow healthily, however,
the information technology business remained challenging.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OPERATION REVIEW

It is obvious that commencing from the establishment of the money
lending business to the acquisitions of 1B/ @ & & (L&) B R A 7
(Heng He Finance Lease (Shanghai) Company Limited*) ("Heng He") and
Merdeka Capital Limited (% 12 & N & [R 2 7)) (formerly known as Xiaxin
Securities (HK) Limited (“Xiaxin") (“Merdeka Capital”), the Company is
putting more weight on the financial services business.

On 26 April 2016 the Company held an extraordinary general meeting
to approve, confirm and ratify a capital injection agreement dated 14
December 2015 entered into by the Company with _F /& 77 2 j% 4
& E 3 AR A A (Shanghai Xunli Equity Investment Management
Limited*)(“Shanghai Xunli”) and the transactions contemplated
thereunder, to increase the registered capital of Heng He from RMB170
million to RMB300 million, in order to cope with the significant growth
in its business operation and the increasing demand for finance lease
arrangement in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Following the Company’s further injection of the sum of approximately
RMB20.28 million (approximately HK$23.59 million) in cash into Heng
He as its registered and paid capital, the Company’s interest in Heng He
increases to 64.71% accordingly with effect from 26 July 2016.

During the year under review, Heng He continuously earns interest income
and has been liaising and negotiating new contracts in order to further
explore new clients as well as expanding its finance lease business in more
provincial markets within the PRC. However, in light of the expecting
transaction size and the prevailing economic environment in the PRC,
such progress is slow in pace. Information in respect of the finance lease
contracts is disclosed in the below section “FINANCE LEASE CONTRACTS".

On 22 January 2016, Heng He signed and executed certain necessary
documents in relation to the formation of a PRC joint venture company,
namely & 7= #{= G R 2 A (Merdeka Credit Information Limited*)
(“Merdeka Credit"), in Whlch Heng He holds 70% shareholding interests,
with M EREREEZSEE (LE)BR2AA (Kun Gen Equity
Investment Fund Management (Shanghai) Limited*) ("Kun Gen") and
Y& 5 M B 75 % 32 B BR A A) (Shanghai Hua Hao Financial Management
Limited*) ("Hua Hao"). Merdeka Credit is expected to be principally
engaged in the provision of various kinds of credit information services to
local and overseas institutional investors, financial institutions, regulatory
authorities, government departments and economic research houses.
Upon its establishment, Merdeka Credit has been accounted for as a
subsidiary of the Company and their results will be consolidated into the
financial statements of the Group.

* For identification purpose only
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Letter to the Shareholders
AR SRR

Since commencing its money lending business with a valid money lenders
licence granted, the Company is able to develop the money lending
business as one of its principal lines of business by providing loans in a
systematic and repetitive nature in its ordinary course of business, subject
to compliance with the requirements in the Money Lenders Ordinance.
The Group has been approached by potential borrowers for provision of
loans from time to time but management is cautious in making provision
of loan to avoid possible bad debts.

Following the completion of the acquisition of Merdeka Capital, a
corporation licensed to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activities under the SFO, on 15 July 2016, after the approval granted
by the Securities and Futures Commission to become the substantial
shareholder of it, the Company has further expanded and diversed into
the financial services, subsequently, on 30 August 2016, Xiaxin has
officially changed its name to Merdeka Capital.

During the year under review, Merdeka Capital, besides in developing its
securities brokerage business, has concluded two transactions in taking up
the role as a book-runner as well as a lead manager in respect of issuance
of debts listed in Europe. The Group anticipates that this direction would
furnish Merdeka Capital with more opportunities in developing a higher
returns and, in turn, a more profitable business.

Trading business continues to provide a stable source of revenue to the
Group during the year under review and as the business is running steadily
but competitive, the Group is expanding its trading business into more
variety of consumer products and into more geographical markets within
the PRC. The Group’s trading outlet is located in Sheung Shui, at where,
it is nearer to its customers. The variety of the Group's trading products
has been enlarged to confectioneries and pharmacy products. The Group
sourced locally and from Japan and other Asia countries in respect of its
trading products. Furthermore, after registered as a food importer/food
distributor under the Food Safety Ordinance, the Group in the first quarter
of 2016 has commenced OEM products from Asia countries that include
Japan, Korea and Malaysia. With complimentary effects from the Group’s
mobile and cloud information technology centre in Mian Yang, a city of
Sichuan Province, the PRC, the Group’s trading arm, Source Easy Limited
(“Source Easy”) has been expanding its customer base in the PRC.

The Group’s information technology business remained challenging during
the year under review, mainly because of the keen competition and the
rapid change in project cycles of the customers. However, the Group is
consolidating different acquired entities into a single stream of income
and shifting the weight to its 60% owned subsidiary, 43 b5 18 i {5 8. &L &
A BR A & (Mian Yang Heng Da Information Technology Limited*) (“Heng
Da’). Currently, Heng Da has been developing mobile and cloud based
application software and operating related e-commence platform to
trade the Group’s consumer products in the PRC for Source Easy’s trading
products.

* For identification purpose only
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Letter to the Shareholders
AR R R

During the last quarter of the year under review, Heng Da has franchised
a mobile game licence from a provider to market and ran exclusively a
mobile game platform in the Mian Yang city of Sichuan, the PRC. This is a
small but meaningful step for Heng Da as it would get hold of the hand-
on technology and experience in the mobile game industry in the PRC
based on its own development on the mobile and cloud based application
software.

FINANCE LEASE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2016, Heng He had the following major finance lease
contracts in the aggregate amount of RMB1,704.5 million. Details of the
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AEREAGGETE) JEETEFRERTEZ
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bl
op
al

e

finance lease contracts are as follows: Lo ZEMEHEGRAMFBOT:
Interest rate
Principal Amount Date Tenor per annum
K& =] FH F R =
(RMB’000)
(AR T T
Customer A (Note 1) ZEAMMTEETD) 45,000 3 January 2014 3 years 11.00%
e == =
Customer B (Note 2) = PB(MIFE2) 35,000 3 January 2014 3 years 11.00%
—ZE-mE—-—HR=H =
Customer C (Note 3) HPC(MIFE3) 460 31 March 2015 5 years 11.00%
—E-—RF=A=+—H hF
Customer D (Note 4) EPD(MIsE4) 200,000 14 August 2015 3 years 6.67%
—Z-RAFNA+HTA =
200,000 31 August 2015 3 years 6.38%
—E-RAFNHA=1+—H =
Customer E (Note 5) ZPE(HE5) 44,000 31 August 2015 3 years 11.00%
—Z-RFENA=+—H =
Customer F (Note 6) = FEF(HIsE6) 1,000,000 1 August 2016 2 years 5.12%
—E—R"FNA—H i
Customer G (Note 7) EPG(ME7) 65,000 18 August 2016 3 years 6.18%
—E-RENA+TNH =F
Customer H (Note 8) EPH(MFES) 115,000 20 October 2016 3 years 5.10%

—“E-RETAZ-+H =%
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Notes: P 3% -

1. A company located in Shanghai which is principally engaged in embroidery 1. —HMREEZAR  EERPEXSIHET
processing in the PRC. o

2. A company located in Shanghai which is principally engaged in 2. —ER Bz RAE FERTERELRESR
manufacturing of metallic mechanical and electrical products in the PRC. MR ERRER -

3. A company located in Shanghai which is principally engaged in the provision 3. — R EBZAR  EERPBERERHESE
of auditing, taxation and business advisory services in the PRC. B R EFERARE -

4. A company based in the PRC which is principally engaged in the construction 4. —FHNFRAEM AR TEREM  FEMK
of port and transportation infrastructure in Asia, Africa and Europe. BMEEEO R BEMRBRER -

5. A company based in Shanghai which is principally engaged in property 5. —HUNEBAEM AR FERPREEEYE
development business in the PRC. PR -

6. A company incorporated in the PRC which is a prime contractor company 6. —ERFEFMR T2 AF REEREFEFT
specialized in offshore engineering, construction, repair and conversion. BR BE BEMIENRERAF -

7. A company incorporated in the PRC which engages in digital networking and 7. —MRPEFMAIZAR REEFTRERE
information technology development. FILRH A 8% o

8 A company incorporated in the PRC which specialized in the provision of 8. —ERFEFMR T2 AR BEFEARIEMHRT

heat supply and industrial use steam.

EXREA-

Apart from the equity fund raising activity mentioned below, the Company
had not conducted any other equity fund raising activities in the past 12

months immediately preceding the date of this report:

Date of announcement

DMERH

Net proceeds

SEA:

Intended use of proceeds

FERERERR

BIXAZRARE LI KRABDHEZEEAR
WEBMA T —EARNLEETEMNEBBRAR

Actual use of proceeds

FERAERAR

14 March 2016
and 31 March 2016

—E-RE=ZATHBER
—E-XE=ZA=+—H

Fund raising activity (approximately)
REED REHEREBL)
Placing of up to HK$14.00 million
125,000,000 new Shares

at HK$0.119 per Share

under general mandate

BE-—BEERTRR
HONIETEERS
125,000,000 fi% ¥ i (7

14,000,000 7% 7T

(i) as to not less than HK$11.20 million for the
capital injection into Heng He as its general
working capital to facilitate the expansion of
the finance lease business, by increasing the
budget of funding amounts to the lessees
and exploring other regions in the PRC;
and (ii) the remaining for the strengthening
of the general working capital base of the
Company to finance its business development
and/or to finance any future investment
opportunities or any future needs in repaying
its outstanding debt

(i)~ 4% 11,200,000 7 7T A 7 1) 187 &
B FRE-KR2EE: BAENR
FRAREMESRENARAATEL
BN EEREBERBE 2B R R
BREAREZEALNAZ-REEESE
WREEBRRREAESR AAL
fARNBZRERERAREMNESR
ERBEEB RELREES

Approximately HK$12.00
million has been used for
the capital injections into
Heng He, the remaining
has been utilized as
intended

#112,000,0007% 7T & A
fEmERIE  HHE
BERBRERAEREM
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Intended use of proceeds

FERERERR

Actual use of proceeds

FERRERAR

Net proceeds
Date of announcement Fund raising activity (approximately)
AR H REED MRERERRMBL)
8 June 2016 Placing of up to HK$23.90 million
270,000,000 new Shares
at HK$0.092 per Share

under general mandate

BE-—REERSRK
P0.0NETEERS
270,000,000 % #7 % (7

ZE-RERANE 23,900,0007% 7T

OUTLOOK

(i) as to not less than HK$19.14 million for the
capital injection into Heng He as its general
working capital to facilitate the expansion of
the finance lease business, by increasing the
budget of funding amounts to the lessees
and exploring other regions in the PRC;
and (i) the remaining for the strengthening
of the general working capital base of the
Company to finance its business development
and/or to finance any future investment
opportunities or any future needs in repaying
its outstanding debt

(i)~ 19,140,000 TR A A E T
B ERE-—MREEBS BBHEMNM
ARARENECEENRHAATRE
R RERERELE 2B R
BEAREEARRZ - MREEELE
BoOBEEBEEREESR/ABM
MERER 2 BERSXHBREMESR
HABEEB T RRHEES

RE

Approximately HK$20.00
million has been used for
the capital injection into
Heng He. The remaining is
deposited in bank and will
be applied as intended

#720,000,0007% 7t 2 3
{fEMERTE  THE
FRETLBERER
# A

Looking forward to year 2017 and after, the Group will continue to focus
on the development of financial services business in both PRC and Hong
Kong.

The Directors believe that the acquisition of Hang He allowed the Group,
without setting up a new financing company, to further develop its
financing related business in the PRC through a direct working capital
injection, and subsequently to enjoy the benefits of the capital leverage
in Heng He. Furthermore, in view of the growth potential of the finance
lease industry in the PRC, the Directors consider that this acquisition will
enhance the performance of the Group and the return to the Shareholders
as a whole.

It is anticipated that more transactions would be concluded in the future
by Heng He after the Company and its effort in adapting to the required
disclosure as required by and set forth in the GEM Listing Rules.

RE-_ZT—tFERUKR AEEREEH IR
TELREENECBRBRBEBHER -
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TERTEREMBREL EREAEAEANR
BERNFR - BE ERPEREHEETRIE
RENEK EFHEZRUBEREAEEE
BRALSERBBRRE KR -

BEHRARAENERAER ETRURE R
HINEELMBRER  EABRRRTEKES

%5



Letter to the Shareholders
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During its business process, Heng He had developed its credit rating
system that was compatible to those used by the other financial
institutions, including banks, and government organizations. As a results,
it is sensible for it to invest and explore and diverse into the formation
of Merdeka Credit, which is to carry out a business to be principally
engaged in the provision of various kinds of credit information services to
local and overseas institutional investors, financial institutions, regulatory
authorities, government departments and economic research houses. The
Directors considered that it would be in the interests of the Company and
its Shareholders as a whole for Heng He to expand into business that is
relating to its own finance lease business, which in turn will be beneficial
to the Group by increasing its revenue and profits. The Directors expect
that the establishment of Merdeka Credit will bring to Heng He a new
source of income and in turn benefit the Company and its Shareholders as
a whole in the longer term.

Regarding the money lending business, the Company continuously
receives enquiries from various customers, however, the Company is
cautious in concluding the transactions in order to control the risk in
money-laundering as well as, the risk of bad debt. It is expected that the
income from money lending business will grow steadily and healthily.

After the completion of the acquisition of Merdeka Capital, the Company
has further expanded and diversified into the financial services by having a
100% indirect owned subsidiary in securities business.

To build on its success in the debt financing business in Europe, Merdeka
Capital also taking advantage in the Group's appearance in the PRC
by co-operation with the debt financing and issuance experts in listing
debts issued by the PRC corporations on the stock exchanges worldwide.
Merdeka Capital would continuously focusing on the role of book-runner
and lead managers on these financing exercise of the significant sizes PRC
corporations.

To cope with the Group’s strategy in exploring the China market, the
Board is studying the possibilities for Merdeka Capital to apply for the
certificate of Hong Kong service suppliers which is the first step in applying
for the preferential treatment under Mainland and Hong Kong closer
economic partnership arrangement (“CEPA"). Under CEPA, it is anticipated
that Merdeka Capital may enjoy preferential treatment when setting up
business in its relevant sector in the Mainland China and is vigorously
planning to establish strategic partnership co-operations with certain
Mainland financial institutes of relevant business in sharing commercial
resources in the extensive areas, including products and customer paths,
for mutual developments.
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In order to complement the Type 1 regulated activity currently undertaken
by Merdeka Capital and to explore the opportunities in the asset
management business to potential overseas clients through the overseas
network of the Group in the near future, on 7 February 2017 (after
trading hours), the Group, through, a wholly-owned subsidiary, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire 51% of the issued
share capital of Heng Asset Management Limited (“Heng"), a company
principally engages in the provision of Type 4 (advising on securities) and
Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO.

The Directors consider that the participation in Heng by acquiring 51%
of its share capital would enable the Group to further provide more
comprehensive financial services through direct investment in and hands-
on management and operation of Heng. The Board observes that the
current condition in the investment advisory market is highly competitive
but at the same time there are promising opportunities in the market.
This is evidenced by continuous increasing number of Type 4 and Type
9 licensed corporation application to the SFC. If the acquisition is
completed, the Group is expected to take advantage of the future growth
in capital markets and continuous products development, by diversifying
its business further within the financial services sector, in particular the
asset management business and to broaden the Group’s revenue base.

Furthermore, to enjoy the competitive advantages of the Group in the
information technology as well as in the mobile application, Merdeka
Capital is going to build, basing on its existing online financial services,
an ultimately computerized automatic trading platform with mobile
application supports as well as a professional information announcing and
broadcasting platform for Hong Kong stocks and the stock market, so as
to promote its business everywhere in Hong Kong as well as in the China
market.

Trading business is expected to continuously providing a stable source of
revenue to the Group and it is anticipate that the Group is continuously
expanding its trading business into more variety of consumer products and
actively considering to open physical stores in the PRC. The Group is also
commencing to OEM its trading products from various Asian countries
including Japan, Korea and Malaysia. In addition, the Group will explore
the opportunities in the development of logistic and/or its related business
in order to enhance the Group's trading sector.

For the information technology business, revenue would be mainly driven
by the additional contribution from the consolidation of different acquired
entities into a single stream of income. Complementing the trading
business with its information technology business, the Group intends to
commence trading consumer products into the PRC through its customers
there by developing mobile and cloud based application software and
operating related e-commence platform in the PRC. Another opportunity
to complement the business of the Group lied on the development of
mobile and cloud based applications in relation to the financial services
provided or to be provided by the Group, in terms of, namely, finance
lease, money lending and securities business in accordance with the
permission under the laws of Hong Kong and the PRC.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Further to the 2008 CBs which was issued by the Company on 12 August
2008 as part of the consideration for the acquisition of forest concessions
in Papua, Indonesia, upon the completion of the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of Blossom Height, the Company issued 2015 CBs in
the principal amount of HK$40 million to the vendor, Yihua Enterprises
Limited as part of the relevant consideration.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had outstanding 2008 CBs of
aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$124.1 million convertible
into 335,681,818 Shares and 2018 CBs of aggregate principal amount
of HK$40 million which will be compulsorily converted into 173,913,043
Shares.

Furthermore, on 20 January 2017 (after trading hours), the Company and
the bondholders of the 2008 CBs entered into the third supplemental
deed, for (a) extending the maturity date of the 2008 CBs for 3 years from
12 August 2017 to 12 August 2020; (b) amending the conversion price
of the 2008 CBs from HK$0.3696 per Share to HK$0.095 per Share; and
(c) inclusion of the following adjustment events to the conversion price:
(i) issue of Shares for subscription by way of rights, or a grant of options
or warrants to subscribe for Shares, at a price which is less than 80%
of the market price per Share to the shareholders of the Company; (ii)
issue wholly for cash of securities convertible into or exchangeable for or
carrying rights of subscription for Shares, if in any case the total effective
consideration per Share receivable is less than 80% of the market price,
or the conversion, exchange or subscription rights of any such issue are
altered so that the said total effective consideration receivable is less than
80% of such market price; and (iii) issue of Shares being made wholly for
cash at a price less than 80% of the market price per Share.

The Board is pleased to announce that the proposed resolution in respect
of the above mentioned Third Supplemental Deed and the transactions
contemplated thereunder was duly passed by the Shareholders by way
of poll at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 7
March 2017. Accordingly a maximum of 1,305,978,947 Shares will be
allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to
the outstanding 2008 CBs in full at the conversion price of HK$0.095 per
Share.
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PROMISSORY NOTES

The Group had an outstanding principal of promissory notes of
approximately HK$52,600,000, which consists of two promissory notes.
The promissory note issued pursuant to the agreement in relation to
the acquisition of Ever Hero Group Limited in 2014 with an outstanding
principal of approximately HK$23,600,000 is charged at interest rate of
2% per annum and the settlement date is 4 April 2017. The promissory
note issued pursuant to the agreement in relation to the acquisition of
Blossom Height Ventures Limited in 2015 with an outstanding principal of
approximately HK$29,000,000 is non-interest bearing and the settlement
date is 21 April 2018.

LITIGATION

On 22 January 2015, the Company announced that a writ of summons
was issued in the Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong
Kong by Au Kai To Karel, as the plaintiff claiming against (i) End User
Technology Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as the 1st Defendant; (ii) the Company, as the 2nd Defendant; and (iii)
Lau Chi Yan Pierre, the managing director and executive director of the
Company, as the 3rd Defendant for, inter alia, (1) specific performance of
an agreement dated 2 May 2013 in relation to a discloseable transaction
of the Company (details of which were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 2 May 2013); or (2) alternatively, the damages
in the sum of HK$8,000,000 in lieu of specific performance; and (3) the
interest; (4) further and/or other relief; and (5) the costs. The Company
have instructed legal representative to handle the matter, and was advised
that the claim does not have merits as the agreement had been duly and
completely performed. The three defendants, namely the Company, its
subsidiary and Mr. Lau Chi Yan, Pierre have filed the relevant statements
of defence and counterclaim with the High Court accordingly. On 3
August 2016, the parties attended the mediation as ordered by court, but
the mediation failed. Formal trial will be held in late 2017.

PROFIT GUARANTEE IN RELATION TO THE ACQUISITION OF
THE ENTIRE ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL OF BLOSSOM HEIGHT
VENTURES LIMITED

On 21 April 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire
issued capital of Blossom Height Ventures Limited, investment of which
is primarily in the shareholding interests in Hang He, and in accordance
with the terms of the relevant acquisition agreement dated 31 October
2014, the Vendor has given to and for the benefit of the Purchaser a
profit guarantee that the consolidated net profit after taxation and any
extraordinary and exceptional items for each of the three years ending 31
December 2015, 2016 and 2017 shall not be less than HK$10 million.
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DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO THE FINANCE
LEASE AGREEMENT

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 20 January 2017
(the “FL Announcement”), on 20 January 2017 (after trading hours),
Heng He, entered into a finance lease agreement (the “Finance Lease
Agreement’) with _E /8 & 3 B i £ 7€ 5 IR 2 A](Shanghai Zhang Cheng
Computerized Embroidery Company Limited*) (the “Lessee”), pursuant
to which Heng He conditionally agreed to purchase the Leased Assets
(as defined therein the FL Announcement) from the Lessee at a total
consideration of RMB25 million (approximately HK$27.50 million), which
would be leased back to the Lessee at the aggregate lease receivables of
approximately RMB28.85 million (approximately HK$31.73 million) for a
term of 3 years, commencing on the date of payment of the consideration
for the Leased Assets.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios calculated under the
GEM Listing Rules in respect of the Finance Lease Agreement exceed 5%
but are less than 25%, the transaction contemplated under the Finance
Lease Agreement constitutes a discloseable transaction for the Company
and is subject to the notification and announcement requirements under
Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules.

THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF 51% OF THE ISSUED SHARES
IN HENG

On 7 February 2017 (after trading hours), the Company through a wholly-
owned subsidiary entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire 51% of the
issued share capital of Heng (the “Acquisition”) at a consideration of
HK$10,000,000 which will be settled by the allotment and issue of the
consideration Shares by the Company to the vendor or its nominee upon
completion of the transaction.

As the applicable ratios under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules
exceed 5% but are below 25%, the Acquisition constitutes a discloseable
transaction of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

An extraordinary general meeting will be convened and held on 24
March 2017 for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving,
the sale and purchase agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder including the grant of the specific mandate to allot and issue
the consideration Shares. A circular containing, among other things,
(i) further details of the sale and purchase agreement; and (i) a notice
convening the extraordinary general meeting, was despatched to the
Shareholders by the Company on 8 March 2017.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 30 November 2016, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Agreement”) to the disposal of 100% equity interest in
Merdeka Timber Group Ltd. together with its subsidiaries (the “Disposal
Group”) (the “Disposal’).

* For identification purpose only
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The Disposal Group is principally engaged in the forestry and plantation
businesses. Following the Disposal, the Company will cease to have a
shareholding interest in the Disposal Group.

As the percentage ratios as defined under the GEM Listing Rules in
respect of the Disposal are less than 5%, it did not constitute a notifiable
transaction on the part of the Company under Chapter 19 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

As explained in the annual report of the Company dated 11 March 2016,
the Group’s forestry project in Indonesia was suspended with no revenue
generated from it. It is expected that the Disposal, will enable the Group
to concentrate its resources in its other existing business segments,
including finance lease, securities and money lending, and/or other higher
return potential investment to enhance the value of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORSHIP AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Mr. Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth, due to his need in concentrating in the
development of his own business, has resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 27 February 2017,
and accordingly, his appointment as a member of the nomination
committee, a member of the remuneration committee and as a member
of the audit committee of the Company has been revoked with effect
from 27 February 2017.

Mr. Au-yeung Sei Kwok was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 27 February 2017 and he was
also appointed as a member of the nomination committee, a member of
the remuneration committee and as a member of the audit committee of
the Company with effect from 27 February 2017.

The Board welcomes Mr. Au-yeung in joining the Company and thanks
Mr. Yip for his contributions to the Company and the Group during his
tenure of office.

APPRECIATION

I would like to express my gratitude to our management team and all
staff for their hard work in the execution of the Group’s strategies and
operations during the past year. As approved by the shareholders in the
annual general meeting held on 3 May 2012, the Company adopted
a share option scheme, which could provide incentives and rewards to
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group. Last but not the
least, | wish to thank all shareholders, customers, suppliers, business
partners, bankers, government authorities for their continuous support
and confidence in the Group.

Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
10 March 2017
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 81 ¥5 0 8
Highlights on financial results MREERE
Year ended 31 December
BEt+-A=+—HLEE

(HK$ 000, except percentage figures) 2016 2015
(FH&T BRESLEFTIN —E-XE —E-RF
Revenue ILON 256,232 131,398
Gross profit E5 26,821 18,713
Gross profit margin E = 10.5% 14.3%
Operating expenses LB X (22,191) (15,247)
Administrative expenses THE M (12,824) (9,603)
Non-cash items: FIREIER
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment* ME - BEREEITE (2,161) (1,831)
Impairment of inventories FERBE = (113)
Written off of inventories FE MR (435) (1,249)
Written off of bad debts xR M BR (117) (2,233)
Impairment of forest concessions AR TR E - (29,000)
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 FRIERE (3) (1,671)
Impairment of goodwill EERE - (37,159)
Equity-settled share option expenses NI A B ELERER X - (26,400)
Loss on early repayment of promissory notes REEERALEBZEBE (493) (2,549)
Loss on promissory notes RHFEMeRmEE

arising on set off against other financial asset MEENELZRER - (464)
Finance costs of GRS )

convertible bonds and promissory notes Ko R 2 fE KR (19,005) (15,719)
Loss for the year KFEEBE (40,148) (123,392)
Loss excluding non-cash items** WHRIERSIER 2 BB~ (17,934) (5,004)
* In 2016 and 2015, all of the depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ * RZE-—RER-ZZT—OLF FEVE BER

were included in the operating and administrative expenses. BB EALERAIRITHRER -

REFEEERAYIFREER -

*x Loss for the year less non-cash items stated. *x
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DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year under review, the Group’s reported revenue increased
significantly to approximately HK$256.2 million, representing a
95.0% increase over the last year. The significant increase was mainly
contributed by two sources, firstly, the rapid growth in trading business
by strengthening the direct sale channel with the bulk purchasers
and the local pharmacies. Further, we also enhanced our product mix
diversification by trading of more pharmaceutical and imported food
products instead of focusing on cosmetic and dairy products in the
past. Secondly, the acquisition of finance lease business completed in
September 2015 also provided a significant impact to the Group during
the year.

The Group’s gross profit for the year amounted to HK$26.8 million,
representing a 43.3% increase over the corresponding year. However,
compared with 2015, the Group's gross profit margin decreased
approximately by 3.8%. The decline in gross profit margin was mainly
due to the narrowed margin generated from the growing trading
business. As such, the Group recognised the gross profit of approximately
HK$3.8 million from this segment, representing approximately only
1.5% to the Group's gross profit margin. However, it was compensated
by the consolidation of finance lease business into the financial services
business segment which contributed approximately HK$22.5 million, that
accounted for approximately 8.8% to the Group’s gross profit margin.

In light of the increasing operating activities carried out during the
year, the overall operating and administrative expenses also increased
correspondingly to approximately HK$22.2 million and HK$12.8
million respectively. The loss excluding non-cash items also increased
approximately HK$12.9 million.

Analysis by business segment
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-ZA=+—-BLEFE

Revenue Profit/(loss) before tax
' ON BRBAER,(BR)

(HK$ 000) 2016 2015 2016 2015
(F#&TL) —E—XFE —T—FF ZEBE-RE =—ZT—HF
Trading business H5%EB 175,290 93,141 (866) (4,330)
Financial services business ® B AR 75 15 80,274 32,214 11,760 11,224
Information technology business BB EB 628 5,535 (1,773) (38,913)
Forestry business MR E - - = (29,000)
Other business i 40 508 (28) (13)

256,232 131,398 9,093 (32,032)

Contributed by the intensive sale efforts putting on dairy products and
confectionary, the revenue increased significantly to HK$175.3 million,
representing a 88.2% increase over the last year. As a result, the reported
loss was reduced to HK$0.9 million which decreased by approximately
80% compared with the corresponding year.
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Since the acquisition of a finance lease services subsidiary completed in
the second half of the year 2015, the financial services business kept
providing satisfactory results in terms of revenue and profit before tax.
Compared to 2015, the reported revenue increased by approximately
149.2% to HK$80.3 million.

Since 2015, the information technology business kept not performing well
due to keen competition in the industry. The reported revenue dropped
by approximately 88.7% on a year-on-year basis to approximately HK$0.6
million for the year 2016. As the business activities reduced, the loss
before tax also decreased by approximately 95.4% on a year-on-year basis
to approximately HK$1.8 million for the year 2016.

Further, the Group disposed of a subsidiary which carried out forestry
business, therefore no revenue and profit or loss before tax reported

during the year.

Analysis by geographical segment

AR ZZE-—AFT¥FEZRKERERER
HHBAR  SRMBRBEBRFEHAKE L
AEMAASARNENEZ RERZTR-Z
—RHF FF4149.2% » = 80,300,000 T °

B A% BARBEEBRTERTHE
BRE T E - RERZHEFTHRLYSBINE-Z
— NEEWH600,0008 7T  BERKEHRD
BAIER IR E TR ANBA%E —_T—RNFEN
#91,800,000 % 7T °

BE AEERFALE—HWEBAR  HHETT
MK - EE B E RS et B A HEE -
EEHDBD

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
ZE—KF —ET—hF

(HK$' 000, except percentage figures) Revenue Proportion Revenue Proportion
(FAET BHLEFHRIN L ON ke 41 A Lt 1
Hong Kong BB 177,414 69.24% 99,546 75.76%
Mainland China =N 78,818 30.76% 31,852 24.24%

256,232 100% 131,398 100%
Highlights on financial position BBERREE

As at 31 December

R+t=H=+-—8H

(HK$ 000) 2016 2015
(F# ) ZE-RE —E—1F
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREZE 4,664 5,841

Intangible assets mEAE 2,805 -
Statutory deposit EER S 510 -
Available—for—sale investments AEHERE 1,475 10,036
Finance lease receivables Rt E & W R IE 1,901,318 1,018,597
Trade receivables 2 5 EWFIE 6,867 4,854
Loan receivables B EWRIE 3,300 7,451

Bank balances — Trust accounts RITHEH-ELRP 5,206 -
Bank balances and cash — general accounts RITHEHBLERES - —RERP 63,347 52,839

Bank borrowings #RAT71E 3K (1,695,685) (851,824)
Convertible bonds — liability component ARBES-aEBD (114,400) (100,205)
Promissory notes R (50,402) (47,627)
Finance lease obligation A MHERE (1,968) (2,867)
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR = (88,039) (68,015)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AARREREB NEGHRRER 3,301 15,679
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Discussion on financial position

The decrease in property, plant and equipment was mainly due to more
depreciation charge recognised arisen from the additions in motor vehicles
and office equipment during the year.

During the year, the Group acquired a subsidiary, which carried out
securities business, that led to the increase in Statutory deposit, Trade
receivables, Bank balances and cash — general accounts.

Significant increase in finance lease receivables was mainly attributed
to the three contracts entered into by Heng He during the year and
the aggregate principal amount of these contracts was approximately
RMB1,180.0 million.

During the year, the Group early repaid partially approximately HK$3.0
million of the outstanding principal of the promissory notes issued in the
year of 2015 at cash. The increase was mainly due to imputed interest
charge on the two promissory notes.

During the year, non-controlling interests increased by approximately
HK$20.0 million. It was mainly attributable to the formation of a PRC
joint venture company, namely Merdeka Credit Information Limited with
two minority PRC parties who own a total of 30% shareholding interests
which led to an increase in non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$18.0 million.

Capital structure and gearing ratio

B 3 AR R A AR

ME BEMRREBERSIZR/CEREFARNM
MERMAERBOFTER LI -

RERNAEBEERE -—HHBAR  REEES
X% - REERE BHRUFKE RITEHK
RBe-—MREPIEM-

BEHERWKHIEREIZ N Z /RN E N HE
FRITUN=ZMAERME ZE5E6RNASERE
#) & AN R ¥ 1,180,000,000 7T °

FRNAEENBRSRINEENR T —AFET
R H ZiE 2 21D R EE A2 543,000,000
T BHAEMEEZEARMOH AL ZENGHERNZ
X e

R A - JE IR 4 25 58 0 49 20,000,00078 7T ¢ It
DEZHREMBLEEZTRAL(HEHE
AHEINBE)EXNFTEEERAEEHREEAR
A A RS FE 1R AR 4 25 58 J1 49 18,000,000 7 T °

EXARBREFEFLR

As at 31 December

R+t=-A=t+-H
2016 2015
ZB-XRE —T-0%
HK$' 000 Proportion HK$' 000 Proportion
TET i TEX sl
Total borrowings BEE
~ Bank borrowings - RITEX 1,695,685 90.88% 851,824 83.66%
— Convertible bonds (liability component) -ABREES(BELD) 114,400 6.13% 100,205 9.84%
— Promissory notes -ERRE 50,402 2.70% 47,627 4.68%
~ Finance lease obligation -BEHERE 1,968 0.11% 2,867 0.28%
1,862,455 99.82% 1,002,523 98.46%
Equity attributable to owners of the company AR R REEHE ABIERRER 3,301 0.18% 15,679 1.54%
Total capital employed EFAMBER 1,865,756 100% 1,018,202 100%

Significant increase in bank borrowings was in line with the growth of
finance lease business during the year.

RITERKRBEN BEAREREXHNER
_ﬁo
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no conversion or
redemption of the convertible bonds. The increase in the convertible
bonds was solely due to the addition of the imputed interest during
the year. As such, the outstanding principal amount of the convertible
bonds remained approximately HK$124.1 million for both years with the
maturity date due on 12 August 2017.

There are 2 batches of promissory notes collectively referred as 2014 PN
and 2015 PN respectively. As at 31 December 2016, the outstanding
principal and coupon interest of the 2014 PN amounted to approximately
HK$26.6 million (2015: HK$26.6 million) which will be matured in
April 2017. In April 2015, the Company issued the principal amount of
HK$32.0 million of 2015 PN as part of the consideration to acquire the
40% equity interests in Heng He. The 2015 PN will be matured in October
2018. During the year 2016, the Company early repaid partially the
outstanding principal of the 2015 PN of HK$3.0 million. The outstanding
principal of 2015 PN amounted to HK$29.0 million as at 31 December
2016.

Liquidity and financial resources

REBEE-_Z—XE+-_A=+—RILEE #E
ERER AT R ES c T RREFEMEAR
FRANGEFNE - At MEFENATRKE
FH RTINS FE247124,100,00078 7T - HEH A
AB_E—+tFNA+=8-

BEEMEEALEZE H5aBAEA-ZT —NF
AREER T -—FAERLER - R 2T — X
FEH+—A=+—H —ZZE-—WHEFEERALEE *
ER Atz MERMELA26,600,0008 T(=
T — R %:26,600,000F L) BR_ZE—tFNH
AR - R-_ZE—AFEWNA  ARAREFTALEE
32,000,000 L —E—HAFARZEE  EAIK
BEMNAO%NBRENRE T —RAFEALRE
BRZE—NF+AEP-RZZE—X"F AR
ACIRAEENNM ST —AFAHLEEZKE
EAN$%3,000,0008 L - R_E—~"F+=A
=+—H ZE—AFEAHLEBNREELRSE
/529,000,000 7T

RBESRMBER

As at 31 December

R+=-—BA=+—8
(HK$’ 000) 2016 2015
(F&T) ZE-XRF —T—RF
Current assets mEBEE 176,172 570,963
Current liabilities mEBaE 246,355 406,266
Current ratio mB X 0.7 1.4

As at 31 December 2016, most of the finance lease receivables were non-
current assets. On the other hand, the convertible bonds and the 2014
PN were reclassified to current liabilities as they will be matured in the year
of 2017. As a result, compared to 2015, the current ratio decreased to 0.7
from 1.4.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 7 March 2017, the maturity
day of 2008 CBs was extended to 12 August 2020 during the relevant
extraordinary general meeting of the Company, and thus, it is anticipated
that the current ratio would improve accordingly when the liabilities under
the 2008 CBs were classified to long-term liabilities.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's bank balances and cash - general
accounts amounted to approximately HK$63.3 million (2015: HK$52.8
million), approximately HK$51.7 million was denominated in RMB. Also,
approximately HK$11.4 million, about 18.0% (2015: 41.5%) were bank
balances deposited with credit worthy banks of high credit ratings in
Hong Kong, and approximately HK$10.4 million (2015: HK$21.9 million)
was denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

R-E—XNE+-_A=Z=+—8 KH@mEHEeE
ERFERIERDEE -S—HE  TBRRES
NZE—NEFAREREN>BEARDEE
EER-_Z—+tFHH Bt R ER=-F
—HFEWMIA4TEKEOT

BEHEERE R_ZE—tF=ZAtH ZZTZN
FRHRBREEFNIEAE  RBENARRQ R RS
FASEEREZE-_Z_FEFN\A+=-H Hit-
EHE ST \FARRKEFETABRET D
HERHPAE ReLRaMEENRSE-

R-ZE—RNE+-_A=+—H KAEEZR]T
EHREE - —MREF4A63,300,000%8 (=
T — F £ :52,800,0008 Jt) * #151,700,0007% JT
UARBEEE - LS 411,400,000 T (B1 49
18.0%(—FE—HF:415%)) AFHREBEA
SEEFLBEEERTGRTZBITES MY
10,400,000 7t (= & — F 4 : 21,900,000 7T) 8l
A TTEHE -
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Foreign currency exposure

The Group’s reporting currency is Hong Kong dollar. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, most of the Group's transactions were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and Renminbi ("RMB"). The
Group had exposure to the risk of exchange rate fluctuations for RMB
on account of its cost of finance lease and information technology
operations in the Mainland China. The Group did not formally employ any
hedging instruments or derivative products considering the relevant costs
and benefits. However, the Group will continue to monitor closely the
exchange rate risk.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).

Acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies

Details of acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2016 are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
of the Annual Report of the Company. Except for those disclosed in the
Annual Report, the Group did not acquire or dispose of any material
subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year ended 31 December
2016.

Significant investments

The Group did not acquire or hold any significant investment during the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2016, the finance lease assets held by the leasees
with the carrying value of approximately RMB1,858.1 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,074.7 million) had been pledged to the bank
as security for the loan facilities of the Group (2015: RMB802.1 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$957.8 million)).

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (2015: Nil).

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed 35 staff (2015: 35). The
Group's remuneration policy is based on principle of equality, motivating,
performance-oriented and market-competitiveness. Remuneration
packages are normally reviewed on an annual basis. Apart from salary
payments, other staff benefits included provident fund contributions,
medical insurance coverage and performance related bonuses. A share
option scheme is also established to reward and motivate the employees
of the Group.

S BE /R B
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Events after the reporting period

M

On 20 January 2017 (after trading hours), the Company and the
bondholders of the 2008 CBs entered into the third supplemental
deed, for (a) extending the maturity date of the 2008 CBs for 3
years from 12 August 2017 to 12 August 2020; (b) amending the
conversion price of the 2008 CBs from HK$0.3696 per Share to
HK$0.095 per Share; and (c) inclusion of the following adjustment
events to the conversion price: (i) issue of Shares for subscription
by way of rights, or a grant of options or warrants to subscribe
for Shares, at a price which is less than 80% of the market price
per Share to the shareholders of the Company; (ii) issue wholly for
cash of securities convertible into or exchangeable for or carrying
rights of subscription for Shares, if in any case the total effective
consideration per Share receivable is less than 80% of the market
price, or the conversion, exchange or subscription rights of any
such issue are altered so that the said total effective consideration
receivable is less than 80% of such market price; and (iii) issue of
Shares being made wholly for cash at a price less than 80% of the
market price per Share.

The proposed resolution in respect of the above mentioned
Third Supplemental Deed and the transactions contemplated
thereunder was duly passed by the Shareholders by way of poll at
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 7 March
2017. Accordingly a maximum of 1,305,978,947 Shares will be
allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attached
to the outstanding 2008 CBs in full at the conversion price of
HK$0.095 per Share.

On 20 January 2017 (after trading hours), Heng He, entered into
a finance lease agreement (the “FL Announcement’) with & &
¥ E B8 87t B R & 7 (Shanghai Zhang Cheng Computerized
Embroidery Company Limited*) as the Lessee, pursuant to which
Heng He conditionally agreed to purchase the Leased Assets (as
defined therein the “FL Announcement’) from the Lessee at a total
consideration of RMB25 million (approximately HK$27.50 million),
which would be leased back to the Lessee at the aggregate lease
receivables of approximately RMB28.85 million (approximately
HK$31.73 million) for a term of 3 years, commencing on the date
of payment of the consideration for the Leased Assets.

On 7 February 2017 (after trading hours), the Company through
a wholly-owned subsidiary entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to acquire 51% of the issued share capital of Heng at
a consideration of HK$10,000,000 which will be settled by the
allotment and issue of the consideration Shares by the Company to
the vendor or its nominee upon completion of the transaction.

* For identification purpose only
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Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson, aged 46, is currently an executive director,
the chairman, chief executive officer ("CEQ”"), compliance officer, member
of the Nomination Committee, member of the Remuneration Committee,
authorised representative and agent for service of process in Hong Kong
of the Company and as a director of certain relevant subsidiaries of the
Company. He is deemed a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Cheung has over 20 years of experience in the field of audit, business
development, corporate finance and financial management. Mr. Cheung
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He holds a Master
of Science degree in Financial Engineering from City University of Hong
Kong and Bachelor degrees in Arts and Administrative Studies from York
University, Canada.

Mr. Lau Chi Yan, Pierre, aged 41, is currently an executive director, the
managing director, member of Nomination Committee, member of the
Remuneration Committee and as a director of certain relevant subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lau has over 15 years of experience in the field of
information system, operational system and general management. Mr. Lau
holds an Executive Master Degree of Business Administration in General
Management from University of Hull, the United Kingdom and a Bachelor
of Science degree in Computer Science from University of Calgary,
Canada. Besides, Mr. Lau is a member of Guangdong Huizhou Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (/1 Bl A & B
AEmeFEERE EMMZ 8) and a member of The 12th All- China
Youth Federation Committee (5 + —EHFEL2E S FHAZE D).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann ("Ms. Yeung’), aged 52, has served as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company since October
2012 and is a member of the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee. She holds a Bachelor degree of
Retail Marketing with honours in the United Kingdom and a Diploma in
Marketing from The Chartered Institute of Marketing. She pursued her
further study on legal course and has been awarded a Diploma in Legal
Practice in the United Kingdom in 1998 and is presently a consultant of
Messrs. Fung & Fung, Solicitors, a legal firm in Hong Kong. Ms. Yeung is
currently an independent non-executive director, a member of the audit
committee, a member of the remuneration committee and a member
of the nomination committee of Success Universe Group Limited, issued
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Furthermore, she is currently an independent non-executive director, a
member of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of each of E Lighting Group Holdings Limited and
Trillion Grand Corporation Company Limited, issued shares of both are
listed on GEM. She is also the chairman of the nomination committee of E
Lighting Group Holdings Limited.
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Mr. Ng Kay Kwok ("Mr. Ng"), aged 54, has served as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since July 2013 and is a member
of the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee. He graduated from the Australian National University
with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and obtained a Graduate Diploma
in Accounting from Macquarie University. He is a member of CPA Australia
and has extensive experience in accounting and financial management. In
addition, Mr. Ng was an executive director and the chief executive officer
of GET Holdings Limited (“GET’), a company listed on GEM, from 9 July
2010 to 31 May 2011 and from 29 May 2012 to 24 May 2013, he was
also the company secretary of GET from 1 January 2007 to 31 May 2011.
Mr. Ng is currently an independent non-executive director, the chairman
of the audit committee, a member of the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee of China Fortune Financial Group Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Au-yeung Sei Kwok (“Mr. Au-yeung’), aged 56, was appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and a member of
the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee on 27 February 2017. He has over 30 years of experience
in business development and management. Mr. Au-yeung holds a
Master degree of Business Administration in Business Management
from University of Hull and a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical
Engineering from University of Newcastle upon Tyne, the United Kingdom.
Mr. Au-Yeung is also enthusiastic in social affairs and currently serves
as the Vice Chairman of Senate of Democratic Alliance for Betterment
of Hong Kong and the member of Heilongjiang Province Committee of
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lai Yau Hong, Thomson, aged 54, joined the Group in December
2010, is the company secretary of the Company. Mr. Lai has over 22
years of experience in company secretarial duties as well as corporate
governance and management fields and has taken up senior management
positions in a number of multinational conglomerates and companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. He is an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries.
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Corporate Governance Report
EFXELGHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always recognised the importance of the transparency
and accountability to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders’).
It is the belief of the Board that the Shareholders can maximise their
benefits from good corporate governance. The Company is committed to
maintaining and ensuring high standards of corporate governance in the
interests of the Shareholders. Throughout the year ended 31 December
2016, the Board has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance practices
and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the code provisions
under the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules, except for the following deviations from the code
provisions of the Code:

Code Provision A.2.1

The Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

There is no separation of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
as set out in the Code Provision A.2.1.

Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson currently assumes the roles of both the
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. Traditionally, the
chief executive officer of the Company also assumes the role of the
chairman of the Company because it is believed that the structure of the
Board ensures the balance of power and authority therefore no need to
segregate the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson, has substantial experience that is
essential to fulfilling the role of the chairman of the Company, at the same
time, he has the appropriate management skills and business acumen that
are the prerequisites for assuming the role of the chief executive officer of
the Company in the day-to-day management of the Group.

The Board is currently composed of five directors including three
independent non-executive directors with a balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the Group. Furthermore,
the roles of the management of the Company’s major operating
subsidiaries are performed by the managing director and other
individuals. The balance of power and authority is therefore ensured by
the current structure of the Board. Whilst it does not believe that such
role separation will improve the corporate performance, the Board, as
well as the Company, intends to comply with this code provision by
seeking and appointing suitable candidate with appropriate background,
acknowledge, experience and calibre to assume the role as the chairman
of the Company.
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Code Provision A.4.2

The Code Provision A.4.2 provides that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after their appointment. Every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, any director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The Board considers that the Company is in compliance with paragraph
4(2) of Appendix 3 under the GEM Listing Rules and such a deviation is
not material as casual vacancy is expected seldom happens and duration
between appointment to fill casual vacancy and the immediate following
AGM is less than one year and is considered to be short.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, the Chairman and
the managing director of the Company shall not be subject to retirement
by rotation or also not be taken into account in determining the number
of directors to retire in each year. The Board considers that the continuity
of the Chairman and the managing director and their leaderships will be
essential for the stability of the key management of the Board. On the
other hand, the Board will ensure that the directors of the Company other
than the Chairman and the managing director will rotate at least once
every three years in order to comply with the Code Provision A.4.2.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
DIRECTORS

The Company has not adopted a code of conduct nor established written
guidelines regarding the securities transactions by the directors and
relevant employees of the Company but has applied the principles of the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company has also made specific enquiry of all directors
of the Company and the Company is not aware of any non-compliance
with the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

THE BOARD

The Board is charged with the responsibility for the promotion of the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs in a
responsible and effective manner. Each Director has a duty to act in good
faith and should take decision objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

Matters reserved for the Board's decision include those relating to:
- the strategic direction of the Group;

- the objectives of the Group;
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- monitoring the performance of the management of the Group;

- ensuring prudent and effective control measures are in place;

- material bank facilities arrangements;

- material acquisitions and disposals of assets and significant

investments;

- material transactions with connected persons;

- material corporate finance transactions including placing or sale
of shares or convertible bonds, corporate restructuring, take-over,
including approval of the announcements and the circulars;

- reviewing and approving quarterly results, half-yearly results and
annual financial statements, declaration of dividends;

- appointment, re-appointment of auditors and determination of

their remuneration; and

- reviewing and determination of the terms and remuneration of the

Directors.

The management of the Group was delegated the authority and
responsibility by the Board for managing the businesses of the Group,
with division heads responsible for different aspects of the business.
The Board meets at least four times each year and meets as and when
required. Appropriate and sufficient information including notices were
provided to the Board's members in a timely manner. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Board held ten meetings. The attendance
of a director appointed part way during this financial year is stated by
reference to the number of meetings held during his/ her tenure. The
attendance of the Directors at the Board’s meetings (either in person or by

phone) is set out as follows:

- EBEEAKEEEEMNRE:

- WBRETEERBRZGEER:

- EBEAMNEERBLRLEEREAKRE:

- HEEATETERRS:

- EREEIIHEROMNITERES QAFAE
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REFEREXRS:

- EHRBERFTEXE THEEARFEY
BRE ERRE:

- ZE EBZBOLRETENE R

- ZFEHLAEBTEZZERGMHFEME -

EFERCRTASEEEERIREME UEHE
AEBZED AP EHMETEARETREAKZ
X - EFEEFHRIBITOIER LA EL
ERERAFNSH EFENECERERNTE
ERRAZEMN(BRAS) REBEE-_FT—KRF
T-A=1t—HALFE EFECHTTRE
FONAMBEETEZAETNHFEBRIDR
BECHAMBITNEZREMIGL - EF(H
FREBEFHLEEESTEBROT:

Number of attendance

Name of the Directors EEHE HERE
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson REE 10/10
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre 8= 10/10
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann PEg 10/10
Ng Kay Kwok R 10/10
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth BEHI 10/10
(resigned on 27 February 2017) (R=ZE—tEF-_A=+tHBET
Au-yeung Sei Kwok B 5+ N/A T~ 38 A

(appointed on 27 February 2017)
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The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking minutes
of the Board’s meetings and all Board’s minutes are open for inspection
by the Directors upon reasonable notice. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the company secretary has taken over 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

The Directors are enabled, upon reasonable request, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. The Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist the relevant
Directors to discharge their duties.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged in respect of the legal
action against the Directors and the management of the Group. The Board
considers that the Group has sufficient and appropriate liability insurance
to cover the Directors and the management of the Group against any
legal liability arising from their performance of duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, each Director has ensured that
he can give sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs and
has participated in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.

Name of Directors

EEpA

Training received

FriE 2 53
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Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson
governance matters

REE

Attending seminars and forums/reading materials/in house briefing on regulatory and corporate

2MBRERHE/HEEH/ BXNBULEREERAEREEXE R CEE

Lau Chi Yan, Pierre
A8

Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann
BRI

Ng Kay Kwok

R

Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth
(resigned on 27 February 2017)
EEI
(R-_ZE—tFE-A-t++tHED

Au-yeung Sei Kwok
(appointed on 27 February 2017)

B % B
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Attending seminars and forums/reading materials/in house briefing on regulatory and corporate
governance matters

2NBERHE/BEER/ BIXAPHLAEREERERCEERCEE

Attending seminars and forums/reading materials/in house briefing on regulatory and corporate
governance matters

SMBAERHRE/FEEN  EXABELEHAEERERCEERZER
Attending seminars and forums/reading materials/in house briefing on regulatory and corporate
governance matters B

SMBERRE/HEEN BXNIEREEEERTERCEERCER
Attending seminars and forums/reading materials/in house briefing on regulatory and corporate
governance matters B

SMBERRE/EEN  BEXABMAEHAEERTERCEERZER

N/A

TEH




Corporate Governance Report
FPREIBHRS

BOARD'S COMPOSITION

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises two executive
directors, namely Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson (also acting as the
Chairman and CEO) and Mr. Lau Chi Yan, Pierre (also acting as the
Managing Director) and three INEDs, namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann,
Mr. Ng Kay Kwok and Mr. Au-yeung Sei Kwok. The Board has maintained
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements, promotion and development of the businesses of the
Group. Its composition represents a mixture of management, technical,
marketing, procurement, legal, accounting and finance which is relevant
in managing the businesses in which the Group is engaged.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
the three INEDs of the Company in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded
that all INEDs of the Company are independent within the definition of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board’s members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced composition of the
Board is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the Board
and has met the GEM Listing Rules for the Board to have at least one-
third in number of its members comprising the INEDs. The biographies
of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this Annual Report, which demonstrate a diversity of
skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CEO

Presently, Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson assumes the roles of both the
Chairman and the CEO of the Company. The reasons for the deviation
from the Code Provision A2.1 under the Code are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Practices” above.

RE-ELECTION AND RETIREMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

The articles of association of the Company provide that (i) each Director
(except the Chairman and the managing director) is required to retire by
rotation and that one-third (or the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third) of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation and be
eligible for re-election at each AGM of the Company; and (i) any Director
appointed by the Board, either to fill a casual vacancy on or as an addition
to the existing Board, will hold office only until the next following AGM of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the INEDs of the Company has filed a written confirmation to
the Company confirming his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and has undertaken to inform the Stock Exchange and
the Company as soon as practicable if there is any subsequent change in
circumstances which may affect his independence. As at the date of this
Annual Report, the Board still considers the INEDs of the Company to
be independent. All INEDs of the Company are appointed for a term of
one year and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
AGM of the Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

THE COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed and employed, on a full time basis, Mr. Lai
Yau Hong, Thomson as the company secretary. He is an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and is an individual who, by virtue
of his professional qualifications and relevant experience, is, in the opinion
of the Board, capable of discharging the functions of company secretary.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the company secretary has
taken over 15 hours of relevant professional training.

The company secretary is responsible not just for taking minutes of the
Board's meetings but also for supporting the board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that board policy and procedures
are followed and for advising the Board through the Chairman and
the CEO on governance matters and also for facilitating induction and
professional development of directors.

The company secretary reports to the Chairman and the CEO while all
directors have access to the advice and services of him to ensure that
board procedures, and all applicable law, rules and regulations, are
followed.

A physical board meeting is required to be held to discuss and approve
any change in the company secretary.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee,
with clearly defined written terms of reference. The main roles and
responsibilities of these three committees, including all authorities
delegated to them by the Board, as set out in the terms of reference,
are published on the Company’s website at www.merdeka.com.hk. The
different committees’ independent views and recommendations not only
ensure proper control of the Group but also the continual achievement of
the high corporate governance standards expected of a listed company.
The chairman of each committee reports the outcome of the committee’s
meetings to the Board for further discussion and approval.
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Nomination Of The Directors

Pursuant to the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has established the Nomination Committee in 2012 with specific written
terms of reference in line with the code provisions under the Code.

The responsibilities and authorities of the Nomination Committee include
such responsibilities and authorities set out in the relevant code provisions
of the Code and its duties include: (i) to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (i) to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) to assess the independence of INEDs;
and (iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the Chairman and the CEO.

The Nomination Committee will at all times, have a minimum of three
members, a majority of which shall be INEDs and presently consists of
five members comprising three INEDs, namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung,
Ann, Mr. Ng Kay Kwok and Mr. Au-yeung Sei Kwok and two executive
directors, namely Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson and Mr. Lau Chi Yan, Pierre.
The chairman of the Nomination Committee is elected by the members
who are present at the meeting.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when required to discharge
its responsibilities, but not less than once a year. During the year ended
31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
attendance of a member appointed as a director part way during this
financial year is stated by reference to the number of meetings held
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during his/her tenure. The attendance of the members of the Nomination % § ,El EXRERIRERERLFTREEESR
Committee at the Nomination Committee’s meetings (either in person or FRAT -
by phone) is set out as follows:

Number of attendance
Name of the members of the Nomination Committee REZESHERE HERE
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson REE 171
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre 2B ”n
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRI il
Ng Kay Kwok RHE 1/1
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth (resigned on 27 February 2017) AIRZE-—tF-_A-TtAHEE 11
Au-yeung Sei Kwok (appointed on 27 February 2017) BETER-_Z—+F_A-++tHBZM) N/A 18 A

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the members of the Nomination
Committee have reviewed the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy. The Nomination Committee also identified
and selected individuals suitably qualified to become Directors of the
Company and make recommendations to the Board on the respective
appointment of individuals nominated for directorships.
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The Nomination Committee has assessed the independence of INEDs for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee
was provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties and
responsibilities and at the Company’s expense to seek independent
professional advice, where and when necessary.

Remuneration of the Directors

Pursuant to the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has established the Remuneration Committee in 2005 with specific
written terms of reference in line with the code provisions under the
Code. The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of the directors and the senior management of the Group;
(i) reviewing the remuneration package including the performance-
based bonus and incentive rewards for the executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group; and (iii) reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board the compensation, if any, payable to the
executive directors and senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment.

The Remuneration Committee consists of five members comprising three
INEDs, namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Ng Kay Kwok and Mr. Au-
yeung Sei Kwok and two executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung Wai Yin,
Wilson and Mr. Lau Chi Yan, Pierre. The chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is elected by the members who are present at the meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting. The attendance of a member appointed as a director
part way during this financial year is stated by reference to the number of
meetings held during his/her tenure. The attendance of the members of
the Remuneration Committee at the Remuneration Committee’s meetings
(either in person or by phone) is set out as follows:
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Number of attendance

Name of the members of the Remuneration Committee FHZEEERERS HERE
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson REE 171
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre AEC 1/1
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BERE il
Ng Kay Kwok R# 11
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth (resigned on 27 February 2017) HIRZE tﬁ: AZ++BEE) 11
Au-yeung Sei Kwok (appointed on 27 February 2017) BETER-_T—tF_A=F+tZEHF) N/A 7 i
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During such meetings, the current framework, policies and structure for
the remuneration of the directors and the senior management of the
Group was reviewed by the members of the Remuneration Committee
who reported to the Board of their reviews with recommendations.
The Remuneration Committee also reviewed the specific remuneration
packages including the terms of employment, incentive rewards and
performance-based bonus of the executive Directors and the senior
management of the Group and the fees payable to the INEDs of the
Company.

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain and
motivate the executive Directors and the senior management of the Group
by linking their rewards to the corporate and individual performance,
job complexity and responsibilities, so that the interests of the executive
Directors are aligned with those of the Shareholders. No Director can,
however, approve his/her own remuneration.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the executives and the employees
serving for the Group, the Company has adopted the share option scheme
in 2012. The share option scheme enable the eligible participants to
obtain an ownership interest in the Company by payment of the exercise
price with reference to the market price of the Shares at the time of grant
and thus to reward to the participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations.

Details of the amount of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 9
to the financial statements in this Annual Report and details of the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 3 May 2012 are set out in
the section headed “Report of the Directors” in this Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee in 2001 with
specific written terms of reference formulated in accordance with the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to ensure the objectivity and credibility of the Company’s
financial reporting and internal control procedures as well as to maintain
an appropriate relationship with the external auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee consisted of three members comprising three
INEDs, namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Ng Kay Kwok and Mr.
Au-yeung Sei Kwok, one of whom is a qualified accountant and has
extensive experience in accounting and financial matters. The chairman of
the Audit Committee is elected by the members who are present at the
meeting. All members of the Audit Committee hold the relevant industry
or legal, accounting and financial experience necessary to give advice on
the Board’s strategies and other related matters. All members of the Audit
Committee have complete and unrestricted access to the external auditors
and all employees of the Company.
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The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for () reviewing the Company’s
quarterly results, half-yearly results and annual financial statements
and making recommendations as to the approval of the Company’s
quarterly results, half-yearly results and annual financial statements by
the Board; (ii) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditors
and the terms of engagement including the remuneration of the
external auditors; (iii) discussing with the external auditors the nature
and scope of the audit; (iv) monitoring and assessing the independence
and objectivity of the external auditors and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards; (v) reviewing and
monitoring financial reporting and the reporting judgement contained
in them; and (vi) reviewing financial and internal control (including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget), accounting policies and practices with the
management of the Group, and internal and external auditors of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee held
four meetings. The attendance of a member appointed as a director part
way during this financial year is stated by reference to the number of
meetings held during his/her tenure. The attendance of the members of
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the Audit Committee at the Audit Committee’s meetings (either in person  FBEF) HEBZZES B ROT
or by phone) is set out as follows:

Number of attendance
Name of the members of the Audit Committee ERZEERERS H B R
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann 1BEIR 4/4
Ng Kay Kwok REE 4/4
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth (resigned on 27 February 2017) EEIWRZE—tF-A=Z+tHED 4/4
Au-yeung Sei Kwok (appointed on 27 February 2017) BETER-_2—+tF-_A=-++tHBZMF) N/A 7~ 38 B
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the members of the Audit (ZE_E-RETZA=T—RLEE %
Committee have met with the Group's external auditors to discuss the B &K EEAEEIIBZEMBITESE B F
annual audit plan. The meeting of the Audit Committee was attended by EE %518l - BEXZE &R E R AR A IMNE X &
the members of the Audit Committee and the external auditors of the BB HFEZNBEZZE S 2 €3 - INEZBED
Company. The external auditors also made presentations to the Audit  JRAIEZ % B € {EHIE R - it if EZEEH
Committee on the findings on key issues addressed in the annual audit. FTEHA-

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company and
discussed with the management of the Group the financial reporting
matters. The Audit Committee also reviewed the internal control and risk
management system of the Group with the internal auditor. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the quarterly results for the period ended 31
March 2016 and 30 September 2016, the half-yearly results for the period
ended 30 June 2016 and the annual results for year ended 31 December
2016 of the Company, and confirmed that the preparation of such
complied with the applicable accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Company, the requirements of the Stock Exchange and adequate
disclosures has been made, before announcement of these results.
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The Audit Committee recommended to the Board to review the re-
appointment of Messrs. Elite Partners CPA Limited as the Company’s
external auditors subject to the Shareholders™ approval at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration paid/payable
to the external auditors of the Group, Elite Partners CPA Limited, is set out
as follows:

ENLZECRRETCENEBRAIERES
BMEBRMARIBRAARINEZEE ZE
o AAERASRERARREERRBFEX
GLHAERTAEER-

% 4 61 B &
RBE-ZE-—R"E+A=+—HILFE 2

SERNAEBIE BT E RS ER
MAERRAE ZMEMT:

Fees paid/payable

Services rendered iR RS B ENER
HK$ 000

T T

Audit services EZ RS 756

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company and ensure that they are
prepared in accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely publication of
such financial statements. The Directors aim to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group's position and prospects.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company, Messrs. Elite
Partners CPA Limited, with regard to their reporting responsibilities on
the Company'’s financial statements is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditors” Report” in this Annual Report.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to the events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The Board therefore continues to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the accounts.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for establishing
and maintaining the Group's internal control system and reviewing their
effectiveness. The Group's internal control system has been designed
for safeguarding assets, maintaining proper accounting records and
ensuring reliability of the financial information. Through the Company’s
internal audit team, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group which covers all material
controls, including operational, financial and compliance controls and risk
management functions.
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The internal audit team of the Company reviews the major operational,
financial and compliance controls and risk management functions of the
Group on a continuing basis and aims to cover all major operations of
the Group on a rotational basis. The internal audit team of the Company
presents their internal audit plan annually to the CEO for approval and
they also discuss and agree their audit plan with the Audit Committee at
the Audit Committee’s meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of company secretary at the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A PERSON FOR
ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Article 86(2) of the Articles sets out that the Company may by ordinary
resolution elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board, or as an addition to the existing Board, subject to the
Articles and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles, no person other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting
unless a written notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to
be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which
such notice is given of his intention to propose such person for election
and also a written notice signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head office or at
the Registration Office provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such written notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven (7)
days and that the period for lodgement of such written notice(s) shall
commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven
(7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information
to its shareholders and investors and discloses information in compliance
with the GEM Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations.

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue with
its shareholders through various means. The Directors host the annual
general meeting each year to meet the shareholders and answer their
enquiries. The Company also updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual, interim and
quarterly reports.

The corporate website of the Company has provided an effective
communication platform to the shareholders and the investors as well as
the general publics.

During the year under review, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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This year’s environmental, social and governance (the “ESG") report is
prepared by the Group to disclose information in relation to the ESG
issues. Despite this report is not comprehensive nor exhaustive, it is the
endeavours of the Group to get as close as possible in compliance with
the requirements under Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The key performance indicators (“KPIs") may at the moment not be as
mature as those disclosed and presented by the other issuers in Hong
Kong, not to mention to be compatible and comparable with international
players. Yet, the Group is dedicated to develop and adopt a higher level of
ESG reporting based on international guidance and standards.

The Board understand that it is important to involve itself in preparing
this ESG report and it has extended its full support to the Secretary of the
Company, who is responsible for the task of compiling this ESG report and
is reporting directly to the board.

We take those having interests in or being affected by the decisions and
activities of the Group as the stakeholders, who may include shareholders,
business partners, employees, suppliers, sub-contractors, consumers,
regulators and the public. As we recognize the importance of engaging
stakeholders in identifying material aspects and KPIs and understand their
views, we take every and all opportunities to communicate with them
in all occasions our environmental, social and governance approach and
performance and are looking forward to their suggestion and comments.

The Group has commissioned itself to become a high-growth player in
pursuing excellence in operations, at the same time we are dedicated to
become a “Green Corporation” that explores business opportunities in
this new and exciting sustainable world. We see no conflict in becoming a
profit making entity simultaneously being a Green Corporation.

During the year 2016, the Group is principally engaged in financial
services business, trading business and information technology business.
Financial services business, includes the finance lease business, the
securities business, and the money lending business.

The geographical location of the Group's businesses situated both in
Hong Kong and the PRC. In Hong Kong, the Group’s headquarter was
located in Wanchai district with a trading outlet at Sheung Shui, the New
Territories. In the PRC the main areas where the operations situate include
Shanghai and Mian Yang in the Sichuan province.
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This ESG report covers the Group’s endeavours and performance during
the year ended 31 December 2016 and four subject areas: workplace
quality, environmental protection, operating practices and community
involvement. Corporate governance is not included here as it has just
been dealt with separately in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” in this Annual Report on pages 24 to 36.

Workplace quality

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed 35 staff (2015: 35). The
Group’s remuneration policy is built on principle of equality, motivating,
performance oriented and market-competitiveness. Remuneration
packages are normally reviewed on an annual basis. Apart from salary
payments, other staff benefits included provident fund contributions,
medical insurance coverage and performance related discretionary
bonuses. A share option scheme is also established to reward and
motivate the employees of the Group.

In order to fully develop staff competence and potential, the Group has an
employee handbook in place for the employees to understand the policy
of the Group. To equip staff members with necessary skills and knowledge
to meet future challenges and professional requirements, especially
those who are involved in regulated businesses and activities, the Group
encourages the employees to attend a wide range of training in the areas
of regulatory requirements and compliance. Subject to the management’s
approval, the Group will subsidize the studying fee of the staff members
with a maximum annual cap, however, the Group may consider granting
more subsidize if it sees fit.

Moreover, plenty of staff activities were organized for employees,
including annual dinner, Christmas party, birthday party, and so on and so
forth. The sense of belonging of employees was enhanced and they have
strong bonding with each other.

By offering competitive remuneration packages and comprehensive fringe
benefits to our employees, our staff turnover rate remains stable, while
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job performance and productivity are maintained at satisfactory levels. BENBFRIRMEBIKF -
Occupational Health and Safety Data: BREfERENMTDEHEIE:

2016 2015 —E-R —Z-1F
Work related fatality 0 0 HEIFEBEBZRCES 0 0
Work injury cases >3 days 0 0 EYZRAZBZIBEZR 0 0
Work injury cases <3 0 0 EPIRZBZIBEZR 0 0
Lost days due to work injury 0 0 IBEXEE 0 0
Work injury rate 0 0 TIkx 0 0

There is no child nor forced labour in the Group's operations. They are in
compliance with the laws of Hong Kong and the PRC in terms of
employment management.
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The Group promotes fair treatment in the workplace. Although the
Group does not have equal opportunity policies or anti-discrimination and
affirmative action policies, the Group encourages unprejudiced behaviour
within the workplace and discourages inappropriate behaviour from
employees, supervisors and independent contractors in regard to the
race, gender, sexual orientation or religious and cultural beliefs of another
person within the Group.

Environmental protection

The Group implements policies and practices that help conserve resources,
improve energy efficiency and raise environmental awareness among
our staff. We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving the natural resources
on Earth. We strive to minimise our environmental impact while ensuring
high standards in our service quality. We focus on paper and toner usage
throughout all of our daily operation and we have always been devoted to
reduce energy consumption as we closely monitor energy consumption at
our offices.

During the year 2016, the Group has no data on air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous and
nonhazardous wastes, etc. nor had the Group discharged hazardous and/
or nonhazardous wastes into water and land.

This year, we purchased A4 sized 80 gsm photocopying paper 50 reams
(2015: 85 reams) and no A3 sized 80 gsm photocopying paper (2015: 2
reams). The Group did not have any other consumption on any other kind
of papers.

Currently, in order to save paper, the Group implements certain
measures such as setting duplex printing as the default mode for most
network printers; reminding employees to practise photocopying wisely;
encouraging the employees to use both sides of paper; separating the
paper waste from other waste for easier recycling; and placing boxes and
trays beside photocopiers as containers to collect single-sided paper for
reuse purpose.

All of the Group's financial reports are printed on FSC certified papers.
The Group will continue to explore opportunities to develop its green
purchasing practices in paper supplies.
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In respect of electricity consumption in Hong Kong: REBZHEEMmMS
Office 1in Office 2 in Shop in
Hong Kong Hong Kong  New Territories
2016 —E-RF District District* District Total
EEE ERE HRE
Month At —BREE ZHRBBE JE &3t
kilowatt hour kilowatt hour kilowatt hour kilowatt hour
TR FRBE F LB FTRE
January —A 1,041 58 2,300 3,399
February - 934 41 1,609 2,584
March = 1,020 37 1,720 2,777
April M A 1,116 45 2,190 3,351
May iA 1,190 39 2,530 3,759
June ~A 1,121 58 3,010 4,189
July + A 1,186 3,798 3,730 8,714
August N\ A 1,146 3,407 3,490 8,043
September A 1,113 3,860 3,880 8,853
October +A 1,262 3,124 3,080 7,466
November +—A 1,057 3,106 2,610 6,773
December +=A 140 2,558 1,950 4,648
2016 Annual Consumption Z—ZE—XEZEHEE 12,326 20,131 32,099 64,556
* Including the consumption in the office of a newly acquired *ORAERZIE-AFLEATHHKERBA
subsidiary in mid-July 2016. RAMAEMNEREE -
Office 1in Office 2 in Shop in
Hong Kong Hong Kong  New Territories
2015 —E-1fF District District District # Total
ERE ERE HAE
Month 287 —RPREER ZHRMEBE JE &3t
kilowatt hour kilowatt hour kilowatt hour kilowatt hour
FTRE FTRE TRE FTRE
January —A 2,361 45 0 2,406
February = 1,858 39 0 1,897
March = 2,006 41 3,280** 5,327
April ™A 1,317 52 3,280%* 4,649
May ®A 1,073 40 3,280%* 4,393
June N A 1,052 71 3,280%* 4,403
July + A 1,241 68 4,500 5,809
August AV:! 1,199 58 3,280 4,537
September A 1,247 61 3,700 5,008
October +A 1,075 58 3,280%* 4,413
November +—A 1,163 59 2,630 3,852
December +=A 923 45 2,300 3,268
2015 Annual Consumption —ZE-HEF2FHEE 16,515 637 32,810 49,962
o Estimated usage > HETAE

# Operations commenced Mid-March 2015
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The total floor area occupied by the Group for its operations in Hong
Kong was 6,304 sq. ft. (2015: 4,554 sq. ft.). The electricity consumption
by the Group was 64,556 kilowatt hour (2015: 49,962 kilowatt hour) in
the reporting year, with an energy intensity of 10.24 kilowatt hour per sg.
ft. (2015: 10.97 kilowatt hour per sq. ft.). As most of the water usage was
included in the management fee of the premises occupied by the Group’s
operations, we have no figure of the Group’s annual consumption,
however, the Group is still conscientious in the conservation of water
resources and encourage the staff members to reduce wastage.

Operating practices

The Group through its subsidiaries has communicated with its suppliers on
the Company’s vision and mission and policies and procedures in respect
of ESG. To be a responsible supplier, the Group has registered as a food
importer/food distributor under the Food Safety Ordinance.

The Group always observes the local laws, rules and regulations at where
its businesses located, as such, the Group applied and was granted and
renewed, a money lenders licence in Hong Kong to carry on business as a
money lender for a period of twelve (12) months from 2 December 2016.

The Board has formally adopted the anti-corruption policies with reference
to the Corruption Prevention Best Practices recommended by the
Independent Commission Against Corruption in the year 2016.

Community involvement

Like in 2015, the Group did not do much in the year 2016 in respect of
the involvement in repaying the community by direct donations to charity
organisations. The Group will continue to explore more opportunities in
contributing to community services.
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The directors of the Company present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The subsidiaries are engaged in the financial services business, trading
business and information technology business. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 58 to 64.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial periods/years, as extracted
from the published audited financial statements and restated/reclassified
as appropriate, is set out on pages 148 to 149. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share options and
convertible bonds during the year, together with the reasons therefor, are
set out in notes 26, 35 and 29 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed shares during the year ended 31
December 2016.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 41 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$1,665,000 (2015:
HKS$Nil). This included the Company’s share premium account amounting
to approximately HK$923,103,000 (2015: HK$884,832,000) which
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company, provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers, respectively, during the financial
year is as follows:

BE HENBOLHERMN

ARBAFEFAMNBRAARBE-_T—KF
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fE
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MBREMTNRGARRESEH K -

of fit 5 i & e

RZEBE—XF+_A=Z+—H AQAREH
EHREREENENTHS IR A1,665000
BLT(ZE—AF ZT) EFREAQAH
% 17 % {8 88 49923,103,000/8 T (=& — R F:
884,832,000 8 L) c W BB EE D KK EE
% ARARDERENENERBTELBRESE
HMERS AIMEFREAHSRTFARAIRE-

TREFPKHER

EREZEEFRHEEBARVYBFEED
AEBEHEERREEEBERDT:

B P16

Percentage of the Group's total sales

EREEAHEET L
2016 2015
—E-AF —T—hF
Largest customer BAEPF 43.26% 14.77%
Five largest customers hABFHBEE 74.55% 39.92%
Percentage of the Group's total purchase
EREEARBEESL
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
Largest supplier BAHRER 48.59% 17.91%
Five largest suppliers R FER 4B R 85.48% 51.90%

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group'’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the
date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre

Independent non-executive Directors:

Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann

Ng Kay Kwok

Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth (resigned on 27 February 2017)
Au-yeung Sei Kwok (appointed on 27 February 2017)

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association,
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann to retire at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company and being eligible, she offer herself for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company. All INEDs of the Company are
appointed for a term of one year. According to the articles of association
of the Company, all Directors (except the Chairman and the managing
director) are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs of the Company an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and, as at the date of this Annual Report, still considers
them to be independent.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 22 to 23 of this Annual
Report.
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DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

All INEDs are appointed for a term of one year and are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's articles of
association.

The two executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson, and
Mr. Lau Chi Yan, Pierre have each entered into a two-year service contract
with the Company commencing from 24 August 2012 respectively.

No Director had a service contract with the Company, which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company in the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 3 May 2012 and was effective from that
date. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption.

As at 31 December 2016, there were 233,390,855 share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. Based on these outstanding
share options, the total number of shares available for issue is
233,390,855, which represents approximately 14.41% and 14.41% of
the total issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2016
and the date of this report respectively.
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Details of the movements of the share options under the Share Option KRR » B LB AE T 818 T = 8 5t i I &

Scheme during the year were as follows: BT
Number of share options
BEBRENY
Price of the Adjusted
Cancelled/  Outstanding Date of Exercise shares Original  exercise price
Outstanding as Granted Exercised Lapsed asat grant of period of before exercise price  of the share
at during during During 31 December the share the share thedate of the share options after
1January 2016 theperiod  the period the period 2016 options options of grant options  open offer
RZg-RF BE DHRER
RZB8-X¥ tZA B% Bx BRE ZBHE
-A-H mER  Zt+-H BREZ BREz RU8H ZRE  BEBR
Name #E MATE REARYE REATE H#/XN MROE  BEAH TEE  HZRE THEE  BTRE
(Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 1)
(r&2) (K1) GBI
per share per share per share
&R 88 &R
Executive director YTES
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson KEE 100,000,000 - - - 100,000,000 19/8/2015 19/8/2015 - 0.147 0.147 -
18/8/2025
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre Bl 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000 19/8/2015  19/8/2015 - 0147 0.147 -
18/8/2025
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive director
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRE 16,483 - - - 16,483 17172013 17172013 - 0.010 3360 2.130
16/1/2023
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 19/82015 19/8/2015 - 0.147 0.147 -
18/8/2025
Ng Kay Kwok REE 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 19/8/2015 19/8/2015 - 0.147 0.147 -
18/8/2025
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth E-h 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 19/8/2015 19/8/2015 - 0.147 0.147 -
18/8/2025
Employees and other EERHfR
eligible participants RERSHE
Employees EE 42,367 - - 14,126 28,241 3052012 30/5/2012 - 0.017 5.680 3.600
29/52022
40,000,000 - - - 40,000,000 19/8/2015 19/8/2015 - 0.147 0.147 -
18/8/2025
Other elighble particpants ~~ H & & 1% 332,003 - - - 332,003 3052012 30552012- 0.017 5680 3.600
28% 29/5/2022
14,128 - - - 14,128 17/112013 17172013 - 0.010 3360 2.130
16/1/2023
70,000,000 - - - 70,000,000 19/8/2015  19/8/2015 - 0147 0.147 -
18/8/2025

233,404,981 - - 14,126 233,390,855




Report of the Directors
EFEREE

Notes:

1. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme, the
number and the exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of capitalisation issue, rights issue, subdivision or consolidation of
the shares of the Company, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

2. The price of the shares of the Company before the date of the grant of the
share options is the closing price of the shares of the Company as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on the trading day immediately before the date on
which the share options were granted.

Save as disclosed above, at the date of this report, no other share options
were exercised subsequent to the balance sheet date.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no share option was granted
by the Company.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 31
December 2016 was HK$Nil (2015: approximately HK$26,400,000) of
which the Group recognised a share option expense of HK$Nil (2015:
approximately HK$26,400,000) during the year.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the directors and chief executive of the
Company and/or any of their respective associates had the following
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and/or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or the GEM Listing Rules:
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Interests and short positions in the shares and the underlying
shares of the share options and the convertible bonds of the
Company as at 31 December 2016

(i)

(i)

Long positions in the shares of the Company:

Number of the shares interested and nature of interest

RZZB-AE+ZA=Z+-BREXATRHG A
RELXBRERTRRESZFAIREARSG 2
EERXA

() RERARGBZHEFR:

Approximate

BERG2ROBERERZEE percentage of the

Founder of total issued share

a discretionary capital of the

Personal trust Total Company

HEDRB

—H2ERER BITRABEZ

Name of directors EEHR BA Z Bl A By BMAE S (%)

Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson REE 557,814 98,437,500 98,995,314 6.11%
(note)
(B 3E)

Lau Chi Yan, Pierre 2B 3,984,375 - 3,984,375 0.25%

Note: B 7 -

As at the Latest Practicable Date, 98,437,500 Shares were owned by
Ivana Investment Limited (“lvana”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands owned as to 100% by CW Limited, which in turn is wholly-
owned by Asiatrust Limited, a trust company in its capacity as the trustee
of a discretionary trust, the founder (as defined in the SFO) of which is
Mr. Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson (“Mr. Cheung”) and the discretionary objects
which are family members of Mr. Cheung (including Mr. Cheung himself).
Accordingly, Mr. Cheung is deemed to be interested in the relevant Shares of
the purpose of the SFO. Mr. Cheung is also personally interested in 557,814
Shares.

Long positions in the underlying shares of the share options

P& % EEE A7 B 8 - Ivana Investment Limited ([ivanal)
% 598,437,500 & B fn - H AR EEE L & S MR
Z A& I CW Limited # 5 100% 1 & + i CW Limited
Asiatrust Limitedd & # & ° Asiatrust Limited /5 — B E 52
Al AEEEAZIAAN ZE2EEREZEARA(ER
RESFRBEKIAREELEE(REE]D  ZaA
AREEZREKE(BEREEAAN) Bt - BE
FHELBEEKD  REEWRBRABERG T # A #E
Zm o REAE A AEAS57,814 AR M0 % o

(i) RBEFAAEBLAEREFTARLELRE

granted under the share option scheme of the Company: REmRMPREBRGZHFR:
Approximate
Number of Number of  percentage of
Date of Exercise Exercise the share the total  the total issued
grant of the period of the price options underlying  share capital of
share options share options  pershare  outstanding shares the Company
ERDT
HARTEZ BRTRALH
BRBRE BRBRE R ERBRE HERG ZEHEIH
Name of directors EEpg ZBEAH ZTEH fEE B E Yy (%)

HKS
BT
Cheung Wai Yin, Wison R E 19/8/2015  19/8/2015 - 18/8/2025 0.147 100,000,000 100,000,000 6.172%
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre 2ELC 19/8/2015  19/8/2015 - 18/8/2025 0.147 20,000,000 20,000,000 1.235%
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann - BRI 17012013 17/1/2013 - 16/1/2023 2.130 16,483 16,483 0.001%
19/8/2015  19/8/2015 - 18/8/2025 0.147 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.062%
Ng Kay Kwok REHE 19/8/2015  19/8/2015 - 18/8/2025 0.147 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.062%
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth BT 19/8/2015  19/8/2015 - 18/8/2025 0.147 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.062%
(resigned on (RZT—+F
27 February 2017) —AZ++H
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(iii) Long positions in the underlying shares of the convertible (i) RAQ T TERESFM S RBERD 2 F
bonds of the Company: i
Approximate
percentage of the
Principal Number total issued share
amount of the of the total capital of the
convertible bonds underlying shares Company
HARQFE
Name of the holder of ARRESFF AHRRES ERITREALE
the convertible bonds BEABR ZERELHE HERGOAH ZHHEI T
HKS 7 7T (%)
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson REE 110,000,000 297,619,048 18.37
Note: These convertible bonds (originally due on 12 August 2011 and M mEamREs(BREZZE——FN\A
extended to 12 August 2017) were issued by the Company on 12 TZHEE-Z—-+F AT ZHIH)
August 2008 as part of the consideration to acquire the forestry DARRARRZZENFNA+ZBBITE
business. They are unlisted, interest-free and convertible into the BREMAREBEZBL>RE BIELT -
shares of the Company at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.3696 RERABKEHABRBRKESTR0.3696HF
per share of the Company (subject to adjustment according to the T(RBAIRBRESR 2GR FHE) R
terms of the convertible bonds). The interest is held by Ivana, a BMARQRRD ZEEEAIvanafF A ©
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands owned as to 100% HARKBELZBESIAMK LI ZAR A
by CW Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Asiatrust Limited, CW Limited# 5 100%# &= + M CW Limited £
a trust company in its capacity as the trustee of a discretionary trust, Asiatrust Limited 2 & # A ° Asiatrust Limited
the founder (as defined in the SFO) of which is Mr. Cheung and B—HEELRAR AE2EEREZXTA
the discretionary objects which are family members of Mr. Cheung ZERERAZABA(EERBSFRBEE
(including Mr. Cheung himself). BGADARRTE  RRABRTEZREK
B(BERILERA) -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the directors B EXHEEEZEN KT —X"F+_A=+—

and chief executive of the Company and/or any of their respective
associates had any interest and short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and/or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the GEM Listing Rules.
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FIEEZTBZENBBEARARALR SEME
MR EE (EEREFRBEKRIEXVE) Z
Bein  HHEAROD REEET BECLBEREAR
ARBESRMEGRIIFEI2EREFEZER
it RARIEE R E GO FEXVEE AR £
BRABMEARRR RERXMAEAERE AR -



Report of the Directors

EFETHRSS

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Scheme” above, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2016 was the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries or associated corporations, a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors and chief executive of the Company (including their
respective spouse and children under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of the shares or underlying shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any of its associated corporations.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons (not being the directors
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

(i) Long positions in the shares of the Company:

SSWER D K FilE &R

BREXTEZERBEOEBEBERONER] —H R
[BEBRESS] —BAEEEIN ARAH
HEMMBARLABEZBNBEE T —RF
T A=+ — B L5 A AT S
ZH EARREENESTBRAB(BRERSE
FEAZEBRTARATZFROAEBEBEAR
NAREAEMBBOEE 2 B B R ERE
78 o

F2RRN R A SR 0 K8 RE AR 173 69 18 &=

)\5/3:—\, NE+_A=+—"H WUTALEER
NAIEZER T THRAB)RARQR KL HIEB
HXTAEF‘T?’Eﬁﬂﬁ?m%&iﬁﬁﬂmfﬂ%XVjﬁfﬁZ&%
3O ZIEXNBARMARABHEE  KEZHEREAR
AIREESFLBEKIEIBKRETCHFEE TR

frEmIRE

() REIABRBZHA:

Approximate
percentage of the total

Number of the issued share capital of the

Name of shareholders Capacity and nature of interest shares interested Company (%)

ERATERITRA

BRE® B RERME REREZ2RAOHE BEHAB I (%)

Asiatrust Limited (Note) (Kff 5%) Trustee 98,437,500 6.08

ZFEA

CW Limited (Note)(Ff 5%) Controlled corporation 98,437,500 6.08
Pl

Ivana Beneficial owner 98,437,500 6.08
E=xEBA

Note: The interest is held by Ivana, a company incorporate in the British Mist: ZEmBvanais B - HARERBEXES

Virgin Islands owned as to 100% by CW Limited, which in turn is
wholly-owned by Asiatrust Limited, a trust company in its capacity
as the trustee of a discretionary trust, the founder (as defined in the
SFO) of which is Mr. Cheung and the discretionary objects of which
are family members of Mr. Cheung (including Mr. Cheung himself).

AL 2 AR - B CW Limited % A 100%
# %+ M CW Limited F1 Asiatrust Limited 2 &
A © Asiatrust Limited 5 — B {E5E 27 B
PRELZIZTAA ZEEEIEZEHA
(EEREBHFLBEKRA AREE 5
ABREEZRBEKE(BRIEREERA) -
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(i) Long positions in the underlying shares of the convertible (i)

bonds of the Company:

Name of the holder of

i

Principal amount of

Number of
the total

RAERBTRRESASRABERD 25

Approximate
percentage of the
total issued share

capital of the

the convertible bonds Nature of Interest the convertible bonds  underlying shares Company
AR
R ES ERITRALE
THRERESEFEEAER EatE ZEEH HERGEE ZBANBED
HK$ (%)
BT
Asiatrust Limited (Note 1)(Mff5£1)  Trustee 110,000,000 297,619,048 18.37
ZEA
CW Limited (Note 1)(F 7 1) Controlled corporation 110,000,000 297,619,048 18.37
X HEE
lvana Beneficial owner 110,000,000 297,619,048 18.37
EnBAA
Yihua Enterprise Limited Beneficial owner 40,000,000 173,913,043 10.73
RECEERAA E=xEBA
Cheng Jun (Note 2) Controlled corporation 40,000,000 173,913,043 10.73
X ACEY) XmEE
Gao Yun Feng (Note 2) Controlled corporation 40,000,000 173,913,043 10.73
e E(fE2) XEEE

Note 1: The interest is held by Ivana, a company incorporate in the British
Virgin Islands owned as to 100% by CW Limited, which in turn is
wholly-owned by Asiatrust Limited, a trust company in its capacity
as the trustee of a discretionary trust, the founder (as defined in the
SFO) of which is Mr. Cheung and the discretionary objects of which
are family members of Mr. Cheung (including Mr. Cheung himself).

Note 2: The interest is held by Yihua Enterprise Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands owned as to 50% by Mr.
Cheng Jun and 50% by Mr. Gao Yun Feng.

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executive of the
Company are not aware that there is any party who, as at 31
December 2016, had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

MsE1: ZiESAvanal B - EAR KB E L B 8
S 2 AT CW Limited # B 100% 25 - M
CW Limited i Asiatrust Limited & & # A ° Asiatrust
Limited 5B — R ERLRAA B2EELTZZE
AN ZEEEAZANA(EEREFFRBEK
PhhRL:E IHABREEZRERE (B
FEREEERAN) ©

M2 ZBEHAEECEBRAABEE Z2AAAR
EBRELBESAMAIZAR  23l@aEE &
ERESEIEEEFH50%K%50% ©
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Report of the Directors
EFEREE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Code set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the financial year under review, except for the
deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1 and A.4.2. Detailed information of
such deviations and their respective considered reasons as well as other
information on the corporate governance practices of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this
Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the total issued share capital
of the Company as required under the GEM Listing Rules throughout the
financial period under review and up to the date of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016 have been audited by Elite Partners, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for their
re-appointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
10 March 2017
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TO THE MEMBERS OF MERDEKA FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

B AASAE RS HER B R AT A FRANE]
ELITE PARTNERS CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Merdeka
Financial Services Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group’) set out on pages 58 to 147, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statement in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Impairment assessment of finance lease receivables

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had finance lease receivables of
approximately HK$1,901 million, as set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements. During the year ended 31 December 2016, no
impairment had been provided by the Group on the finance lease
receivables.

We had identified impairment assessment of finance lease receivables as
a key audit matter because significant management judgement had to be
made for the assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. (e.g. the
credit history and estimated future cash flows).

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our major audit procedures to address the management’s impairment
assessment of finance lease receivables included the following:

o We tested the effectiveness on the control environment in respect
of the finance lease receivables, including the Group’s existing
provision policy.

o We discussed with management if there is any indicator of
impairment of the finance lease receivables and accessed the
reasonableness of management’s assessment, in particular, those
balances had been past due.

o We tested on a sample basis on the settlement made by lessees
during the year and their subsequent settlement with reference the
repayment schedule.
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Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Directors and Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determined is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’'s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yip Kai Yin with practising certificate number P05131.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 10 March 2017

10% Floor,
8 Observatory Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—ZT— A "F T+ -_A=T—HIEFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hEF
Notes HKS$ 000 HK$' 000
B FExT FET
REVENUE WA 6 256,232 131,398
Cost of sales & B A (229,411) (112,685)
Gross profit El 26,821 18,713
Other income, other gains and losses Hapg A~ Efblezs kB 18 6 (7,679) (206)
Operating expenses BRERX (22,191) (15,247)
Administrative expenses THER (12,824) (9,603)
Impairment of forest concessions AR AT R B - (29,000)
Impairment of trade receivables g 5 EWHIERE (3) (1,671)
Impairment of goodwill A - (37,159)
Written off of bad debts x HE i R (117) (2,233)
Written off of inventories FE MR (435) (1,249)
Equity-settled share option expenses DREHEREEBRERE - (26,400)
Loss from operations LRI 7B (16,428) (104,055)
Finance costs & B AR 7 (19,782) (16,518)
Share of results of an associate DB E DR EE - 1,185
LOSS BEFORE TAX R B AT 5 18 8 (36,210) (119,388)
Income tax e 11 (3,938) (4,004)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR rEEEB (40,148) (123,392)
Loss for the year attributable to: R AFEEE:
Owners of the Company ANEIREHERA (42,617) (124,944)
Non-controlling interests FEE R ER 2,469 1,552
(40,148) (123,392)
LOSS PER SHARE BREE
Basic and diluted EARAREE 13 (HK$% 7£0.026)  (HK$757£0.124)
The notes on pages 58 to 147 form part of these financial statements. FS8EV4TH 2Tt FH B HRE 2 — &
P

77



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HOBAREMEENAR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZ—ZT— A "F T+ -_A=T—HBIEFE

2016 2015
—E-XE —E-—REF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTExT FH& T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR rEEER (40,148) (123,392)
Other comprehensive loss: Hh 2HEE:
[tems that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: HENHEEN DA Em KX ZIEE -
Exchange difference on translating BE NGB A A
of financial statements of overseas subsidiaries LB RENER 8 (14,689) (5,512)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FORTHE YEAR A E2HEAE B (54,837) (128,904)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: EEE2HmBER:
Owners of the Company RNAGIRERES A (51,098) (129,024)
Non-controlling interests FE 7R IR M = (3,739) 120
(54,837) (128,904)
The notes on pages 58 to 147 form part of these financial statements. FE8E14TH 2 MM It EM B HRE 2 — &
P
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

#n 6 B B iR R B R

As at 31 December 2016 R—_Z— &+ _-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-REF
Notes HKS$ 000 HK$' 000
B & FExT FBT
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BE kR 14 4,664 5,841
Statutory deposit EEERE 510 -
Intangible assets BRAE 16 2,805 -
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 18 1,475 10,036
Finance lease receivables MEME RN KE 22 1,869,445 530,520
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 1,878,899 546,397
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 7E 20 2,726 3,952
Trade receivables Z 5 EWE 21 6,867 4,854
Loan receivables JE W B 3 23 3,300 7,451
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B RIE - R e Rk H M GRIR 24 62,853 13,790
Finance lease receivables MEBE R KE 22 31,873 488,077
Bank balances -Trust accounts RITHE#H-EERP 25 5,206 -
Bank balances and cash - general accounts RITESRRBEE - —REP 25 63,347 52,839
Total current assets MEEERE 176,172 570,963
Total assets EERE 2,055,071 1,117,360
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BREZREE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &2 FREHEE AELERRER
Share capital % 7 26 1,620 1,225
Reserves ] 27 1,681 14,454
3,301 15,679
Non-controlling interests JE AR R 88,039 68,015
Total equity ERAE 91,340 83,694
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEGE 28 463 =
Convertible bonds ARRES 29 - 100,205
Promissory notes EH 2R 30 24,238 47,627
Finance lease obligation due more than one year 7 — F 14 2| #1 7 88 & 7 & & 4E 31 1,026 1,968
Bank borrowings due more than one year R—FERIPZRITER 32 1,691,649 477,600
Total non-current liabilities *khRBEELEE 1,717,376 627,400




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
OUBIAIRIRE

As at 31 December 2016 R—_Z—~NE+_-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RF —T-hfF
Notes HK$ 000 HK$’ 000
B 5 THERT FTHET

Current liabilities hEAE
Bank borrowings due within one year R—FRE B2 RITER 32 4,036 374,224
Finance lease obligation due within one year R—FRE 25 EHERE 31 942 899
Convertible bonds AR ES 29 114,400 -
Promissory notes RS 30 26,164 -
Trade payables B 5 &R RIE 33 40,425 19,869
Other payables and accruals H A & T FRIE K JE & FRB 34 57,299 7,772
Tax payables JE 3 78 18 3,089 3,502
Total current liabilities hREAEAE 246,355 406,266
Total liabilities EEHEE 1,963,731 1,033,666
Total equity and liabilities BREEZREBELEE 2,055,071 1,117,360
Net current (liabilities) / assets RE(AE)  EEFE (70,183) 164,697
Net assets BEEFHE 91,340 83,694

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 10 March

2017.

Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson

REE
Director

EF

The notes on pages 58 to 147 form part of these financial statements.

N

Lau Chi Yan, Pierre

28
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—ZT— A "F T+ -_A=T—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Equity

ANARBEEAES
Equity
component
Share of Capital Exchange Non-
premium  Contributed  convertible ~ Share option reduction  fluctuation ~ Accumulated controlling
Issued capital account surplus bonds reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
TRERES BLBRE RAHE EXKD
ERTRE ROEEER BABRH EZHS i (1] 1] RitEE @i FRRER [ $:3 5
HK$ 000 HKS' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HK$'000
Thx ThT FAT Thx Thx TAT FET ThEx Thx TAT ThEx
¥ * " ¥ ¥ * "
Asat 1 January 2015 —T-5%-f-H 30,643 810,692 66,710 22,728 963 132,931 (54) (1,051,679) 12,934 (9,472) 3,462
Changesinequity for 2015 ZZ—REE 7 ERZH:
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - - (124,944) (124,944) 1,552 (123,392)
Other comprehensive loss Ht2EBR - - - - - - (4,080) - (4,080) (1,432) (5,512)
Total comprehensive loss ZEAER = - - - - - (4,080) (124,944) (129,024) 120 (128,904)
Issue of new
shares upon placing RERETHRN 76 8,868 - - - - - - 8,944 - 8,944
Issue of offer shares BORERD 766 65,272 - - - - - - 66,038 - 66,038
Acquisition of subsidiaries W — R E A E - - - 30,387 - - - - 30,387 77,367 107,754
Capital reduction
of issued shares BEARHEREIR (30,260) - - - - 30,260 - - - - -
Grant of share options RUELBRE - - - - 26,400 - - - 26,400 - 26,400
Asat31December 2015 ~ R=B-EF+=f
and 1 January 2016 =+-HEk
—E-X¥-A-AH 1,225 884,832 66,710 53,115 27,363 163,191 (4,134) (1,176,623) 15,679 68,015 83,694
Changes in equity for 2016 =Z-XE2EHEEH:
Loss for the year REERR - - - - - - - (42,617) (42,617) 2,469 (40,148)
Other comprehensive loss £ 2 E 18 - - - - - - (8:415) (66) (8.481) (6,208) (14,689)
Total comprehensive loss 2 T#F#E - - - - - - (8.415) (42,683) (51,098) (3,739) (54,837)
Issue of new
shares upon placing BERRTHRE 395 38,271 - - - - - - 38,666 - 38,666
Forfeiture of share options % (i # - - - - (35) - = 35 = = =
Dividend to
non-controlling interest  FERERZRE - - - - - - - - - (6,666) (6,666)
Contribution for
formation of a subsidiary
from non-controlling FRRER TR
interests RI-BHEAR - = - - - - - - - 18,036 18,036
Disposal of asubsidiary ~ HE-EHEAT - - - - - - 54 - 54 12,393 12,447
RoB-A%E
As at 31 December 2016 +=A=t+-AH 1,620 923,103 66,710 53,115 21,328 163,191 (12,495  (1,219.271) 3,301 88,039 91,340
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately ~— * hERFRERBEBRBERGEVMBMRABRKNES

HK$1,681,000 (2015: (HK$14,454,000)) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The notes on pages 58 to 147 form part of these financial statements.

f# 1% 491,681,000 7t (= T — F F : (14,454,000 7%
7))

FE8E147TE AKX EMEHRE 2 — 3P
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEeIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZ—ZT— A "F T+ -_A=T—HBIEFE

2016 2015
—E-XF —TAF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
fif THERT FTHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEBEBERE
Loss before tax B 1% A 185 18 (36,210) (119,388)
Adjustments for: JHEE
Finance costs AE KA 19,477 16,518
Interest income FEHA (91 (100)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME- BERRENE 2,161 1,831
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME BERSEZER - 13
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHRBARZER 10,370 -
Amortisation of deferred assets BT & B 8N - 82
Gain on bargain purchase Wi —
arising from acquisition of a subsidiary MEBAREENZERE K& - (2,231)
Impairment of forest concessions AR R R (B - 29,000
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 RN RIERE - 1,671
Impairment of goodwill 2R (E - 37,159
Impairment of inventories GFERE - 113
Written off of bad debts R BR 1 B8R 117 2,233
Written off of inventories FEMEE 435 1,249
Loss on promissory notes HEEMEMEE
arising on set off against other financial asset EENEALERER - 464
Loss on early repayment of promissory notes REEERLERZERE 493 2,549
Equity-settled share option expenses IREE SR BEBRERX - 26,400
Share of results of an associate Akl A/NETE - - (1,185)
(3,248) (3,622)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories FERD /(1) 662 (4,202)
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables 2 5 W EIER LD (3 m) 766 (2,247)
Decrease / (increase) in loan receivables EWE R /() 4,151 (4,231)
(Increase) / decrease in finance lease receivables BLE T E B Y R IE () R (990,654) 143,098
Increase in prepayments, BRRIE - EZE
deposits and other receivables Ko E At fE MR ZRIE S N (51,571) (6,738)
Decrease in bank balances - trust account RITHES - FERP R D 714 =
Increase in trade payables B 5 FE {5 FRIE L N 13,595 12,094
Increase in other payables and accruals H A A 3ROE K FE RT AR S N 52,144 20,983
Net cash (used in) / generated from operations meEY (A / EE2REFHE (973,441) 155,135
Income taxes paid EFTEH (3,599) (2,322)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities & & ¥4 (FH) /B4 2B & F58 (977,040) 152,813




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
OIREMNER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—ZT— A AF+-_A=T—HIEFE

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T-hfF
Notes HKS$ 000 HK$' 000
Bt &E TERT FTHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHRERE
Interest received B KA 8 91 100
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE BERE (1,037) (585)
Disposal / (purchases) of available-for-sale investments & /(B E)#H{EHE 2% & 8,399 (1,475)
Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries WHENBAR RS RLFE 39 (3,613) (38,435)
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities # & EEEE /(FTH) 2B L F58 3,840 (40,395)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHRERE
Interest paid on bank FRITERK
borrowings and finance lease obligation FEIEHERESNZFE (157) (141)
Proceeds from open offer of shares RABERNDAERE - 66,038
Proceeds from placing of shares e & R 10 BT 15 58 38,666 8,944
New bank borrowings raised L RITIE R 1,307,265 116,112
Redemption of convertible bonds EEA®RES - =
Repayments of bank borrowings BERTER (366,143) (260,869)
Repayments of promissory notes BEALER (3,000) (20,000)
Repayments of finance lease obligation ERERERERIE (786) (773)
Dividend to non-controlling interest FERERZRE (6,666) =
Contribution for formation of R 2
a subsidiary from non-controlling interests EE K — R A A 18,036 =
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities @& EBEE /(FTH) 2R & F 5 987,215 (90,689)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B RBR£ZEEBEE L MTE 14,015 21,729
Bank balances and cash - general accounts
at the beginning of the year FMRITERKRRE - —REP 52,839 32,207
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net AN B SR 5 B R 28 (3,507) (1,097)
BANK BALANCES AND CASH - GENERAL
ACCOUNTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR FRETEBRRE - —RIRF 63,347 52,839




Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZ—ZT— A "F T+ -_A=T—HBIEFE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 1. LTEM
The Company is a limited company incorporated in the Cayman rpaln—BRAEHEFMRIZE
Islands, its registered office is located at the offices of Cricket R~ &) - H 8 5 & Gz 5 Cricket Square,
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is located at KY1-1111, Cayman Islands + i £ 2 & 3 #b 24
Room 1502, Chinachem Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, BN BBETE LT B178 =AMt 2
Wanchai, Hong Kong. E%1502 = o
The directors consider that the Company’s immediate holding BEERR/ARAZEEZEER ARG R KEE
company and ultimate controlling parent company is Ivana % & A A] Alvana Investments Limited + H % 7
Investments Limited, which is a private company incorporated in EBREZBESTEMK L ZFLART -
British Virgin Islands.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the principal activity HE-ZZ - "+ A=+T—HBLFE"
of the Company was investment holding. The principal activities ARAMEZEBRIREZER MHEQ
of the subsidiaries comprised of trading business, financial services ANEZEXEBROREEIER RRBXE
business and information technology business. BREMBRES -
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ITEEHHBRIHE
(a) Basis of preparation (a) mBEE
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in REGRAVBREDIRBE S SEA
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting rE((BEASHMAST)EHBZHRA
Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all EAEBUEREER([F SR
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting SR (R E A E A E R &S
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") BmEER BAEASFEN(TEALAS
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of SRR RZR)REB QG2
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) and the disclosure BRERERE ZFHLEEUBFREIT
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. BrEBBERXSMARRARAIZER
The consolidated financial statements also comply with the BHEEMMAA(TRIZER EmAER]) 2
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the i FR B TR G SL c IR T ET RISHE R B
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The 78 B TS R 5 AR BI DA\ B R £R B 4R 5 B
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing BHRRERNZERMFIHE -
Rules”). The adoption of new and revised HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared REMBmERIIARLKAEN REF
under historical cost convention except for certain financial HEE HETEeRIAEDRAFEE
instruments which are measured at fair values. Historical cost B E BEHAA—MRERIKBREE
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given FItREBzAFEE:
in exchange for assets.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the RERHEGEEHBREK NA2GES
directors of the Company have given consideration to the EZREAEERRRHE S  RE
future liquidity of the Group in light of the following: (i) The THBER:(WVBE_T—XR"F+=
Group incurred a net loss of approximately HK$40,148,000 A=+—HIEFE KXEEHBEEYD
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the Group’s 40,148,000 B TH BB FE RN _=Z
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately —AFTZ A=+ —HASENRH
HK$70,183,000 as at 31 December 2016; and (ii) The BEBEBEREEE70,183,000%
outstanding principal amount of convertible bonds of T RMAMBRESFM R RS
approximately HK$124,068,000 will be matured on 12 #9124,068,000 TR = —EF N\

August 2017. A+=RHEH-
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

These conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore it may be unable
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business. As of the date when the consolidated
financial statements are authorised for issue, as disclosed in
note 43(1), the Company entered into a supplemental deed
with the holder to extend the maturity date of the convertible
bonds for a further three years to 12 August 2020. Under
this circumstance, the directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016 on a going concern
basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for future liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities to current
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZ—T— A "F T+ -_A=T—HBILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
where the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

3 has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiaries and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of over the years are
included in the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other member of Group.

All intragroup transaction balance, income and expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.

ZEHBERIBZE @

(b)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—ZT— A AF+-_A=T—HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9]

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition-date
fair values, except that:

o a deferred tax asset or liability arising from the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business
combination and the potential tax effects of temporary
differences and carryforwards of an acquiree that
exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the
acquisition are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 12 Income Tax;

o assets or liabilities relating to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits;

o liabilities or equity instruments relating to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see
accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZ—T— A "F T+ -_A=T—HBILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9]

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests” proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRSs.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—ZT— A AF+-_A=T—HIEFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9]

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, or HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,
as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Goodwill

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
whenever there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

(d)
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Over the lease term
20% to 33%
25%

Leasehold improvement
Computer and office equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses or at revalued amounts,
being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less
subsequent accumulated amortisation and any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Assets held by a lessee under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at the lower of the fair value of the leased
assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease obligation.
Finance charges, which represent the difference between the
total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets
acquired, are charged to profit or loss over the term of the
relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.

Rentals payable by a lessee under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating unit, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired. Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

(h)
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(@

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value through profit
or loss are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

Other than investments in subsidiaries and associates, the
Group’s financial assets are classified into (i) loans and
receivables and (ii) available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

1) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0]

Financial instruments (Continued)
) Loans and receivables

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as (a) loans and receivables; (b) held-
tomaturity investments; or (c) financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investment revaluation reserve. Where the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
guoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEHHRBZR®@
(Continued)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued) (i) =WMIEBE
Impairment of financial assets TAEERE
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Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. These assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the investment have been affected.
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For available-for-sale equity investments that were measured
at fair value at subsequent reporting dates, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment FMEEMEmEE 2 EBMEZRR
could include: B

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;

the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties; or

observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, including:

(i)  adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group (eg an increased number
of delayed payments or an increased number of
credit card borrowers who have reached their
credit limit and are paying the minimum monthly
amount); or

(i) national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group
(eg an increase in the unemployment rate in the
geographical area of the borrowers, a decrease
in property prices for mortgages in the relevant
area, a decrease in oil prices for loan assets to
oil producers, or adverse changes in industry
conditions that affect the borrowers in the
group).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0]

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For finance lease receivables, they are assessed as to whether
objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
receivables that are individually significant, and individually or
collectively for receivables that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed receivables,
whether significant or not, it includes the receivables in a
group of receivables with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Receivables
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are reversed against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, convertible bonds and promissory
notes are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0]

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method (Continued)

Convertible bonds contains liability and equity components

The component parts of the convertible bonds issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. Where the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible bonds, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion
and amortised over the lives of the convertible bonds using
the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method (Continued)

Convertible bonds contains liability and equity components
(Continued)

When the Company extinguishes a convertible bonds before
maturity through an early redemption or repurchase in
which the original conversion privileges are unchanged, the
Company allocates the consideration paid and any transaction
costs for the repurchase or redemption to the liability and
equity components of the instrument at the date of the
transaction. The method used in allocating the consideration
paid and transaction costs to the separate components
is consistent with that used in the original allocation to
the separate components of the proceeds received by the
Company when the convertible instrument was issued. The
gain or loss relating to the equity component is recognised in
equity. The gain or loss relating to the liability component is
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in
first-out. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of bank balances and cash for the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(U]

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided that those differences relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary differences
or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(U]

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future or, in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Income tax (Continued)

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

° the same taxable entity; or

o different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

i)

ii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at the date
of acquisition are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured. After
their initial recognition at fair value, such contingent
liabilities are recognised at the higher of the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate. Contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination that cannot be reliably fair
valued or were not present obligations at the date of
acquisition.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are carried at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.
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2.

(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

iii)

(n)

a)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of an outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of an outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Group;

ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(n) Related parties (Continued)

iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in a).

vi) A person identified in a) i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(o) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably as follows:

i) Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers

and the title is passed.

ii)  Finance income under finance leases (the Group

as the lessor)

Finance income is recognised on a pattern reflecting
a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net

investment in the finance lease.

iii) Rendering of services

Services income is recognised when the services are

rendered.

(o)

iv) —E%E—%EHE’U’E\.%
NE - MBE—EBAER—
**—EE/]%&M/'\ ®

vV ZEBAAKEHEBASK
BB IMNERNESRE
BRI G E

vi) EZ%*;‘&a?%a)Ffr (/N i 2
)~ SRR o

vi)  Ra) )FTEBIALHERS
ik%%&%&*%(ﬁ
ZERBAREIEER
ABHEP—FKE -

vii) B SEMBEENIM
DA WNETICRA TS
BZBARRHKEEER
AB R -

ERALZBEEYRERBIEE
HEREHREHEBEARSSVYE L

MEAAST EMEAAFEZZERE
8 -

L PN

g A TR B AR 2 A R
SR AT B R A KK
AR B 30 P 38 0 T 5177 A SR
R AR (0 ) B ¢

i) HEEmR
HESmP A #E 2Rk &E
?&iﬁ;?&ﬁjﬁﬁ% CHEARHLEEE
mRNTTFEFPRENER 26
— .

i) BMEHEAEETAEREWRA(KE
EERHEHAAN)
BEE AT IER REREAAR

MEEENKEFRTHOR
K2 AR -

i)  RHERK
PR 7 Y A T 7

_7J°

B 75 2 4 1K B 7



Notes to the Financial Statements

87 15 ¥ 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE ==

2.

(p)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits

i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution plans and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
carried at their present values.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to June 2014).
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") are
required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p)

Employee benefits (Continued)

ii)

iiii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the Black Scholes
Option Pricing Model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the share
options, the total estimated fair value of the share
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year under
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(r)

Foreign currencies translation

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
All differences are taken to profit or loss. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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3. NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS APPLIED 3.

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

a) Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

The amendments mainly clarify that the exemption from
preparing consolidated financial statements is available to a
parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, even
if the investment entity measures all its subsidiaries at fair
value in accordance with HKFRS 10. The Company is not an
investment entity. Also, given that the Company is a listed
entity, the consolidation exception set out in the amendments
will not be applicable to the Company and hence the
application of these amendments has had no impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

b) Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments provide guidance on how to account for
the acquisition of a joint operation that constitutes a business
as defined in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations. Specifically, the
amendments state that the relevant principles on accounting
for business combinations in HKFRS 3 and other standards
should be applied. The amendments also require that a joint
operator to disclose the relevant information required by
HKFRS 3 and other standards for business combinations. The
amendments require prospective application; prospectively
in annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
Group did not have any such transactions in the current year
and hence the application of these amendments has had no
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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3. NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS APPLIED (Continued)

9

d)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that an entity need not provide a
specific disclosure required by a HKFRS if the information
resulting from that disclosure is not material (even if the
HKFRS contains a list of specific requirements or describes
them as minimum requirements). The amendments also give
guidance on the bases of aggregating and disaggregating
information for disclosure purposes. The amendments
emphasize that an entity should consider whether to provide
additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in HKFRSs is insufficient to enable users of
financial statements to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s
financial position and financial performance. Furthermore,
the amendments require that an entity’s share of the other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method should be presented
separately from those arising from the Group, and should be
separated into the share of items that, in accordance with
other HKFRSs: (i) will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss; and (ii) will be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific conditions are met.

As required by the amendments, the share of other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures had
been separately presented and had been separated into (i)
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (ii)
will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Other than such a change in presentation,
the application of these amendments has not resulted in any
impact on the financial performance or financial position of
the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property,
plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce
a rebuttable presumption that revenue-based amortisation
is not an appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible
asset. The amendments states that such a presumption can
only be rebutted in the following two limited circumstances:

o when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue; or

o when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
asset are highly correlated.
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3. NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS APPLIED (Continued)

d)

e)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
(Continued)

With regard to the Group’s property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets, the Group did not use revenue-based
depreciation method and hence the amendments have
not have any impact on the Group’s financial position and
financial performance. Rather, the Group has been using
the straight-line method for depreciation and amortisation
for its property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
respectively.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture:
Bearer Plants

The amendments define a bearer plant that is a living plant
that:

a) is used in the production or supply of agricultural
produce;

b)  is expected to bear produce for more than one period;
and

Q) has a remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural
produce except for incidental scrap sales.

The amendments require that biological assets that meet
the definition of a bearer plant should be accounted for as
property, plant and equipment in accordance with HKAS 16,
instead of HKAS 41. The produce growing on bearer plants
continues to be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 41.

The application of these amendments has had no impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group is
not engaged in agricultural activities.
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3. NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS APPLIED (Continued)

f)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarized below.

Firstly, the amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific
guidance for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners
(or vice versa). The amendments clarify that such a change
should be considered as a continuation of the original plan of
disposal and hence requirements set out in HKFRS 5 regarding
the change of sale plan do not apply.

Secondly, the amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional
guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing
involvement in a transferred asset for the purpose of the
disclosures required in relation to transferred assets.

Thirdly, the amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the rate
used to discount post-employment benefit obligations
should be determined by reference to market yields at the
end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds.
The assessment of the depth of a market for high quality
corporate bonds should be at the currency level (i.e. the same
currency as the benefits are to be paid). For currencies for
which there is no deep market in such high quality corporate
bonds, the market yields at the end of the reporting period
on government bonds denominated in that currency should
be used instead.

The application of these amendments has had no effect on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made certain key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimated uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, as discussed below.

(0]

(i)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of finance lease receivables

The Group’'s management has to exercise judgement in
determining whether finance lease receivables are impaired
or the event previously causing the finance lease receivables
impairment no longer exists, taking into account: (i) whether
the finance lease receivables have been past due; (ii) whether
there are any indicators of impairment; and (iii) whether the
repayments are in accordance with repayment schedules.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to
determine the level of impairment, could materially affect the
amount of impairment.
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4,

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful debts of the
Group is based on the evaluation by management of the
collectability of the accounts receivable. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including assessing the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer. If the financial conditions of these customers
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowance will be required.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets are
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cashgenerating units to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the
worldwide provision for income taxes. There are transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be charged.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that are initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.
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SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on its products and services and has the reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@  the trading business segment is engaged in the trading of
goods, components and accessories;

(b)  financial services business segment is engaged in provision
of finance lease services, provision of money lending services
and provision of securities services;

(¢)  the information technology business segment is engaged in
distributorship of information technology products and the
provision of relevant technical support services; and

(d)  other business segment is engaged in servicing business, such
as training course provision.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the forestry business
segment had been ceased upon the disposal of subsidiary in 2016
as disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements. Executive
directors of the Company, who are the chief operating decision
makers, monitor the results of its operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment profit or loss, which is a measure of
adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit or loss before
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before
tax except that interest income, finance costs, equity-settled share
option expenses, as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arose
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

Segment assets include non-current assets and current assets
with the exception of certain assets unallocated to an individual
reportable segment.

Segment liabilities include non-current liabilities and current
liabilities with the exception of tax payable and other unallocated
head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.
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5.  SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. SAWPHS
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z—R"F+ZA=+—HLEFE
Financial  Information
Trading services  Technology
business business business Others Total Unallocated ~ Group Total
® &
HKS' 000 TER BEREK  BEBER  NEER Hit At 9B FEEAH
Segment revenue: DEUA:
Revenue from external customers RENEEE ZRA 175,290 80,274 628 40 256,232 - 256,232
Segment profit/(loss) AR/ (BR) (675) 11,694 (1,774) (28) 9,217 (493) 8,724
Interest income FIEKA - 67 1 - 68 bi} 91
Finance costs RMERA (191) (1) - - (192) (19,590) (19,782)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNBARZER - - - - - (10,370) (10,370)
Other expenses Hipx - - - - - (14,873) (14,873)
Profit/(loss) before tax BBAER,/ (BB (866) 11,760 (1,773) (28) 9,093 (45,303) (36.210)
Addtions to non-current assets REFRBEE 15 1,032 - - 1,047 20 1,067
Impairment of trade receivables 2 5 BN E - - - (€) €] - €)
Written off of inventories FE MR (435) - - - (435) - (435)
Written off of bad debts R R - - (109) - (109) (8) (117)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% - BiE R RENE (96) (689) (70) - (855) (1,306) (2,161
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-Z—HEF+ZRA=+—HLFE
Financial  Information
Trading services  Technology Forestry
business business business business Others Total  Unallocated ~ Group Total
kil B
HK$'000 TET B5%%  BRBEE  HBEB  HAEB £t A&t APR AKEEEH
Segment revenue: DEHA
Revenue from external customers RENEEF ZRA 93,141 32,214 5,535 - 508 131,398 - 131,398
Segment profit/(loss) AEEH /(B8 (4,330) 10,019 (38,914) (29,000) (13) (62,238) - (62,238)
Interest income MEBA - 20 1 - - 21 79 100
Gain from bargain purchase W BB B A A
arising on acquisition of subsidiaries EENEEEE R - - - - - - 2,231 2,231
Finance costs BEKAK - - - - - - (16,518) (16,518)
Share of result of an associate DEHE AR EE - 1,185 - - - 1,185 = 1,185
Equity-settled ARG B 4 5
share option expenses BEERERAY - - - - - - (26,400) (26,400)
Other expenses H 2 - - - - - - (17,748) (17,748)
Profit/(loss) before tax BB ATEF/ (BR) (4,330 11,224 (38,913) (29,000) (13) (61,032) (58,356)  (119,388)
Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE 182 1,156 120 - - 1,458 1,485 2,943
Impairment of forest concessions B RERE - - - (29,000) - (29,000) - (29,000)
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 RWERE (1,671) - - - (1,671) = (1,671)
Impairment of goodwill HERE - - (37,159) - = (37,159) - (37,159)
Impairment of inventories FERE (113) - - - - (113) = (113)
Written off of inventories FEME (1,249) - - - - (1,249) - (1,249)
Written off of bad debts R AR (2,233) = = = = (2,233) - (2,233)
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment ¥ BEREERE (67) (148) (64) - - (279) (1,552) (1,831)
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016

NE R E @)

R=ZB-—AR"FE+=A=+—H

Financial Information

Trading service Technology Other
business business business business Total Unallocated Group Total
£ &l
HKS' 000 TER Eo%% BEEE DHER EtER At RAE AEEAE
Segment assets NHEE 14,738 2,019,819 4,942 289 2,039,788 - 2,039,788
Bank balances and cash ROEBRRRE
- general accounts -—RER - - - - - 2,171 2,17
Other assets HthEE - - - - - 13,112 13,112
Total assets BELE 14,738 2,019,819 4,942 289 2,039,788 15,283 2,055,671
Segment liabilities PHEE (4,228) (1,780,982) (2,436) - (1,787,646) - (1,787,646)
Convertible bonds R ES - - - - - (1144000  (114,400)
Promissory notes AAER - - - - - (50,402) (50,402)
Other liabilities HthEfE - - - - - (11,283)  (11,283)
Total liabilities BREEE (4,228) (1,780,982) (2,436) - (1,787,646)  (176,085) (1,963,731)
As at 31 December 2015 R-—ZE-HEFE+=-H=+—H
Financial Information
Trading service Technology Forestry Other
business business business Business business Total Unallocated Group Total
¢R &
HKS' 000 TR BES%K BEXK REEK  skgy  HEER At KAE AEEAH
Segment assets PHEE 12,694 1,073,223 5,983 - 282 1,092,182 - 1,092,182
Bank balances and cash ROEBRERE
- general accounts -—RER - - - - = = 18,118 18,118
Other assets HitEE - - - - - - 7,060 7,060
Total assets BELE 12,694 1,073,223 5,983 = 282 1,092,182 25,178 1,117,360
Segment liabilities PHEE (1428)  (874,815) (2,962) (77) 3)  (879,285) - (879,285
Convertible bonds ARES - - - - - - (100,205  (100,205)
Promissory notes EREE - - - = = = (47,627) (47,627)
Other liabilities Hin g & - - - - - - (6,549) (6,549)
Total liabilities BEAE (1,428) (874,815) (2,962) (77) 3) (879,285) (154,381)  (1,033,666)




Notes to the Financial Statements

87 15 ¥ 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—ZT— A AF+-_A=T—HIEFE

5.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Geographical information

(@) Revenue from external customers

NE R E @)
EFS S BER
(@) RAMBEFZWA

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—BLFE

2016 2015

ZE-XRFE —T—I1F

HK$ 000 HK$ 000

FER THET

Hong Kong B 177,414 99,546
Mainland China A B K B 78,818 31,852
256,232 131,398

The revenue information is based on the location of the

customers.

(b) Non-current assets - property, plant and equipment

F ot WA E R TYA R PR A K

3 o

(b) *RBDEE-MX BERRE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2016 2015
“E-XRE Z—ZZT—AF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FH T FH& T
Hong Kong BB 3,383 4,851
Mainland China AR K BE 1,281 990
4,664 5,841

The non-current asset information above is based on the

location of assets.

LA RBEEERTIAEEMEM
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. AWPHS
Information about major customers FEEFZEH
Revenues from customers contributing 10% or more of the total REHAEBEHEEBRTEIERM10%K A LR
sales of the Group are as follows: PZWART:
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=1t—-HLEE
2016 2015
—E-XEF ZE—hF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FER FAHT
Customer A — revenue from trading business EFPARBE S EBZBKA
— Hong Kong -BB 110,836 -
Customer B — revenue from financial services business % FB & B & @ iR 15 % 75 2 WA
- Hong Kong -BB 26,392 -
Customer C — revenue from trading business BRCREESEB 2BA
— Hong Kong -&BH - 19,411
137,228 19,411
REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6. WAREfthU A
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after WAEERNHEHEEM(HRRERERE S
allowances for returns and trade discounts, the value of services MBI 2BRZFE MEERBZ2EBER
rendered and interest income from financial services business during TRREEL 2B WA - WA K H AU
the year. An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows: AZDITATR
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEE
2016 2015
—E-XF —E—hF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FER FAHT
Revenue: WA
Revenue from trading business B 5 EB 2B/ 175,290 93,141
Revenue from financial services business SRR B 2 WA 80,274 32,214
Revenue from information technology business BB FEB 2 /A 628 5,535
Others Hitp 40 508
256,232 131,398
Other income, other gains and losses: HA - Hitt s RER:
Interest income on bank deposit RATFERZFE WA 91 100
Investment income "EIWRA 1,299 =
Gain on bargain purchase Wb — 8 2 A
arising from acquisition of a subsidiary EEMNEEBEE RS - 2,231
Loss on early repayment of promissory notes REEEALZEBEZER (493) (2,549)
Loss on promissory notes BIEE MR EE
arising on set off against other financial assets EXMARZEEIR - (464)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (note 40) 0 & — KB 2 8] & 18 (M £40) (10,370) =
Sundry income IR A 1,794 476
(7,679) (206)
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7.  FINANCE COSTS

Al & AR

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+-RALEE

2016 2015
—E-KF —T—HF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FER FAT
Imputed interest charge on convertible bonds (note 1) RBREFZHEFNBRL (HE1) 14,195 12,402
Imputed interest charge on promissory notes EAZRBZEEFERE 4,810 3,317
Coupon interest charge on promissory notes EARBZEERX 472 658
Interest charge on bank borrowings RITERF SR 57,971 18,480
Interest charge on finance lease obligation (note 2) MEREREZNERAX (HE2) 113 141
77,561 34,998
Less: interest charge on bank borrowings included in W AASRBRBEBEEKNAZ
cost of sales for financial services business RITERFERX (57,779) (18,480)
19,782 16,518
Notes: B 5
(1) The charge represents the imputed interest on the liability component () ZAZTEAFEANRREFABISNS 2

of the convertible bonds for the year.
(2) Interest on financing the acquisition of motor vehicles.

8.  LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging:

HAE -
2 BEAEBRBEZME-

B 5t i &5 18

REBORTAEESCHR TYIER ®E
&

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-HLHFE

2016 2015
ZE-RE —Z-hf
HK$ 000 HK$' 000
THER THT
(@) Staff costs (including directors” emoluments): @ EBINABEEEMR):
Salaries, wages and other benefits He TEAREMER 13,390 9,019
Equity-settled share-option expenses DR EEE M ELERERS - 26,400
Pension scheme contributions RIREBE B 218 163
13,608 35,582
(b) Other items: () HER:
Auditors’ remuneration — Audit services ZEAM € - ZERB 756 720
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BEREENE 2,161 1,831
Operating lease MOEWE
payments in respect of office premises ZEEHERNK 2,446 2,384
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE BERSE2EE - 13
Impairment of inventories FERE - 113
Written off of inventories FEMER 435 1,249
Written off of bad debts REEMER 17 2,233
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9. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS 9. ESME
The remuneration of directors during the year were as follow: FRNESEME0T:
2016 2015
—E-XE —T—RF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
THER FHET
Executive directors: HOES:
Fees we - -
Other emoluments: Hie -
Salaries, housing allowances, e FEEZR- 4,680 3,000
other allowances and benefits in kind H 2 REYF =
Pension scheme contributions BREE 4R 36 23
Equity-settled share option expenses (note) ARRERE BB BB RER X () - 13,596
4,716 16,619
Non-executive director: FHITES:
Fees we - 110
Other emoluments: Hi &
Salaries, housing allowances, e EEER- - -
other allowances and benefits in kind HA 2B R EY A &=
Pension scheme contributions BREEEIHE N - =
Equity-settled share option expenses (note) VAR 1 45 & o 8 5 B8 PR B =2 (M 5) - ;138
- 1,243
Independent non-executive directors: BUERTES:
Fees we 360 360
Other emoluments: Hie -
Equity-settled share option expenses (note) VARR 1 45 5 o) 8 5 B8 PR Bl sz (M ) - 339
360 699
5,076 18,561

Biet: REBMBRSERF 2R AR BER
NROEEREREHNESE -

Note: The amount represent share option expenses recognised under HKFRS
2 Share-based payment.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no share option was REBEEZEZZE—R"F+_A=+—HILF
granted. T WER BT ELTERE-

BE-_Z—HhE+-_A=+—RILtFE"
FTEESERERAARELBERET S
ERNASEERBIRBEEREBLBEBRE-
BRAEREERBRLEEERBE %ZSEBL
BREAFEEERELEHETE mA
HEeBEERBRFTABEEZTME -

During the year ended 31 December 2015, all directors were
granted share options in respect of their services to the Group under
the Company’s share option scheme. The share options have been
vested upon the date of grant. The fair value of such share options
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount charged as
directors’ emoluments in profit or loss.
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9. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 9. ESMEW
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BIFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FAENBYFHTEZT2HEE N
the year were as follows: e

Equity-settled

share option Total
Fees expenses emoluments
URESLHE
8 %k
we B IR B X [
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FHET FH T FHET
2016: ZE-KRE:
Ng Kay Kwok RH 120 - 120
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann [P 3 120 - 120
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth Z=HT 120 - 120
360 - 360
2015: —T—hF:
Ng Kay Kwok RH 120 113 233
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann ZES 120 113 233
Yip Kat Kong, Kenneth BEEHEIT 120 113 233
360 339 699
(b) Non-executive director (b) FHTES
Equity-settled
share option Total
Fees expenses emoluments
URESLHE
B & %
Hwe i IR RE B X <5
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FAT FAT FAT
2016: —E—KEF:
Wong Chi Man HEX - - -
2015: —T—AF:

Wong Chi Man \mEX 110 1,133 1,243
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9. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

9. EEHME®

() Executive directors () HITE=E
Salaries,
housing
allowances, Equity-
other settled
allowances Pension share
and benefits scheme option Total
Fees in kind contributions expenses emoluments
LURR 7
e EER EEH
Bh HA2B EBARESHE EXBR
e RENFR R R X [
HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000  HK$ 000 HK$' 000
FATT TAT FAT FAT FHAT
2016: —E-RE:
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson KEE - 3,900 18 - 3,918
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre 28 - 780 18 - 798
- 4,680 36 - 4,716
2015: —T A
Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson RKEE = 2,300 5 11,330 13,635
Lau Chi Yan, Pierre 28 = 700 18 2,266 2,984
- 3,000 23 13,596 16,619

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31 December

2016 and 2015.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office.

REBE-_ZE—XFR_FT—HF+=A
=+ HLEFE UTEELAFEENES
WERRERZTMEE 2 LHE -

REBEEZZE—R"EFER-_ZT—AF+=A
=+ HLFE - AEEMERAEST N
HE G EAREENASRMARER
B IesiEREBERmE -
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10.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

10.

The five highest paid employees during the year included 2 (2015:
2) directors. Details of the emoluments of the remaining 3 (2015:
3) non-director, highest paid employee for the year ended 31

December 2016 are as follows:

heREHMES

RER IERGFHEEREMA(ZF
—HF MB)EF - BE_FT-—R"F+=
A=Z+—-BLFE H&H=%(=F—1
FZR)ERRFMNNFETEREZHEF
BT

2016 2015

—E—XRE —ET—R4F

HK$ 000 HK$ 000

FHExT FiBT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERREYH S 2,925 2,075
Pension scheme contributions BRAR S T B K 54 42
Equity-settled share option expenses AR R ENETERERNX - 4,532
2,979 6,649

The emoluments of the three (2015: three) individuals with the

highest emoluments are within the following bands:

FZ=HR(CE-—RAF ZRB)RSFALTZH
B F AT & E :

2016 2015

ZE-RF —E—hF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HK$ T AE AE
Nil = 1,000,000 = £ 1,000,000 2 1
1,000,001 - 2,000,000 1,000,001 2 2,000,000 1 -

2,500,000 - 3,000,000
3,000,001 - 3,500,000

2,500,000 £ 3,000,000
3,000,001 % 3,500,000
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11.

INCOME TAX 11.

Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for both
years. The PRC enterprise income tax has been provided at the rate
of 25% (2015: 25%). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the prevailing rates of tax based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices.

P 15

MEFE2EEMNGRIDERBEAEL
ZIEFRERRBENA165%(—F— R4
16.5%) st H - FELEXMBHIZ25%(=F
—HF25% ZBEFEEE - iR
ERBENZHBCLERBITAD 2B
ERERBRTHEGTE -

Year ended 31 December

HE+-BA=1+—HLEE

2016 2015
ZE-XKF —E-0F
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FTHERT FHET
Hong Kong profits tax: BENEH

— current year -AEE 463 =
— (over) / under provision in prior years -BEFEREEE /TR (20 1,828

PRC enterprise income tax: HEMEMER:
— current year -AEE 3,353 2,176
— under provision in prior years -BAFERETR 142 -
3,938 4,004

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before tax
as follow:

FERBXHAERRABRERNT:

Year ended 31 December

BHE+-A=1+—-HLEE

2016 2015

—E-XF —ET-RfF

HK$' 000 HK$’ 000

THERT FTHET
Loss before tax BR 4 A B3 18 (36,210) (119,388)
Tax at the applicable tax rate RERAMEFENTE (5,975) (19,699)
Effect of different taxation rates of other countries HitBEIRPIRAPE 2 & 847 585
Income not subject to tax BARBIA (1,451) (6,354)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose B FEZ 2,454 17,578
Tax losses not recognised KRR BEERE 7,404 10,066
Deferred taxation FEEDIE 537 =
Tax under provided BIERET R 122 1,828
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BASBERBEFE 2 HEI N 3,938 4,004

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$183,487,000 (2015: HK$138,776,000) available
for offset against future profits that may be carried forward
indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

R-_E—RF+_A=+—H AEEX
R IAE 1B %) 5183,487,0008 T (=&
— A4 :138,776,0007 7T) © °] F {E4E R HA
38 R 2K & ) o B A R RE TEOBI R 3R O0E ) 3R
B AEE W E T EBEERIELERIE
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12. DIVIDEND 12.

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the
year (2015: Nil).

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13.

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based on:

B

RAFEE AAALMEERERRE (=
T-[F B

Sk E

R A IR TR BB R 2 IR B AT
16 5 18 A 4 0 BB 4T 20 R 0 A0 4 4
Bt -

BRERARBEEEBEDRENAT XA
&

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HILEE

2016 2015
—EBE-R"E —T—E1fF
HK$ 000 HK$’ 000
FHER T
Loss B8
Loss attributable to owners of the Company RIEsTESREKREIE
used in the basic loss per share calculation ZARRAIHEE ANEEERE (42,617) (124,944)
Number of shares (thousands)
RHEAB (FR)
Shares il
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year FABBTEBERMETHEH 1,457,526 836,482
—E RGN BERERIEE
Effect of 2015 CB (see note 29(2)) (R MEE29(2)) 173,913 173,913
Weighted average number of ordinary shares L 38 AR B h0
for the purpose of calculating loss per share FHEBE N ETRER 1,631,439 1,010,395

No diluted loss per share information presented for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015 as the impact of the convertible
bonds and share options outstanding had anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share.

HE-_ZT—XNER-_ZT—HAF+ = A
=+ BLEFEE AR ERITENATRR
EFEREBLIERESTREABBARE
ERE MU ESNNSREEHEEZER -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. NE- -HERR

Computer
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE ElK
MELE BAERE RE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET THET THET THET
Cost; PR
As at 1 January 2015 R-—Z—hFE—HF—H 779 1,282 4,497 6,558
Addition BE - 269 1,606 1,875
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK B AR 943 125 - 1,068
Disposal and written off & R R (24) - - (24)
Exchange realignment EHAE (14) ©) @) (29)
As at 31 December 2015 RZF-hE+=A=+—8
and 1 January 2016 k=—ZE—-"F—-A—H 1,684 1,668 6,096 9,448
Addition RE - 43 994 1,037
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHB AR 24 6 - 30
Disposal and written off & I R - (35) (276) 311)
Exchange realignment ER RS (60) (an (55) (126)
As at 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+=ZA=+-H 1,648 1,671 6,759 10,078
Accumulated
depreciation and impairment: ZEMERAME:
As at 1 January 2015 R-_Z—hHF&—HF—H 617 760 417 1,794
Provided for the year FEARE 284 432 1,115 1,831
Written back on disposal HERED 1) - - (1)
Exchange realignment R (6) (1) - (7)
As at 31 December 2015 RZF-h&E+=-A=+—8
and 1 January 2016 k=—E-"F—-A—H 884 1,191 1,532 3,607
Provided for the year FEAR 404 354 1,403 2,161
Written back on disposal T 8 - (35) (276) 311)
Exchange realignment AR (26) (5) (12) 43)
As at 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+=ZA=+-H 1,262 1,505 2,647 5,414
Net carrying value: HREVFE
As at 31 December 2016 RZB-AE+ZA=+-H 386 166 4,112 4,664
As at 31 December 2015 RZZ-RE+_A=1+—H 800 477 4,564 5,841

The net book value of the Group’s motor vehicle includes an
amount approximately HK$3,266,000 (2015: HK$4,397,000) in
respect of assets held under finance leases.

AEBEARBE Y EEFELERERERE
BHHMEES3 2660008 T (T —HF:

4,397,000 7T) °
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15.

FOREST CONCESSIONS 15. A4 B i
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—F8F
Notes HK$ 000 HK$ 000
B 2 FH T F& T
Cost: A
As at 1 January Wn—H—H 833,801 833,801
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHE A A 40 (833,801) =
As at 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H - 833,801
Accumulated amortisation: ot #ey:
As at 1 January Rn—A—H (3,990) (3,990)
Disposal of a subsidiary & — KB A A 40 3,990 =
As at 31 December Rt-—A=+—8H - (3,990)
Accumulated impairment: ZitEE:
As at 1 January Kn—H—H (829,811) (800,811)
Impairment for the year FRRE - (29,000)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FB A 40 829,811 =
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H - (829,811)
Carrying amount: R TH B
As at 31 December R+—_A=+—H - =

Amortisation is charged on a unit of production basis over the
estimated useful lives of forest concessions.

The forest concession rights cover the entire forest area of 313,500
hectares Mimika Areas in Indonesia. This licence which allows
logging, land clearing and plantation of oil palm trees.

In 2015, as the result of the unexpected delay of production due
to communal conflicts and caused riots at the vicinity, the Group
carried out a review of the recoverable amount of those concessions
and related equipment. These assets are used in the Group's
forestry business reportable segments. The recoverable amount of
the relevant assets has been determined on the basis of their fair
value less cost to sell. In determining the recoverable amount, the
Group engaged Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group, to value the fair
value of the forest concessions.

BHEEANTESEVREERRMNEFE MR
=t A 62 A F A HIBR o

FR IS BT HE B 2= ED B Mimika ) [ 22 {E /74
313,500 2B Z2HEM e R £ 55K
AN B R B E R o

RZZ—AF mRBOHRBEELRE
RERBNBBELEBHZINZEELER
AREECREZEHTERABRE A
WOoeB ZEEETDANRATEBEZMHAK
EBABRED - HEEEZAT KD S E
TRAVFEERBEXNAER -RETH
Yoo AEEEZREAEETEH
BrREVAERERMGEMESFBERFTG
ERARERMEFEZ A FEEETH
ity o



Notes to the Financial Statements

871 15 ¥ %< B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZ—T— A "F T+ -_A=T—HBILFE

15. FOREST CONCESSIONS (Continued) 15.  FR W4 5F 08 ()
The review led to recognition of an impairment loss on forest BMEERARRARMETEREEIE
concessions of HK$29.0 million which has been recognised in the 29,000,000 L EEREBEE=_ZT—HF
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015. T A=+ —BIEFENBRER -
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the forest concession HE-_Z-—R"EFT_A=+—BIEFE "
rights had been disposed of through the disposal of Merdeka ARNEFETHE B B B B Merdeka Timber
Timber Group Limited. Detail of the disposal of a subsidiary has Group Limited M1 & H - & —H KB 2 7 &
been set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. BEHINGE M B R EL0 -
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. EIv&=E
Trading right
R
HK$’ 000
FAHT
As at 1 January 2015, R—ZE—AF—H-B —T—AF -
31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 TZA=+—HBERZ=ZFE-—R"E—-—H—H
Acquisition of a subsidiary Ue g — R T8 A A 2,805
As at 31 December 2016 RZZB—RNF+-_A=+—H 2,805
Trading right have indefinite useful life and therefore no 22 5 v B E 0 PR HABR B ot B A 6H B AT
amortisation has been provided. No impairment was provided REB -BE_FT-AF+-_A=+—H
during the year ended 31 December 2016. IEEE BEREZTIEES -
17. GOODWILL 17. BE
2016 2015
ZE-ARFE T EHF
HK$ 000 HK$' 000
FER FAT
As at 1 January Hn—A—H - 34,000
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — R E R A - 3,159
Impairment BIE - (37,159)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H - -
Goodwill acquired through business combination has been allocated FREBAHBEZEEE I EZEESER
to the financial services business segment. i P
In 2015, the Group performed its annual impairment test for RZZE—HF AEELERSE TSR
goodwill allocated to the financial services business segment cash- BEBIHBBREeELEEM 2BHETRE S
generating-unit by comparing its recoverable amount to its carrying HEANBEMRZEEHE  HEuBEET
amount as at the end of the reporting period. The recoverable FEREAR HeEELEBUNAIKESR
amount of the cash-generating-unit is determined based on value- BOBRBEREEFERTEETE - %E55
in-use calculations. These calculations used cash flow projections BEREGRAKEBEEREN ENTFHMBEE
based on a five-year financial budget approved by management. ENHRenEE LEEEMERFH
Cash flows beyond a five-year period approved by management LONBE S RED U BT —REFEERED
have been extrapolated with an estimated general annual growth A% A FHBEAERZE BHE_T— A
of not more than 3% for a five-year period. The discount rate used F+_A=+—"HLEFEMHEANSE3I%
of for the year ended 31 December 2015 was 8.3% reflects specific BRI R R ML B Z » BB RE R R o
risks related to the segment. At the end of the year 2015, the RZT-—REFR AEEZEHERED
Group’s goodwill was impaired by approximately HK$37,159,000. 37,159,000 B T - EER A EKEHASH
The directors consider the major factor contributing to the fREEBIBRECELEEN ZEERED
impairment of the goodwill relating to the financial services business FERERBRAD -

segment cash-generating unit was that a decline in demand.



Notes to the Financial Statements

87 15 ¥ 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZE_—_ZT— "F+ A=+ —HILFE

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. OJHHERSE
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AEHEREZEXTD AT
As at 31 December
Wt+t=—A=+-A8
2016 2015
—E-XF —ZT—AfF
HKS$ 000 HK$ 000
FHT FAT
Unlisted investments FLHRE
Equity securities, at cost (Note 1) MRAE S ERAE ) - 800
Unit trusts, at fair value (Note 2) BN ET BATEEMZE2) - 7,761
Debt securities — Debentures, fair value (Note 3) BERESF-EEE EAFEEMFE3) 1,475 1,475
Total & &t 1,475 10,036

Note 1: The equity securities with a carrying amount of HK$800,000
as at 31 December 2015 represent the Group's interest in
an unlisted equity securities, which are measured at cost less
impairment losses. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the fair value of the investments in the equity
securities cannot be measured reliably because the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value. The equity securities
were disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Note 2: The unit trusts with carrying amount of HK$7,761,000 as at 31
December 2015 represent an investment of unit trusts in the
PRC, which was measured at fair value at the end of subsequent
periods. The valuation technique of available-for-sale investment
was based on share of net assets. The unit trusts were disposed
of during the year ended 31 December 2016

Note 3: The debenture securities with a carrying amount of
HK$1,475,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$1,475,000)
represent the Group's interest in unlisted zero coupon
debentures issued by companies incorporated in Hong Kong,
which are measured at fair value.

The available-for-sale investments are denominated in the following

P21

MoaE2

P23 :

R-ZZ—FAFE+-_A=+—0 &KX
& % BR B 5800,000 7T © 15N &£ &
RIELETMBRAFZH 2= - DIRKAE
MR R EREGE - $21§$i%
RBRABHRZBREZAFEETH

FitE EEE@@MW;1%#Z
AREERGEAAFEER TS ET
ERER - REBEE-_Z— X FE+=-A
=t BLEFE #ExEFBELE-

R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—B=%EM
EFEMEREEA7,761,000/8 THERH
HEMEEZRE  ITREEHRRD
FEEME - AIEHEREZHET A
THAEEEBEFE L H BELE - RE
BT RNE+-_A=t+—HBLEE"
BRUEEEHE -

RZZT—X"E+=—_A=+—8" ' %&
HEEIRE(E 51,475,000 T (Z 2 —H
:1,47500087T)  HAEEREES
EMERIZARMETHRLETTEE
EEERS NEREATFEEE-

AHEERER T EEE:

currencies:
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—H
2016 2015
—E—RF —T—hHF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FH& T FHE T
Hong Kong dollar I 1,475 2,275
Renminbi AR - 7,761

1,475 10,036
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19.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

19.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1R Bit /8 2 B i 28
EREITEMBARZFBNT:

Place of

establishment/ Percentage of equity

incorporation Nominal value of issued ordinary / attributable
Name and operations registered share capital to the Company Principal activities

B 3L/ 2 A 3L AR R EERA
8 REEwE ERTLER EMRAEE BEEDLL TEXH

2016 2015
—®2-A"f _—F-af
% %
Atbinary (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100 100 Information technology business
ZRTE(ER)BERAR BB 1REREEIETEBR BARRER
End User Investments Limited BVI 29,706,179 ordinary shares of 100 100 Investment holding
US$0.1 each
EERLES 29,706,179 R EE0.1 X T REEKR
ZE BB

End User Technology Limited BVI 100 ordinary shares of US$ 1 each 100 100 Investment holding

EBRAEE 100l B REE 1R T 2 EBK REZR
Ever Hero Group Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of of US$1 100 100 Investment holding

HERTES IRERREIXTZEBR REZR
Gold Coin Development Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
SRERERAA EE IREREEIET 2 EBR REER
Ideal Magic International Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Investment holding
HEBRBRERAF EE 10,000k R EE 178 T2 & BR REER
M Technology Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100 100 Information technology business

&% IREREEIETZEBR BABHRER
Mega Wealth Investments Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Investment holding
XHREBRAA EE 100 EBREE BT EBK REER
Merdeka Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100 100 Finance and money lending business
ERERARAH E# IREREEIET 2 EBR BERBEXR
Merdeka Resources Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Trading business

International Limited

ERAERERERAA e 100,0008% E R EE 178 T 2 & AR BHEH
Merry Fortune Holdings Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100 100 Investment holding

EERLES 1REREEIFTZEBR REZR
Mian Yang Heng Da Information PRC RMB5,000,000 60 60 Information technology business

Technology Limited

BEEEEEHRERAA R E AR #5,000,000 7T BARRRES
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19.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

—RETZA=T-ALEE

19. RMBELSEE =

Place of

establishment/ Percentage of equity

incorporation Nominal value of issued ordinary / attributable
Name and operations registered share capital to the Company Principal activities

R/ EmA T ADEEHRE
% REELE ERTEBR ERRAEE EEEDL TEEH

2016 2015
—-R"E ZT-RF
% %
Hang He Financial Lease PRC RMB139,572,278 64.71 56.97 Finance lease
(Shanghai) Company Limited*

EARARE(LE)ERAR FE AR¥139,572,278 ¢ MEEE
Ideal Magic International Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Investment holding
HEERERA A &8 10,000 % & AR E B 178 70 2 & @ ik REZR
M Technology Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100 100 Information technology business

BB IREREEIETEBR EEEEEE S
Mega Wealth Investments Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Investment holding
EXEREERAR BE 100fx GRREE 1B T2 L @Rk REER
Netgenii Technology Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of HK$ 1 each 95 95 Information technology business
KERBEERAR &8 1,000/ FRRE B 178 T 2 & @R BABRER
Prestige Gold Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
EHERBRAA B REREE BT TR REER
Source Easy Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of HK$ 1 each 100 100 Trading business
RHBERRDA 2 10,000 & REE 1B T2 &ER BHEB
Merdeka Capital Limited Hong Kong 17,300,000 ordinary shares of HK$ 1 each 100 0 Trading of securities
BREXERAH &8 17,300,000 % & IR EE1 8 T 2 & @A EHRR G
Merdeka Credit Information Limited PRC RMB50,000,000 70 70 Inactive
ERAGEARAH R A B #50,000,000 7T TR

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The following information relating to non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests (“NCI").

The summarised financial information represents amounts before

intercompany eliminations.

* For identification purpose only
# These subsidiaries

§$w% EXRMEHNZARANE R A

BYEAFERAIBRASEEEF
TEE’JE?@‘B CEERR REEMKHE
RAZHBREREHNRRERER TR -

TRITEBHEEE A IERIER (i
Rz ENBATNER -

MBERBEZ2I AR HYHEERE-

*E R 5

#3% S8 2 A
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

19. NKTBLIIER 5

Heng He Financial Lease (Shanghai) Company Limited ETMERE (LB EARAA
2016 2015
=®B-AFE Z—T-IF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FER FAHT

As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,814,862 444,268
Current assets mENEE 182,103 517,816
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (1,691,649) (477,600)
Current liabilities mEEE (86,212) (397,204)
Net assets BEFE 219,104 87,280
Carrying amount of NCI EEREEREE 77,322 37,520
Year ended 31 December BHE+-_A=+—HIt&E
Revenue N 80,859 31,821
Expenses 53 (70,136) (23,469)
Profit for the year F Nm Al 10,723 8,352
Profit attributable to NCI JEEREREG R 3,942 3,590
Net cash flow (used in) / generated from UTREEFA),/ EEREREFE
Operating activities KEEE (960,848) 165,657
Investing activities REES 7,896 (187)
Financing activities BEEH 978,040 (144,757)

Following the Company's injection of a sum of approximately
RMB20.28 million (approximately HK$23.59 million) in cash into
Heng He as its paid capital, the Company's interest in Heng He
increased from 56.97% to 64.71% with effect from 26 July 2016.

20. INVENTORIES

AR

20 &S

AARNBEEEENFTEALHARE
20,280,000 7T (#723,590,000/& ;L) EBHE
BB A1 RNA R FNE A BY #E 25 B 56.97 1
ME6471% B _ZE—"FLtA=-+/~H

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—-8H
2016 2015
=B-AF ZTAF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FH T FiET
Finished goods SRR & 2,726 3,952

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year
was approximately HK$171,454,000 (2015: HK$89,800,000),
in respect of which approximately HK$Nil (2015: HK$113,000)
represents write down of inventories to net realisable value.

FARERAAINTFTEKRLRIDN A
171,454,0007% Jt (==& — A 4 : 89,800,000
BoL) HPHZE(ZZF—AF:113,0008
TEGFEMRZETZRFEE-



Notes to the Financial Statements

87 15 ¥ 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—ZT— A AF+-_A=T—HIEFE

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. SZEHRRIE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=-—BAR=+—8H
2016 2015
—E—-XEF —E R
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TH&T T T
Trade receivables 2 5 EWEE 6,867 4,854

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit.
The credit period is generally two months. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has credit control procedures
established to monitor credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of impairment,
is as follows:

AEBEEETFPFZESBGREBEUNRE
RE - FEH-RAMEA-B2XFPA
BEeEERB -AEEEBENRESZ
BREF YREEERFUEEEER
B ESREEABEERRISBHRRK -
BZREKELDRREE -

B RYCGRIER®RE B R Rk D (R
HEAMIHNRIRE) AT

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—8
2016 2015
—E-XRE —ZT—FF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FET FHE T
Within 30 days 30BN 3,401 1,577
31 to 60 days 31260H 7 33
61 to 120 days 612 120H 42 977
Over 120 days 1208 BA £ 3,417 2,267
6,867 4,854

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered to
be impaired is as follows:

AWBEREREZEZEBKAEZREKE D
T

As at 31 December

Rt+t=RA=+—H
2016 2015
—E—-XEF —E R
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FTET FHET
Not impaired R (E 6,867 4,854

Receivables that were not impaired relate to customers for whom
there were no recent history of default. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

BREZEKEREINYERALE
EPEB - AEBEIERZSEHAFTAE
e
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22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 22. pETHEEWARIE

As at 31 December

R+t=—BA=+—8
2016 2015
—E—-XEF —E—RF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FH&xT T T
Current finance lease receivables BN HA gt & 7H & & Y 78 31,873 488,077
Non-current finance lease receivables JERN HE gt & 70 & E W sk IR 1,869,445 530,520
1,901,318 1,018,597

Amount receivable under finance leases BEHEEE T ERFKE

Minimum lease payment

Present value of minimum
lease payment

BEEHEESR EEHENREE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —E—A0F —E-RF —E—AF
HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
TER FHT FET FHT
Within one year —4F 123,258 521,179 31,873 488,077
In more than one year
but not more than two years ZR—F PRWE 1,755,021 31,628 1,673,886 110
In more than two years
but not more than five years SHME - PRAE 201,870 561,942 195,559 530,410
2,080,149 1,114,749 1,901,318 1,018,597
Unearned finance income REREELE M A (178,831) (96,152) N/A R 3E A N/A 7 i B
Present value of
minimum lease payment REHREFKBRE 1,901,318 1,018,597 1,901,318 1,018,597

The interest rate inherent in the leases was fixed at the contract
date for the entire lease term. The interest rates of the above
finance leases range from 4.81% to 9.40% per annum (2015:

3.31% t0 9.40%).

Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the equipment
held by the lessee. The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge
the collateral in the absence of default by the leasee.

The finance lease receivables as at 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015 are neither past due nor impaired.

The terms of finance leases entered into ranged from 2 to 5 years.

BEEAHAzBEEHENEERA LB
BERAZKE - LiigERENFREN
F481%ZE9.40%(ZFE —HF:3.31% =
9.40%) °

MEMERKRBLEHRERABAZTEZ
REBEHER AEBEARATEEYD
MBERT TEEEXBRBEHEERAR -
R_E—RNFE+_A=+—HBRk=-_ZT—H
F+_A=t+t—BrzmEHEEKZEL
4836 B SORE ©

AIVBEMERAN F2E55 -
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23.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

The Group’s loan receivables arose from the money lending business
during the year.

Loan receivables bear interest at rates, and with credit periods,
mutually agreed between the contracting parties. Loan receivables
are secured by personal guarantees by the debtors/certain
individuals. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly and handled
closely by senior management.

The loan receivables at the end of the reporting period are analysed
by the remaining period to contractual maturity date as follows:

—RETZA=T-ALEE

23.

B &R
FAXKEZRKERKRERNBERS -

BUERZHEREERTATNES

A 1% & o B E AJ«Mfﬁ‘%A/ + & 51 A

T2 EAEREER SREEAEEH
*ﬁuTIﬁtﬂEﬂE@%ﬁr\\ﬂﬁ%o

RS MUERREABBEEAS
WEBE 2 AT

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H
2016 2015
T — ANEF —E—RE
HK$ 000 HK$’ 000
FER FAT

Repayable: 1B

Within 3 months =@AR 3,300 2,100
3 months to 1 year —BRE—% - 5,351
3,300 7,451

The aged analysis of the loan receivables that are not individually
nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

WEMA L HERREBBRENEBRERZ
FRE DTN

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-—8
2016 2015
—RE —E—FhF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FER FAT
Neither past due nor impaired 8 E 2 R OR (B 900 5,901
1 to 3 months past due BE—Z==A 2,400 1,550
3,300 7,451
The interest rate was fixed at the contract date. The average interest ERMNERETAEHNBHREE RZ2T
rate was at 1% to 2.5% per month as at 31 December 2016 (2015: —"NF+_A=+—"8 ' FHFAMEN
1% t0 2.5% per month). F1% EZ25%(ZE—RAF - BAMNE1%ZE

2.5%) °

Loan receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to S % 460 B oXOR (B 2 FE W B R AR 3 3 AR 4

certain debtors for whom there was no recent history of default.

Loan receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
an independent debtor. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary as the balance
is considered fully recoverable. Up to date of this report, amount of
HK$500,000 were subsequently settled.

REBZETEBARR-

BEERBREZEKERE - BB LER
ANEB - BRARAEZEEEEHR AT 2
HUE HREBEELRERE -EE
¥R 4 B Hi 0 500,000/ T2 RBERE S ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

871 15 ¥ %< B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZEZ—T— A "F T+ -_A=T—HBILFE

24,

25.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, BTREBE RBRENHMERRIER

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2016 2015
—E—-XEF —E—RF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FER FH T
Prepayments T8 5K 7,466 6,396
Trade deposit B 5k e 7,444 6,957
Deposits and other receivables & R E b IR GRIE 53,943 6,361
68,853 19,714
Less: Impairment losses B R EEE (6,000) (6,000)
62,853 13,714

Other receivables were neither past due nor impaired and related to
receivables which had no recent history of default.

R B N R (B 2 EL b U R IR AT A
B RSk W KIAE R -

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. RITEBRRRE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=—B=+—8
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—RHF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FERT FHE T
Bank balances — trust accounts (note) RITHH-ELERE () 5,206 =
Bank balances and cash — general accounts RITHEHBERE - —REF 63,347 52,839
68,553 52,839

Note: The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients in the
course of the conduct of the regulated activities. These clients money
are maintained in one or more trust bank accounts and bear interest
at commercial rates. The Group has recognised the corresponding
accounts payable to respective clients. (note 33)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's bank balances and cash
- general accounts amounted to approximately HK$63.3 million
(2015: HK$52.8 million), approximately HK$51.7 million was
denominated in RMB. Also, approximately HK$11.4 million,
about 18.0% (2015: 41.5%) were bank balances deposited
with credit worthy banks of high credit ratings in Hong Kong,
and approximately HK$10.4 million (2015: HK$21.9 million) was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Included in bank balances
and cash - general accounts, is a pledged deposit of approximately
HK$4.0 million to secure a general banking facility (note 32).

B : AEEELETTREETHIBNRALFER
FHERBZIE - ZS2 P RERN —FEz
ZEERBTHREERE IR EE R =
B AEBEERRENSRSHEERR
(B#E33) o

R-ZE—ARNE+_A=+—"HBH K&EEZ
RITHEHR LB - —REEF 4 /563,300,000
BT (ZZT— R4 :52,800,00087T) * 4
51,700,000 7L A A RBEGHE o 48 49
11,400,000 7T (BN 4918.0% (=& — R 4 :
MNE5%))BERRESEEREETLERE
BRIFIRTT ZIRITE % - ™ 4910,400,000 &
7t (= Z — A £ : 21,900,000 7T) B LA 7T
SE-FBTEHRLEES - —REFBFEDE
77 7K 474,000,000 7T » HE {5 A — AR IR 1T
FE R (K sE32) -
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SHARE CAPITAL 26. BRIK
Company
RAF
Number of Nominal
shares values
BHEE HE
Notes in 000 HK$ 000
Bt & T’ FE R
Authorised: EE:
As at 1 January 2015 R=—Z—haF—HF—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each BREESE L LER 2,500,000 200,000
Share sub-division s a(i) 197,500,000 =
As at 31 December 2015, R=ZZFE—RF+=ZRA=+—8H"
1 January 2016 —E-R"F—-HA—H
and 31 December 2016 k=ZFE—-X"F+=ZA=+—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FRAEE0.001B Lz L &M 200,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRARE:
As at 1 January 2015 R-—ZE—hAF—A—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each FREE.8E Lz LB 383,031 30,643
Capital reduction 1% S B alii) - (30,260)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FREE0.001 B Tz TR 383,031 383
Issue of offer shares BITHERN b 766,063 766
Issue of shares under general mandate RE—REEETRO c 76,000 76
As at 31 December 2015 RZFE—RAF+=ZA=+—8H
and 1 January 2016 k—_ZT—XRF—HA—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each TR AEE0.0018 T 2 @K 1,225,094 1,225
Issue of shares under general mandate B —BREREETRG d 395,000 395
As at 31 December 2016 RZFE—R"E+-_A=+—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each SR AEE0.001 T 2 X @ K 1,620,094 1,620
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26.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 6 January 2015, the Company’s proposal on the capital
reorganization (“Capital Reorganisation”) became effective. The
Capital Reorganisation involved the following:

(i) each authorised but unissued share of the Company was
subdivided into eighty shares so that the nominal value of each
unissued share was reduced from HK$0.08 to HK$0.001 each;
and

(ii) the paid up capital of each issued share was reduced from
HK$0.08 to HK$0.001 by cancelling the paid up capital to the
extent of HK$0.079 so as to form a new share with nominal
value of HK$0.001 each.

On 10 August 2015, the Company issued offer shares on the basis
of two offer shares for every one existing share held on 16 July 2015,
at the subscription price of HK$0.09 per offer share with nominal
value of HK$0.001 each, resulting in net proceeds of approximately
HK$66.2 million, which would be used for (i) as to not less than 80%
for the capital injection into Heng He as its general working capital
to facilitate the expansion of the finance lease business and (ii) the
remaining net proceeds for strengthening the general working capital
base of the Company to develop its existing information technology
and trading businesses and/or to finance any future investment
opportunities.

On 17 August 2015, the Company entered into a General Mandate
("GM") placing agreement with a placing agent whereby the
Company conditionally agreed to place through the Placing Agent,
on a best endeavour basis, up to 76,000,000 Placing Shares, to not
less than six placees at a price of HK$0.120 per GM placing share.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$8.5 million from GM placing
shares would be used for strengthening the general working capital
to finance the business development and to finance any future
investment opportunities of the Company.

26. MK
GEE

(a)

(%)

R-ZE-—RE—-RARNB ARAEHET
ZBRAEE(TRAEEDER -RAEA
Wk THI&E:

(i) ARBFRATERETRSG DIF
BNTEREG  BESRREITR
7 ®) T {8 8 0.08 7% 7T Bl )& £ 0.001 75
T R

iy BREBFTROMNBERZAHO0.08
B ITHIR Z0.001 78 7T+ 7 0A Bk
H5%0.0798B T 2 B RBEA - REA
K& E{E0.001 8T 2 F D -

R=ZZ—RAFNA+H AARER=ZZ
—AFELtATABEHEE—BKRBEBERD
BEMBRBERMIEE UERBER
H (FREEO0.001%87C)0.098 T 2 RE
BERTEHERD ELXEFMSREFELD
66,200,000 7T * H A - () 21K 80% % A
REAEBMEE FAHL—REEE SR
HEEEREMES XS R TAEREF
EBERARBEEARRZ —REEESHE
W EAZREBEEANERESER
E/SEFMAREERBREES -

R=ZZFE—aAFNA+LtH AQAAH—
EEREREBITL —MEE(T—REE]
RBEHE B AQ2RABREREE
BRERBERBEMEEE EE5%
76,000,000 iR B2 & AR 3 F 1 2 R /< & & B
A BRAEBR —MEEEERD0.120%
T~ MBEERERG ZAFRBFEL
8,500,000 T AN ERE —REEES
EUBEBRERARDAEMAARKREE
KBIRHEES -
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26.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(d)

On 14 March 2016, the Company entered into a General Mandate
(“GM") placing agreement with a placing agent whereby the Company
conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent, on a best
endeavour basis, up to 245,000,000 Placing Shares, to not less than
six placees at a price of HK$0.119 per GM placing share. On 31
March 2016, the Company entered into a supplemental agreement
with the placing agent to reduce the number of placing shares to
125,000,000. On 8 April 2016, 125,000,000 new shares were placed.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$14.3 million would be used
for the capital injections into Heng He and the remaining for general
working capital.

And on 8 June 2016, the Company entered into another GM
placing agreement with a placing agent whereby the Company
conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent, on a best
endeavour basis, up to 270,000,000 Placing shares, to not less than
six placees at a price of HK$0.092 per GM placing share. On 24 June
2016, 270,000,000 new shares were placed. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$24.3 million would be used for capital injection
into Heng He and the remaining for general working capital.

26.

AR IR ()

(d)

RZTB—R"E=A+MB  AARHERE
REBITZ—RBER(T—BEEDEEH
FOBRE O ARAEKRGHREESEBEE
R I2 1% 98 3 AT e L ZE it & & % 245,000,000
BREESRHO FTALPRANBEBEA BRE
BR—BEEREERHB0.119B T R =
E-—XRF=ZA=Z=+—H A2 FEHEER
BV HSE URIEERDEE =S
125,000,000f% - R —ZFE— X XEMAN\B -
125,000,000 B% 37 B& 19 B B BL & ° AT 15 5/ 1B
S %A #714,300,0005 7T #8 B 1EST & B
HEAIAE—REEED -

R-ZTE—RNENANB AQFHEEER
BV —TH—BEEESHZE Kt
AARBEGEHRAZELREEREIRBE
FIT 8 & % Fid & & % 270,000,000 % fi2 & A% 1
FRORANEBERBA ERETHR— KT
BREERM0.0N2EBIL - KT —NFN
H=-+PH - 270,000,000 8% 37 B2 15 2 E &
£ o FT15 3K B F %8 49 24,300,000 7T i A
Ex BB REBAAE—REEZESD -
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27.

RESERVES

Nature and purpose of the reserves

(@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company, provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Contributed surplus

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of
the fair value of the shares of a subsidiary acquired in prior
years, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange thereof.

Equity component of convertible bonds

The value of unexercised equity component of convertible
bonds issued by the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, The amount
will either be transferred to the share premium account when
the related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained
profits should the related options expire or be forfeited.

Capital reduction reserve
Capital reduction reserve is the credit arising from the capital
reduction.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the overseas subsidiaries.

Distributability of reserves

The aggregate amount of reserves available for the distribution
to owners of the Company calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands was approximately
HK$ 1,665,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

27.

fié 8

BELEEREH

(0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

R 13 % B
REASEHBERRE MR EEES
DK EEBR  ARFREHERNB
FEBBERIMOES  RIRMDE
BRAIDIKTARARR -

BAEER

RABOBABRBKENEFREN—
B ERRMNKNDAFEE BHA
TER M 31T Y AR & B R0 T (B B9 =

TERRESESESD
RABRABITABRRES 2 RITER
s NZBEEDREEBAUERRZE
HFEERTIAER -

BEBRERE

BEABREREREESRLMHRTT
E2EEBREZATVEERE ZBE
ENFHEABRERTERERE
B aER XREEELEREDR
PR JE SO W B E AR S A

BR 7 Wl {1
P S B R 8 4R A RS IR EE AR O
BE o

B oK B R
EARBRHERERRESIINE R
A REELEZMAELZR
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BERARANE AHLIKTARRKE
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28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

29.

28. BEMBEIE

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—RFE

HK$' 000 HK$ 000

FET TF& T

As at 1 January n—H—H - -

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) U B8 — 5 BT BB 2 A (B 3£ 39) 463 s

As at 31 December R+—_A=+—H 463 -

CONVERTIBLE BONDS ok ES

(1) 2008 CB 1) =ZENFAULRES

On 12 August 2008, the Company issued a Convertible
Bonds as part of the consideration for the acquisition of
forest concessions in Papua, Indonesia (“2008 CB").

Subject to the restrictions specified below (Conversion
Restriction), the 2008 CB are convertible at the option of the
bondholders into ordinary shares in the Company at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.1 per share (subject to adjustments
as provided in the terms and conditions of the 2008 CB)
at any time from the date of issue and ending on the fifth
business day before the third anniversary of the date of issue:

o The bondholders do not have the right to convert
any principal amount of the Convertible Bonds into
new shares of the Company thereof, if upon such
conversion, MCL and the parties acting in concert
with it will be interested in 30% (or such amount as
may from time to time be specified in the Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases as being
the level for triggering a mandatory general offer)
or more of the enlarged issued share capital of the
Company at the date of relevant conversion;

o The conversion of the Convertible Bonds shall not
cause the Company to be in breach of the minimum
public float requirement as stipulated under Rule 11.23
of the GEM Listing Rules; and

o The bondholders do not have the right to convert
any Convertible Bonds with the principal amount
falling between the range of HK$350,000,000 to
HK$776,880,000 at any time during the period from
the issue date up to and inclusive of the date that falls
on the first anniversary of the issue date.

The 2008 CB are unsecured, interest-free and have a maturity
date of 12 August 2011. Unless converted into the Shares of
the Company, the outstanding balance of the 2008 CB would
be redeemed in full on maturity.

R-ZZBENFNATZH AR AHE
TR ES  (FRWEHEEM S
ERMBFEZBOIRBET=2FTFN
FRBRRES] -

BERBEAEANEE RETEHEH
THER=-BFzAEREEXA L
HIM A BERRY P BRARE SR
BR(AIRE_ZFTNFARRKES
ZIERBARMFAATAE A )& —
ERNFABRBREFABRESANRAE
AR o MER T AT SR B (BR AR 1)) :

. M K 1% MCL & B H — 877
BATRIEBRERBBEHES
AABERZEERNEBEITR
R30%(sk 2~ R UKEE - & G R’
5 B8 B 57 Al /] BE T BF 46 & A 18
BHoaHEEAKREENKEZ
BFRRAE D) A LR BlE
FRAEAEERERBEMA
THEZAIBRESFLBEAEARA
AR

. HBABRREFTSERAR
AIERABIZER EmAEANE11.23
BTAHZREEARERER
F &

. BERFBEAZABRRKES A
% %/ F350,000,000/8 7T &
776,880,000 ot Z M & » A
THHEEETAESE R —BF 2
A(EEEREmAB) AT
o] By ) 4B 4 3 o

— TR N\FUEARBESFA/EER 2
EER-_F——F/\A+=-HEH-
BRIEARBA LSRN TA—FF
J\E R R R 55 1 R L R AR B 0 B
HREHED -
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29.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

1

2008 CB (Continued)

By the first supplemental deed dated 30 May 2011, the
maturity date of the 2008 CB was extended for 3 years and
the conversion period will accordingly be extended from
12 August 2011 to 12 August 2014 (new maturity date).
Upon becoming effective of the first supplemental deed, the
Company may at any time during the period commencing
from the date of extension to the new maturity date to
redeem the whole or part of the outstanding 2008 CB at
par on a pro rata basis. Also, the Conversion Restriction was
removed. Apart from the extension of the maturity date,
the conversion period, the early redemption right and the
removal of the Conversion Restriction, all terms of the 2008
CB remain unchanged.

By the second supplemental deed dated 9 July 2014, the
maturity date of the 2008 CB was extended for 3 years and
the conversion period will accordingly be extended from 12
August 2014 to 12 August 2017 (new maturity date). Upon
becoming effective of the second supplemental deed, the
Company may at any time during the period commencing
from the date of extension to the new maturity date to
redeem the whole or part of the outstanding 2008 CB on a
pro rata basis.

Upon effective of the second supplemental deed, the
2008 CB was valued by the directors of the Company with
reference to a valuation report issued by Roma Appraisal
Limited, an independent qualified valuer not connected to
the Group. Gain on extinguishment of convertible bonds of
approximately HK$39,480,000 was recognised in the profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The outstanding principal amount of the 2008 CB as
at 31 December 2016 was HK$124,068,000 (2015:
HK$124,068,000) conferring rights to convert into a total of
335,681,818 ordinary shares (2015: 335,681,818).

29. O fEH W

(1

“EENEFURRESGE

HOTEMA-T——FHA=+A
2E—BRERE —EEN\FAR
Bt % 2 B8 BT R =4 - AR 2
TEEME-F——FN\A+-BE
EE-Z2-—m&N\A+=A (H 55
) RE—BWERBENE AR
B AT 3 HE 5 4 44 B £ 2 7 20 51 B 53R
7 (E RS B - 2 M R b 9 B 1
SED KRR T =T\ F A BB E
%o S50 BB HESIG c RIEE
580 B K A 00 50 92 BB EL 9 % 5
BRI IS - — BT\ A AR
S HERBETE -

EIVABA-—ZT—NFLtANBZ
F_MEARE —EEN\FABK
BEBAZAHBHBALER=F MMAEZA
BB T —mWFEFNR T+ ZHE
EE-_Z—+tFNA+=-_BHGTEH
H) - RE-_ARNFBRZEERE AR
RIATRERBIRAREFH D H B 2 HE
Z AR BE R v 3R b I BB B & 2B sk 2
RAEM|Z_ZETNFABBES -

FE_MERZBEERE ARAES
R2ERAEBVTEBENBLAE
REEMESTEARQR TIE 2
HEZRE ST NFUBRRKRES
ETHE FTHIURRES 2 WED
39,480,000 8 TEREZEZE T —UF
+—_A=+—BLEFEZEBZANE
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o °

RZE—ARFE+_A=Z=+—8H' =
TENFABRBREFNALBRLS
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 29. OJRRES @)
(1) 2008 CB (Continued) 1) =ZZEENEUBRRESHE)
The 2008 CB contain two components, the liability and equity ZETIN\FARKRESFBIEABRE
components. The equity component is presented in equity as FI R E AR D o Bamab D LATA
an “Equity component of convertible bonds'”. REH 2 ERBLHIZT -
The effective interest rate of the liability component is as BEFSNEENEAT
follow:
Second First
Supplemental Supplemental
deed deed
£=4 E—0
HWREEE MR E
Effective interest rate R F = 14.13% 11.66%
The movement of the liability component of the convertible FANARKRESFBEILD 2 ZEHT
bonds for the year was set out below: U
2016 2015
—EB-AE —E-hF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FER FHT
As at 1 January Rn—H—H 100,205 87,803
Interest charged FMEER 14,195 12,402
As at 31 December R+ZRA=+—8H 114,400 100,205
(20 2015CB 2 =E-—HETHRERESH

On 21 April 2015, the Company issued the convertible bonds
(2015 CB) as part of the consideration for the acquisition of
Blossom Height Ventures Limited and its subsidiaries.

The outstanding principal amount of the 2015 CB as at 31
December 2016 was HK$40,000,000 (2015: HK$40,000,000)
conferring rights to convert into a total of 173,913,043
ordinary shares of the Company (2015: 173,913,043).

R—ZZE—REWMA=-_+—H AR
RIZETIIBRKRESR(ZE—RHFA
BAREH) - 1E A W Blossom Height
Ventures Limited & £ M B A 7] Z 28 5
RE -

R=ZZFE—AR"FE+=ZA=+—8' =
T—AFAUBRBREFNALRAS
%8 440,000,000 L (Z & — A F:
40,000,000/ 7T) * M A #EA /] KB A
4 $£173,913,043 0 A A & L@ (=
T — R 4F:173,913,043 %) °
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29.

30.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
(2) 2015 CB (Continued)

The 2015 CB are convertible at the option of the bondholders
into ordinary shares in the Company at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.32 per share (subject to adjustment as provided
in the terms and conditions of the 2015 CB) at any time from
the date of issue and ending on the fifth business day before
the third anniversary of the date of issue.

As a result of open offer of shares on 10 August 2015, the
conversion price of 2015 CB have been adjusted to HK$0.23.

The 2015 CB are unsecured, interest-free and have a maturity
date fall on the third anniversary from the date of issue.

At the maturity date, any outstanding principal amount of the
2015 CB will be compulsorily converted into ordinary shares
at HK$0.23 per share. The compulsorily conversion feature of
the 2015 CB is, in substance, a prepaid forward purchase of
the fixed number of shares of the Company. Accordingly, at
the date of initial recognition, the fair value of the 2015 CB
was wholly recognised as equity and will not be remeasured
subsequently.

PROMISSORY NOTES

On 4 April 2014, The Company issued a promissory note with
principal amounts of HK$51.0 million (2014 PN) as a partial
consideration for the acquisition of Ever Hero Group. The 2014 PN
bears interest at 2% per annum and is due on the date falling on
the last day of the 36th month from the date of issue of the 2014
PN (the “2014 PN Maturity Date”). The maturity date is 4 April 2017.
The Company has the right to repay in full or in part of the principal
amount of the 2014 PN prior to the 2014 PN Maturity Date at par.

On 21 April 2015, The Company issued a promissory note
with principal value of HK$32.0 million (2015 PN) as a partial
consideration for the acquisition of Blossom Height Ventures
Limited, and its subsidiaries (the “Blossom Group’). The 2015 PN
carries no interest and is fall due on the last day of the 42th month
from the date of issue of the 2015 PN (the “2015 PN Maturity
Date”). The maturity date is 21 April 2018. The Company has the
right to repay in whole or in part prior to the 2015 PN Maturity
Date at par.

29.

30.

oz E S @)
2 =Z—HFEuHRKRES®

BEFAAANEE RETEHEHR
THEm=BFZAER@EZEA L
HE A BERRNSHRRESR.32
BLT(AIRE_T-—AFARRKRES
Z AR TR B A A P AT PR A T A8 B 8§ —
T-AFAERESFLBRARARE

HRE_ZT—RAFNAT+THARABE
BHm M —RAFABRRESNR
BREEEFAEZ023BT -

“T-AEUBRKREFAEER %
EEREZTEHR=BFER 3
/HEO

REHBE ER-_ZF-HEFABRE
I 2 AR & B8 K 58 R B A 0.23
BALTEBRASEREK - ARME —F
—hFABRBRESR R LR
RENEHBABEHE Z2AQA
BB RMEEREH —F
—REABEREFZATFEBRETH
ERARED HRBTEENTE -

B9 E2I

R-ZT—WEMANAB  ARAIETAE
%8 451,000,000 L 2 & R BB (ZF— M
FE G Z ) o 1E AU BE Ever Hero & & 2 36
PRE T NFALEZEFHNERA
2% R —_E—WFEREZHEAETH
HEF=+XEAAz&E%Z—B(=F—NX
FARALEZRINHADIB - PR AE=-Z
—+tFMAMNE AR AER TN
FAHZEINPEZAEMESZHBXIT S
EE-_T—NFALERZAE -

RZE—REWMA-_+—RB  XAR BT
A& 532,000,000 L2 A& R ER(ZE
—REEEER) - {E R Y EBlossom Height
Ventures Limited & £ i & A &) ([Blossom &
BN EHIRB - —E—AFRAREBW
TatB BR - E—AFANEEBRT
AR ENt+-—_@EAZEZ—B(==%
—EFEAREZRINHADIH-EHE A
—E-NFOA-t+—HBH - ARABHER
T REARZEINHACHEEEE
BEREIHILH AL o
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30.

—RETZA=T-ALEE

PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued) 30. RRREE
The movement of the promissory notes was as follows: REAREZESEHMT:
2016 2015
—E-XE E—FhF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FER FHT
As at 1 January Rn—HA—H 47,627 44,291
Issuance upon acquisition of Blossom Group " Z=Z — A F M A =+ — A W fEBlossom
on 21 April 2015 (“2015 PN SERBET(ZE—RAFALER]D - 21,373
Coupon interest charged ZEAME ;E’ 472 658
Imputed interest charged HEFEE 4,810 3,317
Early repayment REER (2,507) (22,012)
As at 31 December R+—A=+—H 50,402 47,627

i)

The fair value of the 2014 PN was approximately HK$44.1
million as at the issue date, calculated at the effective interest
rate of 7.04% per annum. The promissory note is carried at
amortised cost until settlement on due date.

On 1 September 2014, the Company early repaid HK$2.4
million. As a result, the total principal amount of outstanding
2014 PN was HK$48.6 million as at 31 December 2014.

On 19 March 2015 and 20 April 2015, the Company early
repaid each of HK$10.0 million of the 2014 PN at cash
consideration respectively. As a result, the total principal
amount of outstanding 2014 PN was HK$28.6 million.

The principal amount of the 2014 PN is subject to a
downward adjustment on the due day in the event that the
audited profit before taxation and before extraordinary items
of Netgenii Technology Limited (the subsidiary of Ever Hero
Group) for each of the years ended 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2014 is not attained, on a dollar-to-dollar basis.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the carrying amount
of the 2014 PN was approximately HK$26.2 million and
HK$24.4 million respectively.

T NEEAREBEREBETAHRZA
FEENEBRFENETIA%E 4
£ 44,100,0007% 7T © A X iE i 8 5E
RAGIER  BEEREIBAES AL -

R-_ZE—WFEALA—RB AQFRR
E3#£2,400,0008 70 ABIR =T — g
F+-_A=+—H —ZE—MNFEEAEY
FERRITFE A £ 425 548,600,000

JG °

m:g—£¢5ﬁ+na&::
—AREMAB=-+H  AAaDHIK
¢t REEE-_T— Eiﬁkﬁ/\ﬁ%x
10,000,000/8 ;L KB + LABUH R 1T
Fr _T—NEARZERS BB
28,600,000 T

WMESEELEFE HEREERA
Al (Ever Hero £ B 2 [fi B A 7)) T g 1
2T —=F+-_A=+—HBk=
E—NFE+_A=Z+—"BHLEEESF
EIREZHRBMERIELEEB G
ﬂ A —NEFARLEBEAEHR
B|EE T o

=
| I

T - RNER-_ZE—RHF+ =
A=+—H ' —F— EE%RTE
BREE 5 Bl # A&26,200,0008 7T &
24,400,000 % 7T °
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30. PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued)

30.

(i) The fair value of the 2015 PN was approximately HK$21.4 (i)
million as at the issue date by using the discounted cash flow
approach at prevailing market rate of approximately 13.53%

per annum.

The principal amount of the 2015 PN is subject to downward
adjustment in the event that the audited consolidated net
profit after taxation and any extraordinary and exceptional
items of the Blossom Group is less than HK$10.0 million for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2015, 2016 and
2017, the 2015 PN shall be reduced on a dollar to dollar basis
by the amount of shortfall of the profit guarantee for the
relevant year and cannot be carried forward to subsequent
year. Blossom Group has met the profit guarantee for the
year ended 31 December 2015 and 2016.

On 31 December 2016, the Company partially repaid the
outstanding principal approximately HK$3.0 million at cash.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the carrying amount
of the 2015 PN was approximately HK$24.2 million and

HK$23.2 million respectively.

31. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

31.

Minimum lease payments

X )

—E-RAFALEBRRNEITABE
REEIB e REEZNRITMIEEF
K13 53%TE2AFEENA
21,400,00078 JC °

f@Blossom&EBRBE_ZT—HF - =
T RNER _T—+tEF+-_A=+—
HE=-FAFESFEBEREAKRTER
ERFEEFEREHR 2B BEF DR
10,000,000 70> Al —CE—RAF AL E
BAEETFTTA —E—RFALE
BREEREEZERDBEFTERF
REZTRHE BTERNEEREELS
# o Blossom&EBEREBE T — X~ F
F—ZE—RE+-A=+t—RHILEE

2= B E M ARE

RZEBE—RE+-_A=+—08 &2
ANRESERE Y M ARAALBREE L
3,000,000 7T °

RZE—RNRERERZZE—HF+=
A=+—H —Z—RAFEAHLZEE
BREE S B4 A24,200,0008 T &
23,200,000 7T ©

MEHESAE

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—8

Present value of minimum
lease payments

REAERE BEAEXRERE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RFE ZT—HF ZE-RE ZT—A1F
HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FHET FHE T FHET T
Amount payable et € 5
Within one year —FR 1,011 1,011 942 899
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_EZFAF(BEEERMT) 1,056 2,067 1,026 1,968
2,067 3,078 1,968 2,867
Future finance charges ARBEER (99) (11) NATER NATEMA
Present value of lease obligations HERERE 1,968 2,867
Less: Amount due for settlement B t=ZEARESZEE
within 12 months BEE 942 899
Amount due for settlement T-EAZEIE B
after 12 months EREEEE 1,026 1,968

The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the

assets as disclosed in Note 14.

REBMREEERAEAMTI4FKREE

EERER-



Notes to the Financial Statements

87 15 ¥ 2% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—ZT— A AF+-_A=T—HIEFE

32. BANK BORROWINGS 32. RITEX
As at 31 December
R+=HA=+-—H
2016 2015
— —E—hF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000
M & FHET FHT
Fixed rate: E I =
Secured bank borrowings BRI RITE R
— repayable on demand -HEERER a 206 206
Secured bank borrowings EEAEITERK
— due within one year -R—FRNEH b 3,830 374,018
4,036 374,224
Secured bank borrowings
— due more than one year, BEHEMRITEK
but not more than three years -R—FRBE=FRIH b 1,691,649 477,600
1,695,685 851,824
Notes:

a The bank borrowings were secured by a personal guarantee
given by a former director of a subsidiary of the Company.
The interest rate of this bank borrowing was charged at
0.88% flat per month.

b Bank borrowings obtained in the PRC were secured by the
finance lease assets held by the leasee with the carrying
value of approximately RMB1,858.1 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,074.7 million), as at 31 December
2016 (2015: RMB802.1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$957.8 million)). The interest rate of the bank loans were
ranged from 4.9% to 6.3% per annum (2015: 5.1% to 6.3%
per annum).

Included therein, a general banking facility amounted to
HK$7.0 million was secured by a deposit of HK$4.0 million.
The facility was utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$3.8 million as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015:
Nil). This general banking facility is subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the security coverage
ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If any of the security coverage ratios
shall at any time fall below the level required, the Group
shall provide additional security acceptable to the bank and/
or reduce the outstanding of the facilities designated by the
bank. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants.

RITERBAARRA —HHBAR—%
AMEEERHE ZEAEREERR 1
BIRTERZHNBZE AT E0.88%
YL ER ©

BRITEZFUN = —ARF+_A=+—
BHERmEE 4 & A K ¥ 1,858,100,000 7T
(M #2,074,700,0005 T) (=T
—F & AR #802,100,000 (18 % 1 49
957,800,000/ 1)) Z AT A F1#5 4 &t
BHREEEFEER RITERZF X
BENF49%E63%(ZF—HF:
FENF51%ZE6.3%) °

Hh o —AZER17 8 & 7,000,000 7 7T LA
5 34,000,000 T EE I - R =T
—RNE+-_A=+—HB EHH%
& #73,800,0008 L (ZZE—HF+=
A=+—H: %) - %Z—MBITHMEA
FRETEFEELREHECLEE
EREBEFESEE Mt HES mEE
1 8 3 HE 1 3 1B 0% o fin fF (T 3R
78 25 L =R pAME ] B RS K R BT 4R B 7K
FooREEBIREERIT A EH 2@
BRSO ADRITATIEEZ M AS
BREsE - AEETETHETHEETZ
EREZER -
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33. TRADE PAYABLES 33. BREMRKIEA
An aged analysis of trade payables as at the end of reporting period RMEMR BFRMNREREZEHH
based on the invoice date, are as follows: BREC DT T :
As at 31 December
R+=—H=+-8
2016 2015
—E-XRF —E-REF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHBT
Trade payable from trading business BHEBHE S ENHIE 373 1,057
Trade payable from information technology business & BHX Z KK E 5 & 78 2,052 2,488
Trade payable from financial services business SRRBEBNE S ENFIE 29,906 16,324
Amount payable arising *EEFH
from the business of dealing in securities BB EBHHEMNRE
- Cash clients -BeRP 6,120 =
- HKSCC -BAEREE 1,974 -
40,425 19,869

An aged analysis of trade payables arising from business other than
dealing in securities as at the end of reporting period based on the

invoice date / contractual term, are as follows:

RBEHAR REBFHEBEUIINEBNE
SEMNRERBZAE AHHNERED
W

As at 31 December

R+t=-—A=+-—A8
2016 2015
—E-XKE —T—AF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FEx FH&T
Within 30 days 30 A 29,931 17,514
31 to 60 days 31260 H - 236
61 to 120 days 61E120H 4 =
Over 120 days 1208 LA £ 2,396 2,119
32,331 19,869
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34.

35.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

34.

H fth /& T 7K 18 K2 [& 5t TR IB

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2016 2015
—E—-XEF —E R
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FER FET
Other payables (note) H P& A5 3078 (B &) 56,518 7,041
Accruals &t FRIA 781 731
57,299 7,772
Note: B 5
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of three HtEMNXERES  FTHHERR=M@A -

months.

As at 31 December 2016, included in other payables an amount of
approximately HK$44,664,000 due to a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Company. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants for
their contribution to the Group. The share option scheme of the
Company was effective on 3 May 2012, when the annual general
meeting was held. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the
share option scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from the date of its adoption. The Board may, at their discretion,
offer options to any full-time or part-time employee or director of
any member of the Group, and any consultant of or adviser to any
member of the Group (the “Participants’) to subscribe for shares of
the Company (the “Shares”).

35.

R-Z-AE+-A=+-0 HbENRE
R RPN PNCE T e
44,664,000% 7T - Z R EAMER - % B RAMRE
EREE -

8RR st 8l

ARBIHTELBERESSE  5ERHE R
EEEERNAERSEEREFENE
FoARARABABEREFESABRRBEFK
SRTEA_ZE——HFFA=H4AER - KB
EBITHBEKER] TREBLEREE
MR ERMB BRI I0OFHBAB R -
ETeURNEEASEEKE R NERMZ
BB EEXREET URKNEBFEMAK
ERARMNBEBRNKZRAA2EEDEHE
SERE URBARRKS (G -
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35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be
exercised under all share option scheme must not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of Shares available for issue under share
options which may be granted under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
Shares in issue. The maximum number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted and to be granted
to each Participant (including both exercised and outstanding share
options) in any 12-month period up to the date of grant must not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at the date of grant. Any further
grant of share options in excess of the above limit must be subject
to shareholders’” approval with such Participant and his associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) abstaining from voting.

If share options are granted to a connected person (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules) or his associates, the granting of such share
options will be subject to approval of all INEDs (excluding INED
who is a grantee); where options are proposed to be granted to a
connected person who is also a substantial shareholder or an INED
of the Company or any of their respective associates which will
result in the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted or to be granted (including
share options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
under the share option scheme in the past 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant: (1) exceeding 0.1% of the
total issued Shares for the time being; and (2) having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, the granting of such options
will be subject to approval of the independent shareholders of the
Company. All connected persons will abstain from voting (except
any connected person that may vote against the resolution).

Upon acceptance of the share option offers, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company as consideration for each offer. The share
option will be offered for acceptance for a period of 28 days (or
such shorter period as the Board may from time to time determine)
from the date on which the share option is granted. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors
and commences after a certain vesting period, if any, as determined
by the directors and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years
from the date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of
the share option scheme, if earlier.

35.
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35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price of the share in respect of any particular share
option granted under the share option scheme shall be such price
as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that
such price shall be the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet on the date
of the grant of the share option, which must be a business day;
(ii) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the share option;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the share
option scheme during the year:

35.

BrERiEst 8w

REELEREFSRLNENTEES
BREMPEBRNORABEHESS 2R
RTE - MEEERBRTEATIBR 2 &
BREAE (REELEREZB(BLAS
BERBIMEHBRERMIRMD KT
B MEERLEBABREZANDMESX
BE X PE A RERMIRMD®FH KRS
(B A R tn 2 E{E

BEABEREYERTHEABRRRERR
BRAGKEMERN -

RER BEBREFEBT 2 RITERE
SRR ER T

2016 2015
ZE-RE —ZE-RE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
mMEFY EEBRE NETYH BxBkE
THEE B TR 2B
HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share '000
(BRER) (TR) (BRET) (TR
At beginning of the year REA] 0.153 233,404 5.505 256
Adjusted during the year FAR
upon effective of open offer ANRBEEEMEZ AR - - - 148
Lapsed / issued during the year RE R K/ R 3.6 (14) 0.147 233,000
At end of the year RE K 0.153 233,390 0.153 233,404
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35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 35.

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding and exercisable as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

B ERiEs 8

RBERR RTERATEELBRE
ZTEERTERELAT:

2016

—E-RE

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period

BEBEREHA THEE* THEHE

000 HKS$ per share

) BRERT

359 36 30 May 2012 to 29 May 2022

—E—C—FRAA=tHE-_ZE-_—_FRA=+ANH

31 2.13 17 January 2013 to 16 January 2023
—E—=F—At+tHBEZZFT==F—H+XH

233,000 0.147 19 August 2015 to 18 August 2025
—E-RAFNART+NABE=ZZE-_RAFN\A+N\H

2015

—¥—h%F

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period

BEBREHAE TEE 17 B fE

000 HK$ per share

T 15 BERAET

373 3.6 30 May 2012 to 29 May 2022

- —HFRA=+tHREZZ-_=_FRA=+NIH

31 2.13 17 January 2013 to 16 January 2023
T =—F—A+tAE-ZE-_=F—A+H

233,000 0.147 19 August 2015 to 18 August 2025
—E-hENA+IhBEZZE=_RAFNA+N\A

= The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case ka BEBREZITEEARERIBFTAR
of rights or bonus issues, or other changes in the Company’s share B AR A A AR AN H i B 5 I G EE o
capital.

The share options were vested at the date of grant. No share option
has been granted during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
233,000,000 share options were granted and the related share
option expenses recognised was approximately HK$26,400,000).

BEEREARLEARE REE-Z
—RNEFE+-_A=1+t—BIEE HEFD
BEBERE(ZZ — f 4 : 233,000,000 &
FEREERL MERRANEHEELE
f% 1 & F 49 /526,400,000 7T ) ©
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35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 35.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2015 was estimated as at the date of
grant, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

BrERiEst 8w

BE-_ZE—RE+-_A=T—HBLEEER
FERALEEELERENATFEELR
FEEEAMOR eTRT SR EEE
A E - WA E EE LB R ER LR A GK
KRG - TREH N B KA A &
A :

2015

—E-hF

Share price (HK$) & & & 7T) 0.147
Dividend yield (%) & 2R (%) =
Expected volatility (%) T8 HR R 1R(%) 106
Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 3 [ B R (%) 1.19
Expected life of options (year) 8 50 B AR i 1 (i 51 48 B (4F) 5
Closing share price at grant date (HK$) RBEEBEH 2R HWTEGET) 0.147

The expected life of the options is based on management
expectation and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility is estimated based on daily
historical stock prices of the comparable companies for a period
with length commensurate to expected term.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 233,390,855
(2015: 233,404,981) share options outstanding under the share
option scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 233,390,855 (2015: 233,404,981) additional
ordinary shares in the Company and additional share capital
of approximately HK$233,400 (2015: HK$233,400) and share
premium of approximately HK$35,400,000 (2015: HK$35,430,000)
(before issue expenses).

BEBRENBFFADERETERE 2R
B RRBEBRRARLR ZITERN -
T8 B 08 T AR 4% P L 8% ] Bh EL TR A )
IR E A E LB LE -

AREAFEERYEFRERLEELBR
FE By E A A 1 o

RBmEBHK BRIEFEELERKRES
N A A A 233,390,855 (= FE — f &
233,404,981 13) M RITFEE L BERE - R
BARAARBEARALE WExE K
TENELEREEZATHE  HEEH
RN BB 9B 17233,390,855 % (= ZE — h
F:233,404,981 %) T @R AR - 804
233,400 7T (=& — T £ : 233,400 7T) %
78} #8850 #935,400,00008 T (Z T — 1 £ -
35,430,000 70) IR 55 B (R 2T H X
A) ©
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36.

37.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. KEMNOKIE
The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating AEERBELCEHOTHBEESETHA
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms EME - LEFOMERNFANT —Z
ranging from one to three years. =4
The Group had total future minimum lease payments under non- NEE T 5 H fE w89 1 AT B EE A = A8
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: AR RRERERNRIBEES:
As at 31 December
R+t=B=+-—8
2016 2015
ZE-RE —EZ-IF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FER FHT
Within one year —&FR 2,742 1,526
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EF_ZERF(BEERMF) 1,016 1,667
3,758 3,193
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BBAXRSA
Save as disclosed in elsewhere to the consolidated financial BRRéreMBRREMESMIBEESIN
statements, the Group have the following related party transactions. REBEUTEBAIRS -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HILEE

2016 2015
—E-XREF —ET—ARF
Name of related party Relationship Nature of transaction HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BEL 2B R REME FHERT FAT
Lai Yau Hong, Thomson Secretary of the Company Loan interest payable
8 $h B NN R/ P& E KRR 28 4
Loan payable
& & K 200 200
Note: The interest rate of the loan was 1% per month. In the opinion of the Wax: BEXFNERTRAI% - BEFRAE K&
directors, the transactions between the Group and the related party BEHEBEBRS RS TREBEBKRIE
were conducted in the ordinary course of business. LT o
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group AEEXTEZEEE AB 2
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEFE
2016 2015
ZE-R"E ~—T—RHF
HK$ 000 HK$' 000
FHERT FAT
Short term employee benefits EHEERA 6,600 3,470
Post-employment benefits 1& A 1% 12 A 54 23
Equity-settled share option expense IR EEEMELEERERS - 15,068

Total compensation paid to
key management personnel NFEEEBABZEMESR 6,654 18,561
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise convertible
bonds, promissory notes, bank borrowings, cash and short-term
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group’s
policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing this risk and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales, purchases or expenditure by operating units in
currencies other than the units” functional currencies. The following
table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period
to a reasonably possible change in the exchange rates of the HK
dollar ("HK$") and Renminbi (‘RMB”), with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's loss before tax (due to changes in the fair
value of monetary assets and liabilities).

38.

B #5 R IR E IR B IR KRR

AEBCZFEZcMIAREARRES
ARERE RITER REREHHER - Z
FeRITATBZEERASBEZLESS
B -AKEEEZRAMCEMEERA
B - WEEREEEELECE 5 B EHA
KB 5N RIE

FEBZBRRERANREBEFEEEFTETE
MEMITARS -

AEESRTIAMELEZEIZRBRAINEG
RERkidEdchR EFE2EHURAE
EESEER CBER  EKHAmT o

o B By

AEEPERXHERRR ZERABRKE
NEBBEMMNEREAIINEREFELNE
EhAX TERBAERNBT(AET]) R
ARBTARBDEZTNAEES  £H
MEHRFTTIEOBERT  HAKERH
SHROGBEHABE(EREEEEREE
ZAFEEES) OEREDN -

Increase /
(decrease) in loss
before tax and
accumulated loss

Increase /
(decrease) in
exchange rate

BRBEAEER
Extd - RiEEEM
(F %) (R 2)
% HK$’ 000
% F& T
2016 —E-XRE
If HK$ weakens against RMB WA THAREEE 10 64
If HK$ strengthens against RMB WA THARERE (10) (64)
2015 —T—hF
If HK$ weakens against RMB WS T ARBRE (10) (15,656)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB WA T H AREFAE 10 15,656
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 38. Ei¥ @M ERBIR KR @)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk RENE B R
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity AEBZENRERSMNAATBREKES &
of funding and flexibility through the use of convertible bonds and AAER EECRBHREEEREZM
promissory notes. BT E -
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's TR BEALAR 1R & 49 FE AL 3R MzA&E
financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments. M aEBEBER -
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZE-XR"E+=-H=+—H
Within More than 1 Total
one year or year but less undiscounted Carrying
on demand than 5 years cash flows amount
—ERH BR-—F KR
RER BLREE Renem BHEE
HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000
TET TERT TER TET
Bank borrowings RITIER 4,036 1,837,659 1,841,695 1,695,685
Trade payables BHENRE 40,425 - 40,425 40,425
Finance lease obligation BERERE 1,011 1,056 2,067 1,968
Other payables and accruals H A B FRIB R JERT B 57,299 - 57,299 57,299
Convertible bonds ] fE 5 124,068 - 124,068 114,400
Promissory notes AR RE 26,636 29,000 55,636 50,402
253,475 1,867,715 2,121,190 1,960,179
As at 31 December 2015 RZE—AF+=—A=+—H
Within More than 1 Total
one year or year but less undiscounted Carrying
on demand than 5 years cash flows amount
—FR% ZR—F REEB
REX BIREE BRenis EHE
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$" 000 HK$'000
TET FET FTET TET
Bank borrowings RITIEH 386,002 557,060 943,062 851,824
Trade payables BHENRE 19,869 - 19,869 19,869
Finance lease obligation BEREAE 1,011 2,067 3,078 2,867
Other payables and accruals H A B FRIB R FE RSB 7,772 = 7,772 7,772
Convertible bonds AR &5 - 124,068 124,068 100,205
Promissory notes EAER - 58,636 58,636 47,627
414,654 741,831 1,156,485 1,030,164
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group does not have material exposure to interest rate risk, as
the Group has no financial assets and liabilities of material amounts
with floating interest rate.

Management will continue to review the market trend, as well as
its business operation needs and its financial position in order to
identify the most effective tools for the Group’s interest rate risk
management.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade, finance
lease, loan and other receivables. Management has monitored the
exposures on an ongoing basis.

The Group had certain concentration of credit risk as 60%
(2015:27%) and 94% (2015:91%) at the total finance lease
receivables were due from the largest lessee and the five largest
lessees, respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position after deducting any impairment allowance.
The Group does not provide any other guarantees which would
exposure the Group to the credit risk.

Fair value estimation

The fair values of current financial assets and liabilities are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because of the
immediate or short-term maturity.

The Group’s financial instruments carried at fair value represent the
Group’s other financial assets. The following provides on analysis
of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the
degree which the fair value is observable.

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from

inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

38.

0185 L IR & 32 B IR R BUR ()

R =@ B

AEBVTESRERNMNEER  BASRK
By EANFBHMNEXFELEREREER
BfE-

EEEHEERIMEBEURAXTE
EBFREPFBARN - AW EH A K EF X
REREE&sBRzTA-

FERRE

AEBEZEERBREIZREE HEER
HoBMEMAS BWERREMLEROR -
EREERBEERRR -

HARMEHERKNRERLRE 260% (=
—FHF:27%) % 90% (ZZE—HF:91%) D
ABEEZRAERBARAEREABAA  BHAE
EEmETEEETRR -

EREERBRENGEVBRABRAS
TREEZREEGIRETARERRE) -
AEEYERUKTAEGCERAEEEAR
HEERRZER-

AT EE S

HRBAEIREHRNIE SRR
BERBENAFYEEREREELES
RERo

AEBEATFEEIEZEMIAELRSE
EzHMEMEE - TXIREHEAVFSER
BEBRAFEEFNE BRBAFEETSR
REHCREEREAF E2-ABHKZE
BT EDH-

- F-EBAFEEMEHNAREESE
BEEEMSENRECRERAB)G L -

- F_EBAVEEAEHAFE ERHER
BUINMABREEXBERHABUR
BEx(AIERIXMBEEVREER) S
H:I’O
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The amount of approximately HK$7,761,000 of the Group's
available-for-sale investments were classified as Level 2 as at 31
December 2015. There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in
both years.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objective policies or processes for managing
capital during the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
borrowings divided by total capital plus total borrowings. The
Group's total borrowings represent bank borrowings, convertible
bonds and promissory notes. The Group's capital represents the
equity attributable to equity owners of the parent.

—REFETZA=T-ALEE

38.

MBERERBIRKRER®

BB R EF ()

- FZEBATVEEAEHRBELIENAA
EEmSBE(TABREEE RER
MEERBERABBENGBERTE
H o

R—ZE—RAF+_A=+—"8'BHY
mmpm%ﬁZ$%inﬁ%&§Bﬁ

BRE_EBEMR -PRMEFE- B
E%&ZF‘&JI%@%% ©
BEXEH

AEBZEAERERIERREAEE
BENSBEREEREBIEZEN URE

BEBEEALR HAMIXEEEBREK
REEE -
HEEBAEE 2 K&BEMRRES KRR R
B AEEEEEEARBERYEETH
BoAMERNAREARAERE  A5ET/
BT o NEB T Z (L[ I0EFH &
KENRFR -BEEEAZEEZ  BEHRE
FREZE-_ZE—"FEFA-_ZT—RAF+_A
=t+—HALtFETETAEE-
AEBEFNAELABBELRELTELR  EX
BELERAEERARERINE RNEAENER
BEE o AEEBRABIBRTMER AT
BMESRALEZE AEB 2 ERIEFR
AIRERBE ABRGERRER -

As at 31 December

R+=ZB=+-—8
2016 2015
—RE —E—RF
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
FER FAT
Bank borrowings R 1T 18 5K 1,695,685 851,824
Convertible bonds AR &S 114,400 100,205
Finance lease obligation BhEHEAE 1,968 2,867
Promissory notes EHEE 50,402 47,627
Total borrowings CE S 1,862,455 1,002,523
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  ZN/A 7] B 4 ¥ 5 A FE {5 A% 3 #E 25 3,301 15,679
Total capital and borrowings BARREHRERE 1,865,756 1,018,202
Gearing ratio EARBELX 99.82% 98.46%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

/NS DR = S IS = N RN = =
RIRTEZ R
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION 39. X AEfH
Merdeka Capital Limited BEEAXAERAA

BRBE-Z-RNELATHHAZAMH &
EHRLHMEEBRRER _T—R"FtH
NAREERRREGER(BEB)ERA
AZITERRMEBFR ARAEZEKK

Reference to the announcement on 15 July 2016, the Company
completed the acquisition of XiaXin Securities (HK) Limited, a
corporation licensed to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities)
regulated activities under Chapter 571 Securities and Futures

Ordinance, upon the approval granted by the Securities and Futures BERF ZAAARA BMBREFESNERS
Commission on 6 July 2016 for the application as the substantial REEGRG AREE—H(EFRFH)X

MELBHZFHEEE - RKBEER  ER
BZE2-R"ELtATHEAEREXNRAERA
ZRAE2ENBAR - RE-_FT—REFET+
A+—Bzaf R-_E-—XR"EFNA=+

shareholder of XiaXin. Following the acquisition, XiaXin became
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since 15 July
2016. Pursuant to the announcement on 11 October 2016, XiaXin
officially changed its name to Merdeka Capital Limited on 30

August 2016. H EFEFXERAREEELREGR A -
Amount
S
HK$’000
FAT
Net assets acquired of: EWBEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREZE 30
Statutory deposit EERE® 510
Intangible assets EREE 2,805
Trade receivables B 5 e W BR &K 2,897
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables TETRIE - 1R e R H b fE R IE 309
Bank balances and cash - general accounts RITHEHREIRE - —REF 3,887
Bank balances - Trust account RITHEBAZTERFE 5,920
Account payables & 1 BR X (8,352)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIA A& (463)
Other payables and accruals H i JE 5 /1B R FE AT AR IR (43)
Net assets acquired BEWEEEFE 7,500
Cash consideration ReRE 7,500
Analysis of cash U E F 18
and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition: AMReRBEESEEEE :
Cash consideration paid BERBESNE (7,500)
Cash and bank balances acquired B ERIE S RIRITEER 3,887
Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents RekReFEBEENRS KL FE (3,613)

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year WMEHRBEE_T-—"F+_HA=1T—H
ended 31 December 2016, the revenue and the loss of Mederka LEFEVET MEBRERERAAZHK
Capital Limited would have been approximately HK$273,000 and AR EE® D B4 A273,000%8 T R4 A
HK$1,638,000 respectively. 1,638,000/ 7T ©
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40. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 40.

On 30 November 2016, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Agreement’) to dispose of 100% equity
interest in Merdeka Timber Group Ltd. together with its subsidiaries
(the “Disposal Group”)(the “Disposal’), for a total consideration
of HK$2.0 million. The Disposal was completed on 30 November

LEMBAT

R-ZTE—RE+—A=+H ARAA:L
BEEW= ([a]) & Merdeka Timber
Group Ltd R EM B AR (HE&LE]) &
100% = ([ &) * R {E 4% A&2,000,000
BL- RZFE—A~"F+—A=+HB HE

2016. BExEMX e
Amount
ek
HK$'000
FHT
Net assets disposed of: HERFEE:
Forest concessions AR PR BT -
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b fE T 5B (77)
Net liabilities disposed HEFARE (77)
Cash consideration ReRE (2,000)
Non-controlling interests IR = 12,447
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHBARAZER 10,370
Analysis of cash REEMNER S
and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal: RBESEEMD T
Cash consideration received or to be received B EE2RE 2,000
Cash and bank balances disposed EHERE RRITER -
Net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents RekReEEWHRSIFRA 2,000

During the year, the Merdeka Timber Group Ltd together with its
subsidiaries had no revenue and profit or loss for the year were
reported.

R A > Merdeka Timber Group Ltd & H K &
REERERARER -
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41.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 4. KRB IRREBER

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—8H
2016 2015
—E-KF —T—HF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$" 000
BT &E FExT FiHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets REBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NIENGIPA: ¥ 276,061 230,580
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRARIE - e R E M ERFKIE 7,695 1,685
Bank balances and cash - general accounts ROEHRREE - —REFP 2,171 18,118
Total current assets MBEELE 9,866 19,803
Total assets EEHE 285,927 250,383
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES REEZRER
Issued capital BEITRA 26 1,620 1,225
Reserves fF 155 100,311 63,808
Total equity ExeE 101,931 65,033
Non-current liabilities E¥RBEE
Convertible bonds ABRRkES - 100,205
Promissory notes 2R 24,238 47,627
24,238 147,832
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals H fth B 3B R B RT R E 9,314 3,682
Due to subsidiaries JE -t B BB 1% A) 3R 7B 9,880 33,836
Convertible bonds AREES 114,400 =
Promissory notes A EE 26,164 -
Total current liabilities mEBERE 159,758 37,518
Total liabilities EE8E 183,996 185,350
Total equity and liabilities REEZREELAE 285,927 250,383
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (149,892) (17,715)
Net assets EEFE 101,931 65,033

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 10

March 2017.

Cheung Wai Yin, Wilson

RER
Director

EZE

BT -

Lau Chi Yan, Pierre

25 =

Director

EZE

KEFEeRN T +tF=F+HERERR
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41.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY  41.

RS MBRRBE @

(Continued)
Equity
Share component Capital
premium  Contributed of convertible Shareoption  reduction  Accumulated
account surplus bonds reserve reserve losses Total
B TaRESz BEBRE  RAHUE
BER 0N ] ERH5 1 e E | @it
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEL THEL THEL TEL TEL TEL THEL
As at 1 January 2015 W-Z-h%—-A—-A 810,692 18,203 22,728 963 132,931 (1,000,532) (15,015)
Change in equity for 2015; T-RFBEREE:
Loss and total comprehensive REE
loss for the year EERZABELE - - - - - (82,364) (82,364)
Issue of new shares upon placing ~~ BLEB BT H IR 13 8,868 - - - - - 8,868
Issue of offer shares BORERD 65,272 - - - - - 65272
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-HHBAR - - 30,387 - - - 30,387
Capital reduction of issued shares 2 %1713 2 B A Bl 5t - - - - 30,260 = 30,260
Grant of share options BB - = - 26,400 = - 26,400
As at 31 December 2015 R=2-1f%
and 1 January 2016 TZEZt-BR
—E-x¥-8-H 884,832 18,203 53,115 27,363 163,191 (1,082,896) 63,808
Changes in equity for 2016: TE-REZREED:
Loss and total comprehensive R EE
loss for the year FERZEFRAE - - - - - (1,768) (1,768)
Issue of new shares upon placing B & & &5 K # 38,271 - - - - - 38,271
Forfeiture of share options R E - - - (35) - 35 -
RZB-R%
As at 31 December 2016 +=A=t+-H 923,103 18,203 53,115 27,328 163,191 (1,084,629) 100,311
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42,

LITIGATION

On 22 January 2015, the Company announced that a writ of
summons was submitted to the Court of First Instance of the
High Court of Hong Kong by Au Kai To, Karel, as the plaintiff
claiming against (i) End User Technology Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as the first defendant; (i) the
Company, as the second defendant; and (i) Mr. Lau Chi Yan, Pierre,
the managing director and executive director of the Company,
as the third defendant for, inter alia, (1) specific performance of
an agreement dated 2 May 2013 in relation to a discloseable
transaction of the Company (details of which were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 2 May 2013); or (2)
alternatively, the damages in the sum of HK$8,000,000 in lieu of
specific performance; and (3) the interest; (4) further and/or other
relief; and (5) the costs.

The Company has instructed legal representative to handle the
matter, and was advised that the claim did not have merits as the
agreement had been duly and completely performed. The three
defendants, namely the Company, its subsidiary and Mr. Lau Chi
Yan, Pierre have filed the relevant statements of defence with the
High Court accordingly. On 3 August 2016, the parties attended
the mediation as ordered by court, but the mediation failed. In the
opinion of the director of the Company, no provision is necessary.

42,

%I_I\'
B

TE—HAF—A=-+=-H AAAE=E
i BEF(RS)HEATALIREES
EERERDIEERRIER M : (VAR A
2 B # 2= &M B A Al End User Technology
Limited (£ —# &) () AR B (B - E):
ROINARRIZEFHBBERATESZIE
C(E=HE) AU TSEERERE
HbaE: - ()WBHA-_ZT—=FRAA-A
ZRHEMITHE NEEBARARZEAET
BREXS (FERARARIBHAZT —=
FRAZBZAMEKE) QBRI -
8,000,000 B T B K BIMITHF R (3)
PR (@E—P R REMFEE: REEA

&

/.
|l

ARREBERRERRREEEBREE X
EENZBRRIBERLEE ARZBE
BEEEARZEAT ZEABERBELRQ
AEANBRARARIAECAEEENREE
REXHEBEERE R_T-R"FNA=
B &FRZERSHFERAR BRBKX
M-ARAEZRR BEFTIEEE-
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43,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(1)

On 20 January 2017 (after trading hours), the Company
and the bondholders of the 2008 CBs entered into the third
supplemental deed, for (a) extending the maturity date
of the 2008 CBs for 3 years from 12 August 2017 to 12
August 2020; (b) amending the conversion price of the 2008
CBs from HK$0.3696 per Share to HK$0.095 per Share;
and (c) inclusion of the following adjustment events to the
conversion price: (i) issue of Shares for subscription by way
of rights, or a grant of options or warrants to subscribe for
Shares, at a price which is less than 80% of the market price
per Share to the shareholders of the Company; (ii) issue
wholly for cash of securities convertible into or exchangeable
for or carrying rights of subscription for Shares, if in any case
the total effective consideration per Share receivable is less
than 80% of the market price, or the conversion, exchange
or subscription rights of any such issue are altered so that the
said total effective consideration receivable is less than 80%
of such market price; and (iii) issue of Shares being made
wholly for cash at a price less than 80% of the market price
per Share. For detail, please refer to the Company’s circular
dated 20 February 2017.

The proposed resolution in respect of the above mentioned
Third Supplemental Deed and the transactions contemplated
thereunder was duly passed by the Shareholders by way of
poll at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 7 March 2017. Accordingly a maximum of 1,305,978,947
Shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the outstanding 2008 CBs in
full at the conversion price of HK$0.095 per Share.

43,

REWPESBA

(1)

RZEBE—+FEF—A=-+B(XHHER
%) KRB _—_ZTTN\Fa]HiRE
FNESFBEATLE=ZHHExE
B U@ ER-_ZZNEABKES
MEBE B=ZFE—+tFN\A+=H
ER=F2_Z_FTFN\A+=-H8:
b) BT NFAERKRESHIR
fRME - A&’ 0.3696 /& T = &%
& 7 0.095 & 7T i & (c) AR (B #) 3 &
EHERETIEH () AHRKRIED
EBRERRREZIARBR A 2 AR
MARRRRETRMDAERE M
HERERESRKEDHEZ80% (i)
BATA H sk e 5 iR () B SRR
RN BAAEHEREIEEL M
FEEMBERT TFREKRG 2 B E
REENATES0% KM AT
2R EHBRNREELRNE M
By LMERERARERRZTE
80% 5 K (jii) LAK I & % I 19 ™ (B 80%
ZEBRBETHRG  A2EBERL -
HER2EAQARBHA T+
—A-tBZ&EXK-

MEME=MDHETZERELIEBET #
ETZRINEZRAZRDERRE
R-ZE—tHE=ZFLtBHBTZ2ARN
ARRENREURERRAFTAL
ANBEB - RNIEZBRRKREFTRKRRKM0.095
BLEHTERATE_ZZENF
ABKRESFWNTREER HEXZ
1,305,978,947 % i% 17 #5 & Be 3 K 2%
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43,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

)

On 20 January 2017 (after trading hours), Heng He, entered
into a finance lease agreement (the “FL Announcement”)
with £ /8 = % B € % 1€ B IR 2 & (Shanghai Zhang Cheng
Computerized Embr0|dery Company Limited*) as the Lessee,
pursuant to which Heng He conditionally agreed to purchase
the Leased Assets (as defined therein the “FL Announcement)
from the Lessee at a total consideration of RMB25.0 million
(approximately HK$27.5 million), which would be leased
back to the Lessee at the aggregate lease receivables of
approximately RMB28.85 million (approximately HK$31.73
million) for a term of 3 years, commencing on the date of
payment of the consideration for the Leased Assets.

On 7 February 2017 (after trading hours), the Company
through a wholly-owned subsidiary entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire 51% of the issued share
capital of Heng Asset Management Limited at a consideration
of HK$10,000,000 which will be settled by the allotment
and issue of the consideration Shares by the Company to the
vendor or its nominee upon completion of the transaction. As
at the date of this report, the acquisition is not completed.

* For identification purpose only

—RETZA=T-ALEE

*E 5
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m&

=IE &
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B = LR E AR 25,000,0007T (4
#;%*#%27 500,00070) M & ABEE

EEE(EENMEMEERQH) -8
/Tﬂ_uﬁﬁﬁﬂj\bﬂﬂﬁﬁguﬁszﬂ@
%4 N R % 28,850,000 5T (%) & i ¥
31,730,000 ;o) B HEEE * BT
HMEEEREERRA AR =F-

L\)‘“%
v“

RZE—+tF_AtEtH(RXRFBE
%) ARAEB/BE2ENMBE QARG
EEME BUHAXTBEBKEREK
BEEHEETEEARAAEEITRA
51% - X & /510,000,000 & 7T - # &
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44. 1SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSS 4. ERMBEREBNSERFERSEL
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised AEBYEREEATIEBMEEKRE
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective. ME AT RSB T BB mE 2R -
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

BB UG HmEERF IR T A’

HKFRS 15 and amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

BERMBHREERE 155 EP& AR

RBEBM R E LD E 155 (BFTA)

HKFRS 16 Leases?

BAVEHREERIF 165 HE?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions'

BA U HRELERNFE 25 (EETA) IRDAERNHRAORIHN D ERTE'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and its Associate or Joint Venture?
BB HmEAERIF 1058 REEZHABREHEECEZHNEELHEHIEAS
REB G ERE 285 (BT A)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative®

ARG ERETR UBFTA) wEE 5t &4

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses*

BEA G ERE 125 (BFTA) ARSI EERERAREHBEE

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 g H_T-—NF-—A— Bl Z2BABZEE
HA RS A A

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 2 H_ZT-NF—A— B 2BRBEZEFE
B AR

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be g HENFBETAHIzeRABcFEHRBE

determined 3

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 4 H_ZT—+tF A B Z2BRBZEE
AR A2

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact of the AREEFENG EMFETREETEREY

above new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state BRELENZBEFE  BREREHBAL

whether the above HKFRSs will have a significant impact on the MEBTBRELENEAEERNLE XS

Group's results of operations and financial position. MM BRAEEBEENTE -

45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45. MRS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by AU BREELESTEN T —LF=A

the Board on 10 March 2017. + Bk R T
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from

MTRASEEAEZRABMBRFENEEURE
E AERFEERESSE DREAEC TERN

the published audited financial statements, is set out below: REZVBERE:
RESULTS &
Year ended 31 Year ended 31 Year ended 31 Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2012 December 2013 December 2014 December 2015 December 2016
HE-T--F HE-T—=F BE-TNF HE-_T-HF HEZE-XE
+-A=+-B +-A=+-B +-A=t+-B +-A=+—-H +=ZB=+-H
HEE HEE HEE HEE LtEE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
THEL THEL THL THL THER
Revenue A 7,909 40,762 69,877 131,398 256,232
LOSS BEFORE TAX BREAEE (644,073) (115,153) (180,099) (119,388) (36,210)
Income tax Frig i - - (640) (4,004) (3,938)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FRERE (644,073) (115,153) (180,739) (123,392) (40,148)
Attributable to: 1l
Owners of the Company ARAIRERAE A (613,037) (109,167) (172,225) (124,944) (42,617)
Non-controlling interests FiERER (31,036) (5,986) (8,514) 1,552 2,469
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FABR (644,073) (115,153 (180,739) (123,392) (40,148)
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS G BRERFERER
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December 2012 December 2013 December 2014 December 2015 December 2016
RZT—Z—F RZIT—=F HAZZT-NF RKRIT-1F RZB-REF
+=ZA=+-B +zZA=+-B +=A=+-BH +=ZA=+-B +=A=+-8
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS' 000
TET TET TET TET TER
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 314,400 246,760 142,899 1,117,360 2,055,071
TOTAL LIABILITIES BaE (194,262) (190,047) (139,437) (1,033,666) (1,963,731)
120,138 56,713 3,462 83,694 91,340
EQUITY: i
Equity attributable KR FRE
to owners of the Company BEANEGER 115,802 58,363 12,934 15,679 3,301
Non-controlling interests FmRER 4,336 (1,650) (9,472) 68,015 88,039
120,138 56,713 3,462 83,694 91,340




Glossary of Terms
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GENERAL TERMS

2008 CBs

—BRNFTRRES

2015 CBs

—E-RFABRKRES

AGM(s)
BREFKE

Articles

488

Audit Committee
EZEEE

Board
EEg

CEO
TR A,

Chairman

EE

Code
Szl

Company

ZN/N|

Director(s)

=%

GEM
BIRR

GEM
BIZAR £ AR Al

Group
REE

HK or Hong Kong
BB

HK$
BT

*E 5

- Ro]%

5

The convertible bonds issued by the Company on 12 August 2008 as part of the consideration
to acquire the forestry business. These convertible bonds, originally due on 12 August 2011 and
extended to 12 August 2017, are interest-free and convertible into the Shares at the conversion
price of HK$0.3696 per Share (subject to adjustment according to the terms of the convertible
bonds)

HARARRZZEZNF AR+ BBETERRBMRAEBZHBIRBZARKRES - Z
?T%&ﬁ%%m_ﬁ——ﬁﬂﬂ+:Hﬂ%ﬁﬁ§:%—tiﬂﬂ+:m%ﬁév
I AT 42 #2 A% 18 & 1% 0.3696 )8 T (AR 1% AT #2 iR & 5 2 1R A AT T A B) % A I 5

The convertible bonds issued by the Company on 21 April 2015 as part of the consideration to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Blossom Height Ventures Limited. These convertible bonds
due on 21 April 2018 are interest-free and convertible into the Shares at the conversion price of
HK$0.23 per Share (subject to adjustment according to the terms of the convertible bonds)
BARBIRZZE—RFWEA =+ — B &1TERUEEBlossom Height Ventures Limited & # &
BORAZHBIRBZABRES ZEABRKREFSR _ZE-/\FOA-_+—-—B2H
BReS WAR#RESR023B T (REBEFTRIRMES ZIKHKA THE) KRN

Annual general meeting(s)

RRBFERE

The Articles of Association of the Company

AARBABEIZMAA

The audit committee of the Company

ARRIBGZEB®

The board of Directors
BEg

The chief executive officer of the Company

AR BITRAE

The chairman of the Company

RRBERE

The Corporate Governance Code under the GEM Listing Rules
AR L AR AR T X E AT Al

Merdeka Financial Services Group Limited
Merdeka Financial Services Group Limited (& 12 & & iR 75 & B G R 2 7*)

The director(s) of the Company
RARES

The Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
Bt 32 FfT Bl 2 AR

Listing Rules The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
Bl RE F £ R Al

The Company and its subsidiaries

ARE R EME R A

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of PRC
B E B RTR R

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BBEAERE
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B 555

INED(s)
BUFBITES

lvana
lvana

N/A
i A

Nomination Committee

RAZE®

PRC
el

Remuneration Committee

FMZzE®

&5 R & 5

Share(s)

B 15
Shareholder(s)
i

Stock Exchange
Bk 22 Pl

us
EE

usb
e

%
%

Independent non-executive director(s)

BYIEMITES

Ivana Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company
Ivana Investments Limited + 2~ A & 7 + Z & R

Not applicable
i A

The nomination committee of the Company

ARFARHEZE R

The People’s Republic of China
RE AR

The remuneration committee of the Company
RARFHHEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of PRC

ARE FBEATEER

The Securities and Futures Commission

EFRPEFEHERZES

The Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

BEREPESNEE S KBGO

The ordinary share(s) of HK$0.001 each in the share capital of the Company

AR B R B E {E0.001 7 7T &9 E B AR

Holder(s) of the Share(s)

[EELESTPN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEBMERIMERAR

The United States of America
EREBERE

United States dollar(s), the lawful currency of US

X XBEATEER

Per cent.
Btk
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B35

FINANCIAL TERMS

Current Ratio
it &) b &

Gearing Ratio

EXRABBLE

5 s R

Current assets divided by current liabilities

MBEERARBDEE

Total borrowings (representing bank & other borrowings, convertible bonds and finance lease
payable) divided by total capital employed (i.e. total Shareholders” fund plus total borrowings)
BEERRTEEMER THREFIHELAERNFIA)RAMBANEER
(AN ZRE © AR IR A 50
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